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STRATEGIC REPORT

for the year ended 31 March 2023

The Directors present their Sirategic Report on the Laing
O'Rourke Plc Group (‘Laing O'Rourke' or 'Group'} for the
year ended 31 March 2023.

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS
The Group's principal activities are:

CONSTRUCTION
- Programme management;
- Construction and building:
- Civil engineering; and
- Infrastructurc and supporl services.

MAANUFACTURING
- Building products; and

- Manufacturing construction products.

PLANT HIRE
- Plani hire and operations.

SERVICTS
- Design services; and

- Building operations management.

A list of all subsidiaries, joint ventures, and joint cperations can
be found in note 37 to the financiaf statements.

Laing O'Rourke Plc (the ‘Company’) is a whoily owned
subsidiary of O'Rourke Investments Lid and a member of the
Laing O'Rourke Corporation Ltd Group. The Company is
incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group achieved
continued growth in revenue but made a loss before tax of
£{188.3)m (FY22: profit of £16.2m)} driven by continued
infiationary pressures, challenging delivery on projects
experiencing significant change, and delays to capital
investment in UK public-sector work.

The key results can be summarised as follows:

- The Croup's pre-exceptional EBIT decreased by £198.2m to a
ioss of £{169.2)m [FY22: profit of £29.0m). The post-exceptional
EBIT loss of £(171.6)m (FY22: profit of £29.0m) reflects the
impact of a write-down of intangible assets of £2.4m (FY22:
£nil); and

- Subsequentto the year end, the Group’s unsecured
revolving credit facility with HSBC was extended to 3 April
2026. See following core debt section for further details.

- Group revenue has increased by 11.] percent to £2.0bn;
and at the year end the Group had an order book of £6.6bn
{FY22: £6.1bn} which represents approximately three
vears' revenue {order book is defined as the value of work
outstanding on secured, anficipated, and preferred bidder
contracts). The yecar-on-year increase is partly driven by
continuing to work closely with the UK government as a
strategic supplier to deliver much needed hospitals and
infrastructure in support of its investment agenda. Our key
focus has been on converting our pipeline to secured work,
which stood at £4.4bn (66.] per ceni of total order book) at
the year end (FY22: £4.6bn and 80.6 per cent of fotal order
book). This will remain a priority for the remainder of FY24.

The Group's share of cumulative iosses in Canada remained
unchanged at £219.3m.

EXCEPTIONALITEMS

The Graup delivered a pre-exceptional E8IT loss of £{169.2tm
{FY22: profit of £29.0m) before incuning exceptional items of
£2.4m {FY22: £nil) relating to the write down of intangible assets.

FUNDING

The Group's net cash position {cash less debt but excluding
bank arrangement fees and the impact of IFRS 16 leases)
decreased from £43.5m at 31 March 2022 to £4.4m at 31 March
2023. see note 36 to the financial slatements,

The Group operates extensive controls over working capital
and cash management with proactive engagement of its
financial stakcholders.

The Group complied with all banking covenants during FY23
and did not require any waivers or relaxation of its covenants.
Since the year end the Group has received o waiver for
exceeding the loan-to-value covenant related to a property
loan {resulting from a lower vacant possession valuation due to
@ change in market conditions since the original loan was
enfered inte). On 30 June 2023, the Group agreed a reset of its
future covenants and, In October 2023, the Group extended ifs
unsecured revolving credit facility and property loan with HSBC
ta 3 Aprit 2026, which included resalving the property loan
covenant breach; further details are provided under the core
debt section below. The covenants related to the credit facility
are also detailed in nofe 29.4 to the financial statements.

As well as debt instruments, such as bank loans and overdrafits,
the Group sometimes uses project-related bonding and
guarantees to support its activities. These instruments are largely
issued by insurance companies but also by other financial
institutions. The bonds are issued on behalf of contractors 1o
thelr clients and provide compensafion in certain
circumstances, such as defined aspects of contractor under-
performance. They can aiso be used to underwrite client
advances and relaxations of client retentions.

These instruments are unsecured but can convey significant
rights to the issuers similar to those conveyed to other financial
institutions, e.g. fees, covenants, reporting requirements, and
ranking in the event of financial distress.

Over the last seven years the Group has sought to reduce its
use of these instruments.,

The Group does not employ supplier payment facilities.
CORE DEST

FY23 Fyz2

(Erm) {£rj
RCF/Term Debt - -
Property loan 13.0 130
Intercompany loan 48.0 480
Other loans 86.7 80.0

The Group has in place an unsecured revolving credit facility
with HSBC for £35.0m. The loan had an initial expiry date of 3
October 2023, which was extended to 3 April 2024 during FY23
and has been further extended to 3 April 2026 since the year
end. As part of the latest extension, covenants related to interest
cover and net debt to EBITDA were replaced by an adjusted
EBITDA covenant, and the minimum liquidity covenant was
amended to include three forecast month-end perods. The
facility has been maintained at £35.0m through to 31 March
2005, at which paint quarterly £2.5m reductions commence,
reducing the facility to £25.0m by 31 December 2025.

Laing O'Rourke Plc



STRATEGHC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

The facility incentivises or penalises Laing O'Rourke depending
on ifs pragress against the fallowing key sustainability metrics:
reducing carbon intensity, diverting waste from landfill, and
growing the number of women in project delivery.

In addifion to core borrowing arrangements, the Group utilises
hire purchase and finance lease funding facilities te suppert the
acquisition of plant and equipment.

BN aRD GUARANTEERS

FY23 FYz2 Fy2: FY20

{£m) _ lgm 1&m) (£rn)
Surety Exposure &7 58 52 55
Bank Exposure - - 40 40

Bonding and similar instruments were £67m at 31 March 2023
(FY22: £58m). The Group has reduced its exposure to such
instruments by 56 per cent since FY18 and 84 per cent since
FYT164.

SIGNIFIC ANT ASSET ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
The corperate restructure of the UK entities which the Group
substantially completed in FY22 was finalised in FY23. The
restructure did not result in any disposals or acquisitions outside
of the Group, or discontinuing of any operations.

See note 14 to the financial statements for the full list of
disposals and dissolutions.

FINANCE AND TREASURY POUCY

The Group's freasury function haos continued fo prudently
manage the Group's liquidity, funding, and financial risks,
arising from movements in areas such as interest rates and
foreign curency exchange rates. The Group has not entered
into foreign currency hedges. The Group continues to review ifs
credit support requirement and prioritise the management of
key financial stakeholders, including key banking relationships
and surety bonding providers who support our long-term
strategic agenda,

UK CONSTRUCTION WORKING CAPITAL AND SUPPLY
CHAIN PAYMENTS

The UK business continues to target impiovements in its supplier
payments and is fully engaged with current sector debates
regarding payment practices.

Since the 2008 financial crisis, access to traditional bank
funding by tier one contractors and subcontractors alike has
reduced due to aloss of appetite for the sector by UK barnks.
Reliance on off-balance-sheet support has also become more
difficult due to a reduction in the attractiveness and the
avaitability of bonding and guarantee facilities.

Tier one cash flow is particularly sensitive to the length of

fime taken to agree and settle changes and variations, the
quantum of and duration over which cash retentions are heid
by clients, and the reluctance of clients to pay upfroni for the
significant cost and risk of mobilising a major project and the
relcted off-site manufacture of components.

Altpardies involved in the sector must collaborate o provide

a more modern approach to payments and provide
adequate working capital to aveid the current hand-to-mouth
tickie-down of iquidity.

In terms of payment data, the UK businesses reported their
latest set of payment practices data for the six months to 30
Septembyer 2023,

During this period, invoice payment timing has continued to be
predominantly impacted by the wider inflationary
environment, including rapidly escalkating prices of certain
commodities leading to advance payments being made
ahead of terms in order to fix pricing. The business has also
been operating with a lower level of debt it line with its strategy
to reduce debt risk. Despite this, progress has steadily improved
There i siill pogiess to be made by the Group in achieving
payment to all suppliers within terms, particularly against the
backdrop of increased inflationary pressure across the supply
chain.

Laing O'Rourke Plc became a signatory to the UK's Prompt
Payment Cade (PPC) in 2013 and remains committed to
improving its payment performance.

The graphs below show Laing O'Rourke Delivery Ltd's payment
performance for the three years to 30 September 2023. Laing
O'Rourke Delivery Ltd is the main trading enfity in the UK, o
wholly owned subsidiary of Laing O'Rourke Plc, and the main
entity subject to the PPC.

whilst we remained focused on measures which ensure
confinued improvement in our payment performance, we
operate in a sector where supply chains and contractual ferms
are complex, and prompt payment is often materially
impacted by resolution of disputes and alignment to agreed
contractual processes.

AVERAGE DAYS TO PAY INVOICES

32
I
ALL SUPPLIERS AND SUBCONTRACTORS, % INVOICES
FAID UNDER 80 DAYS

w%

Laing O'Rourke Pic | 4



STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

ALL SUPPLIERS AND SUBCONIRACTORS % INVOICES
FPAID TO TERMS

RISK AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Group has been focused on further improving its risk
marnagement framewark and processes during FY23.

The Board regularly assesses and monifors risks affecting the
Group. Further details of how the Group has managed key
financial and operational risks, such as credit and liguidity risks,
are set out on pages 61 1o 66 of the Laing O'Rourke
Caorporation Ltd Annual Report and Accounts in the gudit and
risk management section,

The Group's ultimaite parent company, Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Lid, reports its company and consolidated
accounts in accordance with Imtemational Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union and Companies
(Jersey) Law 1991, The Group's significant accounting policies
are explained in note 2 1o the financial staterments.

IMPACT OF THE WAR IN UKRAINE

During FY23, inflationary pressures were exacerbated by the
war in Ukraine which has confributed to significant input price
inflation and shortages of certain materials and commodities,
which has impacted the FY23 financial performance, We
continue to manage inflation risk from the bid/tender stage
and throughout the contract life through our govermnance
processes and vatious mitigation strategies. The impact of the
inflofionary environment remained under review in FY23 with its
impact carefuly managed and mitigated wherever possible.

Continved challenges with staff recruitment ond attrition and
unexpected challenges in areas such as deliveries fo site are
largely mitigated through our direct delivery integrated model
and direct employment. The Board will continue to monitor the
impact of the war in Ukraine and inflation on the UK business
environment and remains alent to the need to respond to
changes in market conditions such as freedom of movement,
right to work, finance and tariff implications, disruption to supply
of plant and equipment and key construction components,
excharnge rates, and primary commodity prices.

QUTLOOK

The Group has been impacted by inflationary pressures and
delays to capital invesiment in UK public-sector works dug fo
both giobal and domestic political turbulence.

Manogement continues to focus on strengthening the
foundation of the business through effective risk management,
continuing to embed new processes and controls on project
selection, and efficient operational delivery.

Our FY24 forecast and the longer-term delivery of our sirategic
targets is predicated on continuing 1o win sufficient
opportunities within our pipeline, the continubed implementation
of our strategic workstreams, and the obiiity 1o contain the
impact of any further inflationary pressures and public-sector
capital investment delays.

The Board remains confident that the strategic plan can be
delivered but will continue to closely monitor any further
impacts of inflation, exacerbated by the warin Ukraine,
together with any changes {o key judgements and estimations
including contingent liabilities. This has been explained in our
going concern note on pages 21 to 23 and the impact of
climate chatige on uw forecasts and future performance has
also been explained in note 2.27b) to the financial statements.

The Board remains confident in the resiience of the business
and its leadership due to its proven track record, against a
challenging market backdrop including the impaocts of Brexi,
the pandemic, and inflation.

The UK government has commilied fo a significant level of
infrastructure investment, as set oul in the UK National
Infrastructure Strategy in Septembber 2022; however, fiming of
investment remains uncertain. More recenfly, delays o, or
cancellations of, parts of the HS2 line have been annaunced
together with delays to major roadbuilding schemes impacting
the previcusly set out investment timelings. Adoption of modem
methods of construction remains central to this investment
which the Europe Hub is well placed to raspond fo, given the
pioneering investment and development of our own
advanced manufacturing faciities backed by new

digital platfarms.

The Group continues to invest in developing a seciorieading
capability in modern methods of consiruction. Ourintegrated
delivery model, strong client engagement, and robust internal
control environment ensure that we are well positioned to
continue to win high quality work. The Group alse continues to
work closely with the UK government as a strategic supplier in
order to deliver much-needed hospitals, schools and
infrastructure in support of ifs nvestment agenda. The Group
has continued to convert its strong pipeline, and this remaing
one of the Board's main priorties for the remainder of the
current financial year.

The Group now has ol of its expected FY24 revenue either
secured or anticipated and 82 per cent of its expected FY25
revenue is at the secured, anficipated or preferred bidder
stage and the Group Order Book currenily sfands af £6.6bn as
at 30 September 2023.

The UK core debt facility that was due fo expire on 3 April 2024
was extended an 19 October 2023 along with a property loan.
The expiry date for both is now 3 April 2026.

The Board has cansidered the Group's financiat requirements,
based on curent cormmitments, its secured order book, and
the factors set out above, as well as the latest projections of
future opportunities, and has evaluated these against its
banking and surety bonding arrangements. It has concluded
that the Group is well placed to overcome the inflationary
challenges of FY23, manage its business risks, and meet its
future financial fargets successfuly.

Laing O'Rourke Pic 3



STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

SECTION 172 {1) 3TATEMENT

This section serves as cur Section 172 statement in compliance
with the Companies Act 2004, Section 172 of the Companies
Act requires the Direclors 1o have regard to the interests of our
wider stakeholders when making key decisions across a range
of areas, This statement, together with the relevant sections of
the Annual Report and Fingncial Statements, explains how our
Board meets this requircment and also how stakeholder
engagement influences decision making across the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

During the year ended 31 March 2023, our relevant UK
companies in the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Ltd Group (‘the
Group’) have censidered the Companies [Miscellaneous
Reporting) Regulations 2018 and elected to apply the Wates
Corporate Govermnance Principles tor Large Compuanies, ds
published in December 2018 (the ‘Wates Principles') We
reported against the Wates Principles for the first time in the
financial year ended 31 March 2020 and the continuance of
this reporting assists in assessing what has been done well and
also where there rermains opportunity for further improvement
of our corporate governance framework. It is alse recognised
that governance requirements and needs will evolve over time.
Our ambition continues ta be the achievement of best-in-class
corporate governance across the Group.

Laing O'Rourke Plc sits within the Corporate Governance
Framework of the overall Laing O'Rourke Carporation Lid
Group. Decisions that impact Laing O'Rourke Pic are made at
both the Europe Hub Executive Committee and Group
Executive Committee levels. The Directors of Laing O'Rourke Plc
are members of the Europe Hub Executive Committee and/for
the Group Executive Committee. All references to the Board,
the Company, and the Group within this Corporate
Governance Section on pages 7 to 20, relate to the Laing
C'Rourke Corporation Lid Group.

GROUP CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

At Laing O'Rourke, we are proud of what has already been
achieved. We take the view that good corporate governance
is a comerstone of the creation of a successful business and
one that generates value for wider society. Qur Group
govemnance framewcrk continues to be applied across our
global business and was reviewed during FY23 in line with our
annual review cycle.

Laing G'Rourke Plc @



STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

BOARD STRUCTURE
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LAING O'ROURKE CORPORATIONLTD DIRECTORS

Sir John Parker GBE FREng — Group Chair

Sir John, independent Group Chair af Laing O'Rourke, has built
up an enviable reputation across a range of industnal sectors
as a leader in the boardroom, including Chair at six FTSE 100
companies. Sir John alko chairs the Remuneration, Nomination,
and Govemance Committee and the fFinance Committee.

A former President of the Royal Academy of Engineering and a
visiting Fellow at Oxford University, he takes a keen interest in
the development of engineering fechnclogy. diversity, and
taient.

Ray O’Rourke KBE ~ Group Chief Executive Officer
Shareholder and co-founding director of Laing O'Rourke, Ray
chairs the Group Executive Committee and is responsible for
leading the Group's strategic direction and operational
management. Ray alse chairs the Australia Hub Executive
Committee and is o member of the Europe Hub Executive
Committee {Chair until April 2023), Finance Committee, and
Remuneration, Nomination, and Govermnance Comimitiee.

Ray founded R O'Rourtke & Sonin 1977. The busingss acquired
the construction arm of John Laing Pic in 2001, and with the
acquisition of Barcloy Mowlem Australic in 2006, crealed
today's extended international engineering construction
group.

Des O'Rourke - Group Deputy Chair

Shareholder and co-founding direcior of Laing O'Rourke,

Des provides Board level support 1o the Group Chair and the
Group Chief Executive Officer in the operational management
of the Group’'s business activities, Des is ako a member of the
Group Executive Commiitee, the Europe Hub Executive
Commiffee and the Remuneration, Nomination, and
Governance Commitiee.

Des has a praven track record in project delivery, mobiising
large teams of peopie onto compiex projects around
the world.

Rowan Baker — Group Chief Financial Officer

Rowan joined Laing Q'Rourke in September 2020 as the Group
Chief Financial Officer. Rowan is also a member of the Group
Executfive Commitiee, the Finance Commiitee, the Group
Compliance Committee, and the Europe and Australia Hub
Executive Committees.

An experienced finance executive, Rowan was previoushy
Chief Financial Officer at McCarthy & Stone Plc where she
played a key role in the company's successful IPO in 2015,
Prior to joining McCarthy & Stone ih 2012, she worked in
finance for Barcloys Bank Plc and PwC. Rowan is o qualified
accountant {FCA) and chartered tax advisor {CTA}). Rowan is
also a Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Audit
Committee ai Vishy Group Pic,

Cathal O'Rourke - Group Chief Operating Officer

Cathal was appointed Group Chief Operating Otficer from

1 Apnl 2023 {previously Managing Director Australia, resigned
31 March 2022}, Upon appointment, Cathal joined the Board
and rejoined the Group Executive Committee. He also rejoined
the Australia Hub Executive Commitiee and became Chair of
the Eyrope Hub Executive Commitfee.

Between Navembier 2020 and April 2022, Cathdl held the role
of Prasident of the Australian Constructors Association where he
led significant reform initiatives to ensure a heaithy, dynamic,
and thriving consiruction industry for the future. While leading
the Australian business, he piayed a leading role in securing,
delivering, and sponsoring a number of significant building and
infrastructure projects. Cathal is a charered civil engineer and
a member of the Institution of Civil Engineers.

Laing O'Rourke Flc . 7



STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Rebecca Hanley

Managing Director, Australia

Rebecca joined the Board in Novemiboer 2022 hoving been o
member of the Group Executive Committee since June 2018,
nitially as Group Strategy and Transformation Director and
more recently as Monaging Direcior for the Austrafia Hus. Upon
becoming Managing Director of the Australio Hub, Rebecca
also joined the Australia Hub Executive Committee. Rebecca
temporarily stepped down from the Boord i June 2023 n
anlicipation of her taking parental leave, and is expecled 1o
rejoin the Board upon her return.

in her role as Group Director for Strategy and Transformation,
Rebecca was nskhumenialin shaping the Group's 'Deliver
2025" globat strategy focused on innovation and excellence.
Rebecca previously worked in strategy for Anglo American Plc
and in financial leadership positions, including for PwC.
Rebeccais a Chartered Accountant with an MBA from
INSEAD in Paris.

Jim Edmondson - Group Cempany Secretary

Jim joined the Group in Jonuary 2018 and is @ member of the
Board. Jimis akso a member of the Group Executive
Committee.

Jim is a solicitor of the Supreme Court of England and Wales
and a former joint senior partner of a major London law fim
with responsibiiities for stfrategy, thought leadership, nururing of
client relationships, and business deveiopment. Jim aiso
specialised in advising on comarate structures, succession
planning, and the application of proper administration and
corparate govemance in the context of directorships

and frusteeships.

Mark Cutitani — Non-Executive Director

Mark was appointed tc the Boarg as an independent
Non-Executive Directorin September 2022, Mark is an
experienced global chief executive wha joined the Baard as
Senior Independent Director, also chairing the Group
Sustainability Committee.

Mark stepped down in April 2022 as Chiet Executive and an
executive dicector of Anglo American Plc after nine years
feading the giobal mining giant. He is credited with leading the
turnaround of Anglo American alter joining as Chief Executive
in 2013. The Company reported revenues of USD$41.5bn and
record profitability in 2021,

Laing C'Rourke Pl 1

Heather MacCalium - Non-Execulive Director

Heather joinad the Board as an independent Non-Executive
Director in November 2022 aond chairs the Audit and

Risk Committee.

Heather was a partner in KPMG Channei siands Ltd's financial
services practice frorm 2001 until her retirement from the
parinership on 30 September 2014, She prodominanily
provided audit and advisory services 1o the investment
management sector and curently serves as a Neon-Executive
Director on the boards of several companies including Jersey
Water and B-FLEXION Fund Management [Jersey) Lid.

Dr Hayaatun Sillem CBE - Non-Execulive Director
Hayaatun was appointed to the Board as an independent
Non-Executive Director in Morch 2022, In addifion to her role on
the Board, Hayaatun s a member of the Audii and Risk
Commitiee and the Group Sustainability Committee.

Hayaatun is Chief Executive Officer of the Royal Academy of
engineerng and Queen Elizabeth Prize tor Engineering
Foundation. She co-chairs the UK govemment's Business
innovation Forum and co-chaired Sir Lewis Hamilton's
Commission on improving Black representation in UK
motorsport. She was made a CBE for services to International
Engineering in 201 9. Prior to her current roles, she was Deputy
Chief Executive Officer at the Royal Academy of Engineering
and served as Committee Specialist and later Specialist Achvisor
to the House of Commons' Science and

Technology Committee,

Charlotte Valeur - Non-Executive Director

Charlotte was appointed 1o the Board as an independent
Non-Executive Director in March 2018. In addition to her role on
the Board, Charlotte is a member of the Audit and Risk
Commitiee, the Group Sustainabiity Committee, and the
Remunerafion, Nomination, and Govemance Committee.

Charlotte has more than 30 years' experience in the financial
services industry and has held a range of executive and non-
exgcutive directorships in listed organisations, including
Kennedy Wilson Europe Real Estate Pic, 3i Infrastructure Pic,
Blackstone/GSO Loan Financing Ltd, DW Catalyst Fund itd,
NTR Pic, Renewable Energy Generation Lid, and JPMergon
Global Convertibles iIncome Fund Lid.



STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
tar the year ended 31 March 2023

KEY MATTERS CONSIDERED 8Y THE LAING O ROURKE CORPORATION LIMITED BOARD DURING

THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 INCLUDED:

TOPIC/ACTIVITY ACTIONS
PURPQOSE AND Continued 1o embed the Group’s purpase
VALUES and vaiuves in order to bring fogether the

enduring essence of Laing O'Rourke as a
business, which will guicie us today and in how
we evolve in the future.

STRATEGY AND Sustainability embedded into Group strategy

SUSTAINABILITY with current ambition to achieve operafional
net zero emissions by 2030 and to be fully net
zero before 2050.

Ongoing monitoring of the RDM framework
for $he Group, a key enabler for our
transformation sirategy to deliver our
‘Deliver 2025 strategy.

Reviewed the approprateness of the Group’s
carmporate structure in the context of the Board
ond shareholders’ centinuing drive for
simplicity. Continued monitoring of
appropriateness of KPls.

PROGRESS

Continued o ensure that the Group's purpose and
values are consistently appiied across the Group and
are embedded into our systems and processes,
including our responsible decision making (RDM)
framework which helps Us consider our values and
principles with regard 1o project governance,
recruitment, and ieaming and development,

and when making complex decision.

Purpose:

Pushing the boundaries of wlwial's possible, in service
of humanity.

Values:

Care [do the best for our people 1o improve their lives
and the world around us);

Integrity [do things the right way); and

Courage (wilingness to confront the unknown and o
chailenge the status quo).

Appoiniment of a Europe Hub Head of Susiainakbiiity
Rosselg Nicolin supporied by sustainabifity ambassadors
throughout the business.

Development of Laing O'Rourke values in the year with
our ‘care' vaue reflecting the importonce of
sustainabitity. This underpins haw the business goes to
work and creates a requirement for project feams fo
reflect the cornmunity in which they operate,

Wworking towards the reporting obiligations far the Task
Force on Climate-Related Financiai Disclosures {(see TCFD
disclosures on pages 46 to 52 of the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Croup Arnual Report and Accounts for
further detait).

Investment in research ond develcpment and
modein methods of constuction to support low
carbon products.

Regular reporting to the Board of progress on these
initiatives and connectivity with finance function
and operafions.

Continued careful monitoring by the Board to maintain a
realistic view of progress fowards environmental and
diversity targedts.

Conifinued work in bath hubs to ensure that the RDM
framework is applied in all aspects of business and, along
with our purpose statement and associaled vaolues, is
embedded inta our processes and systems. RDM
assessments made during the year included Berkeley
Square (Europe Hub).

Following creation of a singie consofidafed UK frading
group with effect from 1 Apnl 2022 and reduction in the
number of legal entities, work has continued to further
skreamine the number of legal entities in the Group.

Details of the KPls which have been approved by the
Board and against which progress will be meagsured are
outlined cn pages 2 and 3 of the Laing Q" Rourke
Corporation Lid Annual Report and Accounts.

Laing O'Rourke PI¢ ¢ 9




SIRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

TOPIC/ACTIVINY

ACTIONS

PROGRESS

FINANCIAL Evaluated the Group's performance against Detailed reports o each Board meeting from Group
PERFORMANCE budget and forecast. Chief Finonciai Officer and Group Commercial Director.
Approved the Group's annual report and Annyal report and accounts approved by the Board.
accounts.
Continued response to the challenges Programme of frequent Board meetings.
presented by inflationary pressures,
Consideration of the Groug's capital Regular detailed reports to each Board meeting
requirements. including full consideration of cashfiow forecasts and
refinancing options.
LEADERSHIP Continuved review of Board compaosition and Approved appointment to the Board as non-executive
AND PEOPLE merits of gender and ethnic diversity, directors of Mark Cutitani and Heather MacCallurm and
appointment of Cathal O'Rourke and Rebecca Hanley
as executive direciors. Also considered and approved
any new external non-executive appointments held by
our Board members,
Continued consideration of succession Succession planning continuing to evolve under the
planning for senior roles. stewardship of the Group Chair.
Continued consideration of purpose from an Executive inifiatives around defining purposeful
individual leadership perspective. leadership.
Continuved review of Executive Development Excellent executive engagement assisted by professional
Programme, a two year inifiaiive involving coaching in core areas of purposeful leadership and
circa 30 executives. The purpose §s 1o enable high perfomance.
each executive to review personal progress
asigde from everyday tasks, and to enable
the business to armive at an cbjective analysis
of bench strength in order to inform
succession planning.
RISK Continved development of Project Certainty Implementation of Project Cerfainty as the cperating
MANAGEMENT (our operating model for how we deliver model for all new projects in the UK, ensuring a personal
AND INTERNAL projects against a set of key principles to dive connection between project and business leadership
CONTROLS consistency across our portfolio} and a new feams.
.ODFIO.OCh *3 reﬂ;;gh_ng sofei\,k;ﬂ‘llrough Further progress made in developing and executing the
inclusion and wellbeing [see below). risk and intermnal audit programme during FY23. In April
Continued work on reviewing processes and 2023, decision taken to move from a fully insourced
controls across the business. internal audit model to a model that combines a
. I . bolstered second line of defence with external,
A reassessment of the risk and intemal audit ndependent assurance where required
requirements of the business. ! P a ’
RETHINKING Continued focus on safety of people, bath Engineered safety Is central to the way in which the
SAFETY THROUGH physical and psychological, in order to Group goes to work. This is underginned by our values,
INCLUSION AND  embed the appropriate culture, owned by which place care at the heart of the business.
WELLBEING all concemed. This approach focuses on

the application of engineered safety
(engineering out the risk}, modem methods
of construction (digital technology and
off-site manufacturing)., and human
performance (leadership, perscnal capacity,
and wellbeing).

Emphasis upon the pillars of engineered safety
{engineering out the risk), delfivery excellence human
perfomance, maximising the impact of digital
technology in the workplace and supporting our frades
to technicians plan.

Significant leadership training rolled out focusing on
psychologicatsafety in the Europe Hub. Project level
training programmes to be roled cut across the Furope
Hub in FY24.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

CORFPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The structure of the Corporate Governance Statement faliows
that recommended by the Wates Principies. Each of the Wates
Principles has been considered individually and in the context
of Laing O'Rourke's operations.

PRINCIPLE ONE
FURPOLE AND LA

As an engineenngy and construction crganisation, we are
committed to playing a vita! role in building stronger and

mare sustainabile cunnnunitics and cantitiiting 1o economic
growth. We are committed to the development of a workforce
culture based on whal we describe as 'Excellence Plus’
performance.

At the heart of cur business is our 2025 mission, which is fo
pecome the recognised leader for innovation and excellence
in the construction industry, and which we will achieve with a
strategy based on the values of the founding shareholders who
remain the two shareholders of the Group today and continue
to inform our direction. By leveraging the right technoicgy, we
will create positive change for our clients, their projects, wider
industry, and the communities we serve. These aims are clear,
powetful, and relevant fo the business challenges of today and
in the future and form a compelling guide to our goals and
how they will be achieved.

Further details of our strategy and infegrated business maodsl
are set out on pages 10 and 11 of the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Ltd Annual Report and Accounts.

Last year the Board approved our revised purpose and values
which have been informed by our Code of Conduct and by
listening to a broad span of cofleagues in both operating hubs.

The process of consulting on purpose and values emphaosised
the importance of engagement and diglogue with employees
and wider stakehalders when communicating the Group's
skategy, govemance, and culture, The year under review has
been spent embedding the purpose and vaiues in our
processes. Details of haw and why we engage are set out on
pages 17 to 19 in our reporting against Principie Six (Stakehoider
Refationships and Engagement) of fhe Wates Principles.

CONDUCT AND ETHICS

The Board sets and leads behaviours and culture to support the
delivery of the strategy. There is a formal process for the Board
to manage and approve conflicts of inferest within the director
group and directors are required 1o inform the Board of any
actual or potential conflicts of interest which may arise with
their ofher professional or personal interests.

The Board approved and continues to endorse the Group's
Code of Conduct, which sets out behaviours acceptable 1o us.
The Code of Conduct, which was reviewed and updated
during the year, defines our commitment to operating globatly
in accordance with ethical standards and the behaviours that
are expected of employees, supply chain partners, and other
stakeholders. The aim is io go beyond minimal compliance.
Our Code of Conduct ~ Doing the Right Thing —is publicly
ovailable on our website.

We made further enhancements during the period fo our
Group ethics and compliance programme, with a focus on
fraining our pecple, raising awareness of expected behaviours,
ond supplementing our existing suite of compliance policies
and controls tollowing bi-annual control reviews ard risk
assessments. Qur directors and senior executive team are

closely gligned with the continued evolution of cur ethics and

compliance programme by undertaking training, ensuring

ethics and compliance is a standing agenda tem in our

executive govemance forums, and increasing their accountability

for managing gifts, hospitality, and contlicts of interest.

FHIGHUGHTS

- Group risk assessment and bi-annual conirol reviews
completed and repored to the Board, Audit and Risk
Commitiee. and the Europe Hub Executive Commiittee;

- Global Code of Conduct training and Pledge certification by
all emplouyges;

— Moderm slavery raining to UK site managers;

- Modeitsskavery clearming macile o suppaort modem slavery
statement and legislative requirerments;

- Executive training on ethics and compliance;

- Group compliance campaign launched; and

- UK supply chain due diigence controls further enhanced.

PRINCIFLETWG
BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board performs its responsibilities with the assistance of six
Board Committees; the Group Executive Committee; the Audit
and Risk Commitiee; the Remuneration, Nomination, and
Govermnance Committee; the Finance Commitiee; the Group
Compliance Commitiee; and the Group Sustainabiiity
Commities.

The Group Chair and fhe committee chairs promote open
debate and facilitate constructive discussions. The Group
Chair, via the Group Company 3ecretary, is responsible for
ensuring that directars receive the appropriate level of
information in Board papers sufficiently in advance of meetings
o facilitate such discussions.

Board members have equal voting rights when making
decisions. The specific modus operandi of the Board is sef autin
the Company's articles of association, a copy of which con be
requested from the Group Company Secretary. All direciors
have equal access to the Group Company Secretary and may
take professional advice if desired at the Group's expense.

The Group B confident that the Board has the right skills and
experience to discharge its duties effectively. The directors are
clear on the amount of time required for their role and are
careful to balance this with the requirements of other roles (see
biographies on pages 7 and 8.

The Board aims to schedule regular visits 1o major projects and
directors are free to request such information as ihey may wish
oh any aspect of the Group’s operations. The Group provides
formal fraining for directors across o number of areas of focus
including directors’ duties and compliance ssues and has a
clear commitment 1o professional development. The Group
Chair undertakes a programme of discussion and cngoing
evaluation with each member of the Board aside from formal
meelings.

This evaluation includes a focus upon succession, which is
under regular review both at Board and operational level, ang
is of pariicdlar relevance to the drive tor transformation over
the course of the CGroup's business plan 1o 2030. The Group has
implemented an executive development programme.,
supported by a global leadership consultancy, designed to
identify and address development goals.

O aspiration to increase diversity across the business is a key
focus of our Group Chair, Sir John Parker, and we are proud
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

that. upon the expecied retum of Rebecca Hanley from
parental lcave, we will return to 45 per cent of our Board
positions being held by women. For the first time, in FY23, the
top 50 private companies in the UK were invited to take part in
the FISE 350 women in Leadership review and we achieved
sixth place among the largest private companies in the UK for
women in leadership posifions and third place for the
proportion of women on our Board. Within our sector we
ashioved fist pluce fur wormen both in leadership and on
boards. Our commitment to continue to drive diversity is set out
on page 28,

The Group Chief Executive Officer and the Board continuously
review memberships of the Board Committees, Hub Executive
Committees, and the executive leadership teams that support
them to ensure the right skill sets are focused on the right parts
of the business, faking into account the needs and interests of
the business as these evolve. Members of the committees and
leadership teams are profiled on pages 20 to 26 of the Laing
O’'Rourke Corporation Annual Report and Accounts.

GROUP EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board delegates the day-to-day operation of the Group to
the Group Executive Commitiee, which is chaired by Ray
O’'Rourke KBE, the Group Chief Executive Officer. The role of
the Committee is to recommend the Group strategy to the
Board, dlocate capital, and monitor execution to maximise
stakehaolder returns.

Throughout £Y23, the Committee ako considered matters of
inclusion and wellbeing. The Board resolved that the Group
Sustainability Committee would encompass inclusion and
wellbeing with effect from July 2023,

The Group Executive Committee performs its responsibilities with
regard to Laing O'Rourke Pl with the assistance of a sub-
commitiee - the Europe Hub Executive Committee.

Hub Executive Committees

The Europe Hub Executive Committee was chaired by the
Group Chief Executive Officer throughout FY23. The Group
Chief Operating Officer became Chair of the Europe Hub
Executive Committee from April 2023. The role of the
committee is to execute strategy and maximise free cash flows
from operations.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITIEE

The Audit and Risk Committee is chaired by Heather
MacCallum, a non-executive director. The role of the
Committee is to monitor the integrity of the Group's financial
statements, to oversee the relationship with the external
auditors including a review of independence and fees, and to
assess and direct the Group's approach to risk management.
For the purposes of the FY23 audit, the Committee met three
times in order to review draft financial statements and the
information supplied by management on significant
accounting judgements, as well as reviewing the going
concern stafement. The Commifiee also considered risk
rmanagement processes and findings and internal audit
outcomes and recommendations, following internal audits
undertaken across a number of areas of the business including
finance, and commercial. The purpase of conducting internal
audits is o assess the effectiveness of our internal controls
across the business. The Committee ako receives updates on
our ethics and compliance programme.

FEMIUNERATION, NOMINATION, AND

GOVERNANCE COMMINIEE

The Remuneration, Nomination, and Govemance Committee
is chaired by Sir John Parker, the Group Chair, The Committee
has clearly defined terms of reference, #s main function being
to make recommendations to the Board for the Group's
remuneration structure and to align remuneration to the lona-
term sustainable succens ol he roup.

FINANTE COMMITIEER

The Finance Committee is chaired by Sir John Parker, the
Group Chair, and is charged by the Boord with overseeing and
approving significant new financing arrangements. There were
no circumstances that arose this yeor that necessitated a
rmeeting of this Committee.

GROUP COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Group Compliance Committee is chaired by Madeleing
Loughrey-Grant, Group Director — Legal, Procurement (EU). and
Sustainability, and is supported by Compliance Committees in
each of our two hubs. Foliowing a review of our compliance
governance sfructure, and given the changing regulatory
landscape, we appoeinted a Group Head of Fthics and
Compliance and compiiance leaders in each hub and
undertook a reset to ensure we had the correct membership
and strategic focus. The Committees monitor emerging
compliance risks and measure mitigation progress on existing
compliance risks. The refreshed Group Compliance Committes
has strengthened the dialogue between the Board and Group
Executive (including at hub level] and the understanding of
compliance issues and planned mitigations.

GROUP SUSTAINABILITY COMMITIEE

The Group Sustainability Committee is chaired by Mark Cutifani,
o non-executive director, and is charged by the Board with
overseeing the environmental impact and sustainability of
operations and monitoring progress and performance against
targets. Since July 2023, the Committee also encompasses
inclusion and wellbeing.

The inaugural Group Sustainability Committee meeting took
place in November 2022. The terms of reference include
monitoring stakenolder sustainability concerns, considering ail
significant regulatory and voluntary developments in
sustainability, overseeing management processes designed to
ensure compliance with relevant policies, reviewing
sustainability incidents, and ensuring that learning is shared. The
Committee also ensures coordination of risk management work
with the Audit and Risk Cormmittee, The Commiittee is
particularly focused on the Net Zero Action Plan and tracking
progress on targets and, during FY23, working on our first full
TCFD disclosure, where we identify both areas of full
compliance and those areas where further work is required.
Our three headline targets are to achieve operational net zero
by 2030, to be fully net zerc before 2050, and to have a 50:50
gender balance in staff members by 2033. Significant progress
has been made against all three fargets to dafe, as explained
in more detail in the Sustainabitity Statement. The key
challenges that the Group Sustainability Committee recognises
are improving the quality of our data, concrete and steel
carben recluction, and reducing supply chain emissions.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
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PRINCIPLE THREE
DIRECTOR RESPONIIBILITIES

The Group govemance framework provides o clear statement
of directors’ roles and responsibilities and finks to policies and
procedures and delegations of autharity, with the purpose of
supporting effective decision-making and independent
challenge. This in furn delivers long-term value te the Group
and to stakeholders. Governance processes and policies are
reviewed and ypdated on a regular basis as part of the:
Group's commitment to corporate governance. the Board
beleves that the Group yuveormance fromework —including
communicaiion channels between the Company and ifs
shareholders who continue to hold leadership roles in the
Group —is effective and appropriate, with a planned review
over the next reporting period to provide additional assurance
to the Board and the Company’'s shareholders.

The Boord delegates day-to-day operational management of
the Group to the Group Executive Committee. Each of the two
hubs have their own executive commitiee (the Europe Hub
Executive Committee and the Australia Hub Executive
Cormmittee) which report directly into the Group Executive
Committee. The Board further delegates detailed and specific
miaiters to the other committees outined above whose role is
to consider specific issues of relevance fo Group governance
and to recommend a course of action to the Board. The Board
retains ulimate responsibility for any final decisions, subject to
any matters reserved for approval by the Company's
shareholders.

The Board includes a significant number of non-executive
directors wha are alse members of - or chair - the Board's

key corporate governance committees, inciuding the

Audit and Risk Committee, the Finance Cormmittee, the Group
Sustainability Committee, and the Remuneration, Nomination,
and Govemonce Committee. These oppointments provide
assurance that the appropriaie independence and balance
of Board, executive leadership, and non-execulive director
representation is maintained across these key governance
committees.

The non-executive directors are ol wholly independent and
have no material business or other relationships with the
Group which might influence their independence, judgement,
or decisions. Non-executive directors are able to fulfil their roles
in an independent and consiructive manner and the Group
Chair takes an active role in ensuring that the non-executive
directors are given appropriate opportunity 1o support
effective decision-making, review business performance,

and to challenge of influence management's decisions
where appropriate,

Directors are aware of their statutory and ethical duties -
including in relation to potential conflicts of interest which may
compromise objective decision-making. If an actuai or
potential conflict of interest arises, the Board (or one of its
Executive Committees) will manage the matier as appropriate.
Oepending on the circumstances, any conficted director may
be asked to abstain from contributing to the discussion or

voting. The Group reviewed and updated its conflicts of interest

policy during the period with copproval of the Boord.
Communications o roise awareness ond ensure timely
escalation and approval of actual or potential conflicts are
maintained throughout the business.

At asubsidiary level, appaintments to the boards of operating
subsidiary companies are reviewed and aligned with
membership of the Group and Hub Executive Committees and
the business unit and funclional leadership structure. Business
unit leaders are at the heart of operations, enabling direct
engagement with the relevant business unit employees and
ofher stakeholders such as clients.

The tems of reference and responsibiliies of the Board,
together with ifs key officers, commitiees, and subsidiory boards
ore set out clearly in the Group Governance tramewolk,
providing Clear lines of accountability and responsikility

for directors, committee members, and the executive
leadership lueam.

All direciors and business unil leaders receive meeting papers
ond informaftion through a secure digital portal managed by
the Company secretariat. Board and commitiee papers and
supporting information are expected to be timely, accurate,
comprehensive, and up to date, with a clear indication of
what is requested of each recipient and any relevant key
performance indicators 1o support monitoring of financial and
non-financial performance. The Board is of fhe opinion thaf the
Company's key reporting functions are appropriately staffed
and competent to ensure the integrity of information, with
financial information also externally audited and financia!
controls regularly reviewed.

PRGIECT DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY FRAMEWORK
Strong project governance is fundamental to our resiience and
cerfainty. The Project Delegation of Authority framework is
approved by the Board and sets out the cascade of
authorisations required for key project related decisions,
including ail project gateways, project related contracts, and
key supply chain approvals via o risk-pased approach for
decision-making. A digital risk calculator tool helps stait identify
and assess fisks and select the right delegation of qutherity for
the decision. The aim s to maintain absolute alignment, while
reserving authority at the level of the Board, Group Executive
Committee, and Hub Executive Committees to consider the
highest risk decisions.

In each hub the Project Delegation of Authority framework is
kept under review and amended as and when required by
approval of the Hub Executive Committee and then by

fhe Board.
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PRINCIPLE FOUR
OPPORTUNITY AND RISK

The Board oversees a contfinuous assessment of risks affecting the
Group and has in place the necessary oversight procedures for
the identification and effective mitigation of risk. Set out below
are some of the key confrcls and procedures that form part of
the frarmework for nnonugerment of the Group's principal risks
idenfified on pages 61 to 64 of the Laing O'Rourke Corporation
Ltd Annual Report and Accounts. These key controls and
procedures are regularty reviewed and, if necessary, improved.

As menticned above in respect of Board composition (Principte
Two] there is regular reporting to the Board of the Group's risk
and compliance programme and requirements. We continue
1o fecus onimprovements to our corporate risk management
framework in each reporting period, to ensure that it is fully ‘risk
enabled’ to best support the Group in achieving its strategic
objectives.

RISK AND INTERMNAL AUDIT

The Audit and Risk Committee provides oversight and monitoring
of the integrity of the Group's financial governance,

risk management, internal audit, and relationship with

external auditors.

During the year, a review was performed of the Europe Huls
internal audit function delivery model, The decision was taken
to move from a fully insourced internal audit model to a model
that combines a bolstered second line of defence with
external, independent, assurance where required, giving
access 1o a wider range of expertise.

The review of the enterprise risk strategy and supporting process
included an assessment of the potential for implementing a
new fisk management digital platform to enhance the Group's
abillity to gain further insight into collated risk data and hence
the managerment of the Group’s strategic objectives and
operational pedormance.

PROJECT GATEWAYS

We rely on a govemance framework to manage opportunities
and risk, provide control, and maintain an enduring,

sustainable enterprise. Forma! govemance gateways, coupled
with the Project Delegation of Authority framework, are in
place f¢ provide core controls. There are 10 project gateways,
ranging from opportunity identification, bid stage, delivery, and
malerial change during delivery through to final handover. All
gateways must be authorised in accordance with the Project
Delegation of Authoerity framewaork.

Our Governance Committees at Group and huiz levels
continue to regularly review and work on improvements to the
gateways, ensuring that they are streamlined, standardised,
and integrated in day-to-doy aclivities so that govemance
becomes an integral par of how each person goes to work.

The most significant step forward this year in respect of project
gateways has been commencement of a full digitisation
programme so that all gateways will, when the programme is
completed in the first quarter of FY25, be hosted on the same
digital platform. This will greatly enhance the efficiency of the
gateway process as projects move from bid stage, to set up.,
and throvgh delivery to completion. it will also support greater
colaboration within teams and greater alignment between the
hulzs as well as providing more transparency on the status of
projects from a governance perspective and better reporting
on progress.

Other recent enhancements have focused on;

- Managing material change in projects during the delivery
phase to ensure that proposed maternal changes are
properly scrutinised and are signed off by the appropriate
hub's executive teams;

— Infroduction of greater rigour into monthly contract review
rneetings, supported by the introduction of the Lunar
digitised platform. This has alse resulted in Clearer reporting for
contract review meetings across both hulss mearning that
issues are flagged early and escalated accordingly;

- Introduction of stronger scrutiny for the early pid stages of
projects to ensure better alignment of the business in its
approach to bids and full consideration of the strategic
objectives of the business so os to ensure that the right
opportunities and contracts are pursued; and

- Ensuring that bid setilement meetings betier enable our
executive members to review and assess key risks associated
with bids through clearer reporting.

All changes are underpinned by fraining and communication
strategies to ensure ocur people fully understand and comply
with our processes as they are implemented. We provide
opportunities for cur people to give feedback throughout the
year so that we can look for ways to improve every aspect of
CUr gOVENManNce processes.

Bl SETTLEMENT MEETINGS

Bid settlement meetings make sure that the right people are
together at the right time to discuss and reach alignment on all
bids, ensuring that the offers made o clients are risk-balanced
and robust. Where appropriate, members of the Board and/or
its Executive Committees attend bid setliement meetings. The
format and content of discussions in the bid settlement
meetings are constantly reviewed to ensure that they are as
effective as possible.

INTEGRATED GROUP MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
Qurintegrated Group Management Systemn (IGMS) contains
our enterprise-wide management system, knowledge, and
information. This is the repository for all processes, procedures,
technical information, general information, guidance,
templates, and checklists which enable people o be
organised for success and also provides guidance cn how they
should go to work. Key policies and procedures are approved
or endorsed by the Board and/or its relevant committees prior
to publication in iIGMS.

Part of our long-term strategy is to have simple and seamless
structures, processes, systems, and tools to enable smarter
working. Through our fransformation agenda (see page 17] we
continue to focus on resilience and certainty to deliver against
promises encompassing quality, cost, and time. To achieve this,
we have embedded a culture of delivering what has been
promised and complying with core business processes.

while improvements are made to IGMS throughout the year,
we undertake a cemprehensive annual review with key
stakeholders and functions to ensure that all content is
accurate and reflects our current business practices and ways
of working. The iGMS systern is also subject to the annual
ISOP001 review.
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To further piovide our peopte with a clear understanding of
IGMS, a mandatory IGMS corporate induction and eLearning
maodule has been implemented Group-wide. This ensures our
people are aware of the governance fromewaork and standard
processes, guidance, and templates that support the way we
go to work. In additicn, when change occurs on iGMS, we
ensure people are made aware of the changes through our
internal social media channel Viva Engage (formerly Yammer),
targeled endils 1o specific functions, general updates through
our business unit leaders, tearm townhait meetings, iGate posts,
and pop-ups on iIGMS project fabs. Futhermore, where there is
asignificant change, itis publicised at our LOR Live sessions (see
page 18},

DIGITAL

Cur digital strategy has evolved as our digital function and
capability have grown and is focused on continuing to build
shrong foundations in both our hubs by adopting digital
standards, improved digital literacy in our projecis and
developing end-to-end digital capabilities to support strategic
opportunities. Digital, alongside data, [T, innovation and
people, is a critical enabler to help us deliver against our
business priorities so that we can drive operational
improvement and positive cutcomes for our clients

and people.

We are systematically rolling out digital standards across our
bids and projects in order to: address the challenge of
coordinating design, ensure a better-connected workforce,
suppon digitally enabled manufacturing and assembly, ensure
engineered safety, and provide our clients with digital
gssurance and validaiion.

We dlso have a defined and clear vision for end-to-end digital
delivery for the Group, called Project of the Future. By
institutionalising consistency in how we go tc work, using
integroted and collaborative ways of working, and harmessing
technology-enabled efficiencies, Project of the Future will
deliver a new level of operational tfransparency, control,

and certainty in our projects and create a closed loop of
data-driven decision-making and continuous improvernent.
This mirrors how more digitally advanced engineering and
manufacturing enterprises operate. It will also support

greater productivity, our sustainability agenda, and inciusion
and wellbeing.

Qur clients are acknowledging and appreciating the
differentiation and drive te certainty that we can biring through
digital. Our facus on digitally-led modern methods of
construction and advanced manufacturing which have a
paositive sustainable impact is what delivers vaiue for our clients
ond differentiates us from our peers. The deployment and
uptake of digital technologies and ways of working has
continued to strengthen across all our projects, with strong buy-
in from our clients and supply chain parfners. As a resulf, we
have been able to realise lunigille benefits for our clients,
people, and partners, which include:

- Greater efficiencies for our people on the ground through
cdigilsahan of Cote processes such as dosign reviews;

- Mitigation of construction risks and cost impacts through
digital design for constructability;

- Graater transparency for aur clients through reai-time:
operational insights and data-enabled cost management;
and

- Improvement in the digital maturity ond efficiencies of our
supply chain pariners through coaching, digital integration,
and ways of working.

The use of digital technologies is also a key focus area for our
fechnical function. It enables us o implement real-time
reporting and project controls and is supporting us in our
readiness for statutory and regulatory change (in particular, the
Building Safety Act 2022 which came info force in the UK from 1
April 2023). The use of digital technalogies for information
sharing is being delivered through our design pariner
framework {DPF) which was developed in 2020 and has since
conlinued to evolve as we embed design leadership and
management in aiignment with our design partners.

In that respect, digitalis enabling us to deliver the targets that
underpin aur Design for Manutacture and Assembly (DA
70:60:30 operating model of manufacturing 70 per cent of a
project offsite, and so improving productivity by 60 per cent
and achieving a 30 per cent reduction in programme. it also
underpins our drive fo develop an engineered safety
approach with the gim of zero safety incidents onsite, to ensure
high-quality cutcomes with zero defects, and to underpin our
sustainability targets of achieving operational net zero carbon
by 2030 and net zero before 2050.
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PRINCIPLE FIVE
REMUNERATION

The Remuneration, Nomination, and Governance Committee,
chaired by Sir Johin Parker, the Group Chair, has clearly defined
terms of reference. its main function is to make
recommaendations lu lhe Board for the Group's temuneration
structure and to align rermuneration 1o the long-term
sustainable success of the Group. Tetal directors’ remuneration
is disclosed in note 7 to the financial staterments of | cing
O'Rourke Corporation Ltdl,

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Remuneration of directors of our subsidiary companies is based
on their particular management role and responsibilities, rather
than their appointment as a director of a specific legal entity.
Accordingly, remuneration of these directors is reviewed and
set by the Group Chief Executive Officer or Hub Managing
Director on behalf of their employing subsidiary, considering
any relevant input from the Remuneration, Nomination, and
Govemance Committee,

GENDER PAY GAP REPORTING
Decisions around pay, promotion, and reward are a critical

pilar to ensuring we attract and retain high-performing women.

The Group has reported on its gender pay gap annually since
2017 and our most recent Gender Pay Gap Report can be
obtained from our website. When our first Gender Pay Gap
Report was published in 2017 we acknowledged that our
gender pay gap was largely driven by under-representation of
women in senior managéement positions and we made ¢
commitment to do more fo attract, develop, and retain
women within the organisation. We are pleased to see that the
pay gap has narrowed. Upon the expected return of Rebecca
Hanley from parental leave, we will return to 45 per cenf of our
Board members being women. In addition to this, 43 per cent
of our UK leadership roles are held by women.

There was also significant improvement in the UK's early talent
recruitment which we see as one of the stepping stones fo
success in our longer-term diversity goals. Through concerled
efforts to attract and recruit more femaie candidates af
graduate level, 55 per cent of our 2022 graduate infake were
women. In addition, 46 per cent of professional apprentices are
women, we had 47 per cent women join our summer and
industrial placements, and we achieved a 54 per cent intake
of women into our trade apprenticeship programme, made
possible through our parinership with Women in Construction.
We are also working hard to ensure we suppor women's
career development through our talent programmes, so that
women move up the ranks from entry into the industry up into
senior management. As a result, we have increased female
appointments by 44 per cent year on year and we have seen
a 12 per cent increase in the proponion of women in senior
project roles.

We are driven by our longer-term goal to achieve 50:50 gender
representation in staff roles by 2033 and improve the quadity of
employment of all colleagues across construction which we
are confident will open up careers to more women and other
under-represented groups in our sector. In 2022 we signed up to
the Business in the Community Race at Work Charter which
outlines a numiber of commitments that are shaping our
Ethnicity Action Plan. As part of those commitments, we
monitor our ethnicity pay gap data and ensure we are taking
positive action o reduce the gap.

Our commitment to sustainable high performance provides a
framework for both men and women te increase their energy
and capacity through working and living in a more sustainable
way. We are confident that the engineering and censtruction
sector provides an exciting and rewarding profession. We are
leading the way with our investment in our DIMA 70:60:30
operating model which, among other goak, supports a
transition from 'trades to technicians'. These advances will help
pave the way for a new generation of men and women to
view the industry as attractive, welcoming. and fair.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

PRIMCIPLE SIX

STAKEMOLDER RELATIONSHIPS AND ENGAGEMENT

The Board collectively — and its directors individudlly - are clear that relationships with stakeholders are fundamental 1o the
business. They ako realise that effective and meaningful engagement with siakeholders requires regular dialogue.

An understanding of stakeholder groups and theirinterests enables the business 1o fake account of their needs and concerns,

allowing for the creation of value for all.

STAREHOLDER
GROUP HOw wE ENGAGE o
OUR CLIENTS We invest in early engagéemenl with Clients prior

to any formal decision-making processes aiming
to gain insights into their needs, challenges,
expeciations. and priorities. as well as
demonstrating our experience and capakility 1o
strengihen our position as a trusted acivisor. We
also seek early engagement with key influencers
1o clients including consultants and industry
badies to ensure they fully understand our
capabilities and offering, particularly in respect
of our operating model.

Working with clients in this manner, and
implementing o detailed strategy to win
planning process, has alliowed us to
demonsfrafe business value around innovafion
and excellence and showcase the benefits of
our in-house capabilities, o deliver certainty and
strengthen relationships with clients.

The way in which we engage with clients is
strategically planned through this process, with a
range of engagement activities such as
capability workshops, site tours, presentations,
and events depending on the existing
relafionship with the client and fhe purpose of
engagement.

Inferviews by independent researchers
continued to take place with clients, offering a
live source of feedback forhow we are
performing in the market and on projects.

HOW THIS STAKEHOLDER GROUP INFLUENCED
BOARD [ COMMITTIEE DISCLSSIONS AND DECISIONS

Underpinning the opproach 1o engogen@ﬂ is the -

Board's commitment to continuous improvement
through consistent project level feediback and dafa
insights across the project portfolio.

The Laing O'Rourke 2025 Transformation Agenda
incorpeorates five condifions {resilience, certainty, people,
next-generation methods and technology. and
responsible decision-making) to achieve cur strategic
objectives and to become the recognised leader for
innovation and excellence In the construction industry.
The priority conditions for FY23, endorsed by our Board
and Group Executive Commitiee, were resiience and
cerfainty, focusing on client engagement. productivity.
and digital data.

Our updated client engagement strategy and client
relaticriship management processes and platforms are
now embedded and being used to iImprove the level of
digital data and insights. Qur Group Chief Executive
Officer ensures that regular principalevel meetings are
held by our Board and executive committee members
with key clients to nurture and deepen our client
relationships and to work in partnership, so thot we con
ensure alignment between clients and our feams, but
also support innovation.

Qur client relationship management system is a
centralised digital system, aligned across the business. it
delivers consistent and transparent reporting to the
Board and our Executive Commitiees an key
performaonce indicators for engagement with clients, our
performance on projecis and application of lessons
learnt to upcoming opportunities. Our updated client
engagement strategy has also enabled the Board and
our Executive Committees to consider and guide our
engagement with clients and influencers throughout the
iifecycle of a project, from identifying opportunities, to
tendering, and through to delivery. In addition, our digilal
function is leading development of a platformn ta host
our sector plans, which will create a repository enabling
dlients to understand our capabllity it areas such as our
ability to deliver faster, sustainably, and with value-
oriented solutions.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
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STAKEHOLDER
GROUP

HOW WE CHGAGE

HOW THIS STAREHOLDER GrOUF INFLUENCED
BOARD / COMMITTEE DISCUSSIONS AND DECISIONS

QUR PEOPLE

Connecting effectively with our BEOpIe during the year to
understand their experience and tc communicale our
strategy has been as important as ever.

We prioritised communication. engagement, and
suppaort far cur workforce through many different
channels including:

— Daily, weekly, or monthly employee communications
and meetings frorm leaders;

- Making toolkits available to managers to ensure that
they could cascade consistent infarmation to their
teams in a personal way; and

— Increased interactive communication through LOR Live
{live broadcasts by ourleadership teams) to all of our
staff, facilitating real time question and answer sessions
with thoughts and opinions encouraged from both the
live and online audiences.

Communication was both proactive and interactive via
LOR Live, our internal social media channel Viva Engage
{formerly Yarmmer}, our intranet, townhall sessions across
the business and project visits {where possible) with
leadership briefings. The primary focus was ensuring that
all coleagues understood our purpose and values, the
imporfance we ploce on safety, the direction in which
the business is going. and how this impacts them and
their careers.

There has also been a renewed focus on leaming

and development through cur LOR Leam platform

and the appointment of leaming and development
representatives across all functions to help create leamning
pathways and competency assessment frameworks.

We underfook our annual employee engagement survey
in November 2022, and sow an improvement on an
already strong score for overall engagement, which is o
measure of how positive our people feel about their work.
There were also strong scores recorded across both hubs in
other areas, notably regarding confidence in leadership.
pride in working for Laing O'Rourke, and trust in leadership
to take action to address concems,

Managing the safety of our people remains a key
priority for the Board and cur Executive Committees
and remains foremost in all operational decisions
regarding access to our preject sites and offices.

The Board and our Executive Committees identified
Ilhe need to improve communication and
collabaration across the business and improve the
sense of connectivity between people, projects,
and functions. The executive leadership teams in
each hub made their expectations clear around
the need to be present onsite and in offices, rather
thon working remotely, in order to support
performance and connection. Ongoing
measurement and communication continue to
ensure that we have a highly collaborative and
connected culture, along with our people's access
to dynamic working. Other initiatives considered
and endorsed by the Board and our Executive
Committees during the financial year included:

— Roliout of progressive parental leave policy across
both hubs;

— Release in the Europe Hub in March 2023 of the
latest wellbeing bundle focusing on ways to help
people with their finances;

- The ongoing implementation of our Life at LOR
portal in the Europe Bub, which is a dedicated
one stop shop for health and wellbeing needs;

- Continued development of diversity
subcommittees empowering our peopie
to confribute to our diversity and inciusion
agenda; and

— The launch of 'Knowing Qur People’ reviews as
part of our tadent and development agenda as
well as our internal ‘Accelerate’ mentoring
programme in the Eurcpe Hub and external
partnership with Mentoring Circle.

QUR
SUPPLIERS

We strive for better engagement with our supply chain to
improve cutcomes and to address key challenges around
climerte change and sustainability as well as significant
compliance and regulatory requirements. During the year
under review, this work included launching a supply chain
carbon awdreness programime and working with our
supply chain to assess biodiversity risk in our value chain.

One of the most significant regulatory changes the Euvrope
Hub has been dealing with in FY23 is the introduction of the
Building Safety Act in the UK and ifs anticipated enabling
regulations, which requires close collaboration with our
supply chain geross product regulation, duty holder
obligations, competency, and information.

We continue to focus on transformation through data,
which enables us to gain supply chain insights and market
knowledge by building deeper relationships and ako to
identify best practice so that we can drive for excellence,
consistency, and certainty in outcomes.

The Board recognises that its supply chain partners
are integral to our abiiity to deliver world-class
projects for our clients. It is also recognised that our
partners are critical in helping the Group to achieve
its 2025 mission to become the recognised leader
for innovation and excellence and to achieve our
stretching sustainability targets. Members of the
Board and cur Executive Committees participate in
supply chain forums.

Updates on significant activities and developments
within our supply chain are provided te the Board
and our Executive Commitiees and are taken into
account when setting or approving annual
budgets, performance targets, and making long
term strategic decisions.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
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STAKEHOLDER GROUP HOW WE ENGAGE

GUR SUPPLIERS
continuved

OUR
FINANCIERS

OUR B
COMMUNITY

GOVERNMENT
AND
REGULATORY
BODIES

"~ Athub and project level, our social value team work to

HOW THIS STAKEHOLDER GROUP INFLUENCED
BOARD / COMMITTEE DISCUSSIONS AND DECISIONS

Given the challenging macre-economic climate in the UK,
we are In constant dialogue with our key suppliers to
collaboerate on multiple mitigation headings including
successful hedging of fuel, electicity, and gas prices across
our portfolio of projects.

The Group operates strict controls over working capital and
cash managemenf, engaging proactively on these confrols
with its financiers. A regular and fransparent reporting
diglogue is maintained with lenders, including regular
update calls and touch paints, visits 1o our project and
manufacturng sites, strategy briefings, general business
vpdates, and reporting against agreed financial
performance metrics.

achieve our social value strategy so that we build
opportunities in flocal communities thal deliver a lasting and
positive impact. We engage with o wide range of local
stakeholders to keep them informed of qur localinitiatives
and progress on projects, which deliver significant
economic and social value to local communilies.

We use a wide range of communication channels
(including social media} ta maximise the effectiveness of
engagement with the local community across our projects.

In the UK, we also organised a series of 'Hearls ond Minds'
events during Menial Health Awareness Week in May 2023
where we connected our wellbeing challenge to social
value, asking our people fo raise money for local charities
that support our social value shrategy and principles.

Further details of our social value work are set out within our
sustainability statement (see pages 26 to 28).

In the UK, through cur rade bodies, the Construction
Leadership Council (CLC) and Build UK, we are party to
regular dialogue with officials ot the Depantment for
Business and Trade, and fhe Department for Energy Security
and Net Zero. We alsa have regular dialogue with the
Cabinet Office,

During the financial year. this diologue was focused on
economic conditions, including the impacts of
unprecedented inflationary pressures on the sector, and
the persistent chalienge of securing the skills and labour the
secior requires. We also maintained dialogue with centra)
UK govemment departments responsible for delivery of
specific infrastructure projects, including the Department of
Health and Sociai Care for hospitals, the Ministry of Justice
tor prisons, and the Ministry of Detence regarding
modemisation of the UK defence estate.

We are commitied to developing and maintaining open
and effective working relationships with regulatory bodies
relevant to our business to ensure there is an understanding
of our operating model and infrastructure delfivery
capabilities in the UK market. Where appropriate, these
relationships are managed by senior leaders in our
executive team.

During the year the Group Executive
Committee realigned some functional portfolios
for greater efficiency and focus. For example,
the Europe Hub procurement function moved
across to be overseen by Madeleina Loughrey-
Grani, Group Director — Legal, Procurermnent
(EV). and Sustainakility,

Supplier payment practices are regulary
reviewed and we remain a committed
signatory to the UK's Prompt Payment Code.

All our financiers have, T heeded, direc ]l access
io the Group Chief Financial Officer, who is
member of the Board and also of the Group
and Hub Executive Committees. This ensures
that the directors and our senior ieaders are
kept regularly informed of developments
affecting our financiers and that their views are
faken properly into account when making
relevant operational and strategic decisions.

The Group Executive Committee has been
working on embedding the principles and
decision-making mechanisms of our responsibie
decision-making [RDM) framework inte our
Group processes and culture, The RDM
framework, launched in FY22, is our ethical
framework underpinned by universal principles
of sustainability that helps our Board, Executive
Committees and people consider our values,
principles and other external factors when
making complex decisions.

Our regular diclogue with government and
regulatory bodies includes members of the
Group Executive Committee and ensures that
the Board and our Executive Committees are
briefed on the potential impact of significant
developmenis in government policy,
procurement routes, and changes to laws
and regulafions.
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STRATEGIC REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

RISK APPROV AL

The Directons of Laing O'Rourke Corporation Ltd manage risk for - This report was approved by the Board on 31 October 2023
the Group as a whole, rather than for individual entities. For this and signed on behalf of the Board by:
reqson, the Company's Direciors believe that analysis of the

Laing O'Rourke Plc Group’s risks should be viewed in "~

the context of the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Lid Group. m,\_QA/

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Laing O'Rourke

Caorporation Lid Group. which include those of the | aing

Q'Rourke ['lc Group, ute discussed in the Laing O'Rourke ROB TURNER

Corporation Ltd Group's annual review which does not form COMPANY SECRETARY

part of this report.

The Directors of Laing O'Routke Corporation Lid manage the
Group's operations on a divisional basis. For this reason,

the Company's directors believe that analysis using key
performance indicatars should be viewed in the context of the
Laing O'Rourke Corporation Ltd Group. The performance,
position and future development of the Eurgpe Hubh of the
Luing O'kourke Corporation Ltd Group, which include those of
the Laing ©'Rourke Plc Group, are discussed in the Laing
O’'Reurke Corporation Lid Group's annual review which does
not form part of this report. Copies of fhe Laing CG'Rourke
Corporation Ltd Annual Report and Accounis are available at
www ldingorourke.com/company/governance/annualkreport.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

for the year ended 31 March 2023

The Directors present their Directors’ Report together with the
Audited Financial Statements of the Laing O'Rourke Plc Group
and Company for the year ended 31 March 2023

BRANCHES QUTSIDE THE UK
A branch operating in Hong Kong is consolidated into the
Group's resulls,

PRINIIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group’s grincipal aclivilies are:

COONSTRIT T

- Programme management, construction and building, civil
cngincorng, and infrastricture and support services.

MANUFACTURING
- Building products and manufacturing construction products.

BLANT HIRE
- Plant hire and operations.

SERVICES
- Design services, and building operations management.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results for the financial year are set out in the Consofidated
Income Statement on page 34.

Graup revenue for the financial year was £2,034.9m (FY22:
£1.807.3m). The loss after tax for the year was £{128.9)m {FY22:
profit of £20.2m)}. Capital employed by the Group at 31 March
2023 was a deficit of £292.0m (FY22: deficit of £161.6m).

No dividends were deciared or paid during the financial year
[FY22: £nil).

GQOING CONCERN

The aklity of the Group to continue s a going concem is
dependent on the perdomnance of the wider Laing O'Rourke
Carparation Ud Group (the ‘Laing O'Rourke Corporation Group').
The Laing O'Rourke Comporation Group continued o show growthn
inrevenue, however delivered a pre-exceptional EBIT loss of
£{78.8)m in FY23, driven by confinued inflationary pressures,
challenging defivery on projects experiencing significant change,
and delays to capital investment in UK public-sector work,

Despite these pressures, year-end net cash continued to perform
strongly at £286.3m (FY22: £339.1m} and the year-end Laing
O'Rourke Comorafion Group order book grew by 16 per cent fo
£10.0bn (FY22: £8.6bon). Despite the very high inflationary
envirponment experenced in FY23 and the continued (albeit
limited) impact of Covid-19. the Laing O Rourke Comporation
Group's order book has continued to grow, its fransformation plan
is progressing well, ond the Laing O'Rourke Comoration Group
remains committed toits strategic sargets.

As aresult of its continued coreful cash management, the
Laing O'Rourke Corporation Group did not request any
waivers, or breach any, of its banking covenaonts during the
financial year. Affer the year end, on 30 fune 2023, the Group
agreed a reset af its future covenants and on 19 Octaber, the
term of the Group’s UK core bank debt, an unsecured £35.0m
RCF, was extended by two years, with a revised expiry date of
3 April 2026. Prior 10 this extension the Group received a
fermporary waiver of ifs loan-to-value covenant related to a
propeny loan which was then remedied as part of the
extension and was also extended to 3 April 2026.

Following the covenant reset, full covenant compliance
continues to be forecast within beth the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Group's ‘management case’ business plan and its
'severe but plausible’ downside scenario over the period

assessed to 31 March 2025. Details of RCF covenants are
provided in nofe 29.4 fo the financial statements.

In forming their conclusion as to the appropriateness of
confinuing o apply the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing these financial staterments, the directors have
reviewed both the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Group's
‘management case' forecast, representing management's
besi estimate of the future performance of the Laing O'Rourke
Corparation Group, including cash fiow forecasts to 31 March
2025, and a severe but plausible downside scenario. The
directors have also considered the way in which the Laing
O'Rourke Corporation Group govems and manages its cash
testrves and exercises fight contrl aver ifs wortking capital as
fllustrated by its ligquidity performance during the Covid-19
pandemic, Brexit and subsequent inflationary period.

The directors applied a consistent approach in assessing going
concem across each of the Laing O'Rourke Corporation
Group's main businesses in the UK, Australia, and the Middie
East in preparing a moanagement case and considering a
severe but plausible mitigated downside scenario. The directors
aiso carefully considered the forecast period 1o be reviewed as
part of the going concern assessment and, due to the lead
time tor securing new projects, the perod of visibility on future
cash fiows, and management’s usual forecast cycle,
concluded that considering a 17 month period to March 2025
was aoproprnate.

The RCF, which funds the UK business, permits loans to be made
from Austraiia to the UK and Middie East, and back, subject to
certain restictions which do not impact management's abiiity
to manage UK, Australia, or Middle East liguidity. This allows
liquidiity 1o be managed on a Laing O'Rourke Corporation
Group basis, subject to directors’ duties in each of the regions,
and therefore the most retevant forecast to assess the going
concern basis of accounting for the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Group as a whole is a Laing O'Rourke Corporation
Group view of liquidity and covenants.

The key assumptlions and areas of estimation uncertainty
reflected in the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Group
‘management case’ business plan include:

- Construction activity is assumed o continue in ine with
current levels, with no additional material deterioration
in praject gross margins or the warking capital position;

- Inflationary pressures forecast 1o be experienced during FY24
and FY25 can be accommodated within the forecasts of
future costs aready made in FY23, existing project inflafion
allowances and general contingencies. The Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Group has undertaken a detailed review of the
possible impact of infiation on the estimated final cost of its
projects and has concluded that existing contingencies are
expected to be sufficient to materiolly cover the risk on
aexisting projects in the period to 31 March 2025, with this risk
being addressed at the tender stage for new projects;

- The ‘'maonagemeni case' cash assumption, based on the
latest arbitral timetable, forecasts for the settiement of the
claim, described in note 2.26(b) and note 25 of Laing
O'Rourke Corporation Ltd's Annual Report and Accourits,
outside of the going concem period [June 2025, being the
earliest expected settlerment date), but has considered the
impact of the claim on the Laing O'Rourke Corporation
Group as part of this review and concluded that this claim
does not adversely affect the Laing O'Rourke Corporation
Group's nger tarm viobility:
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OIRECTORS' REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

GOING CONCERN [CONTINUED)
— Wark-winning continues o ieflect curent expectations and is
in line with average win rates in previous years;

-~ Confinued support of our supply chain in ferms of product
material, labour supply and flexibility in payment terms. Based
on our detailed assessment, our supply chain management,
direct delivery mode! and experience to date, disruption te
the supply of materials to projects and shortages ol labour, it
experienced. can be accommodated within existing project
programmes or programme contingencies;

- No impaosition of a Covid-19 related lnckdown on the
construction sector in the Laing O'Rourke Corporation
Group's main markets;

— The underlying relevant market drivers continue as expected
for construction work in infrastructure, power generation,
education, healthcare, justice, and residential house
building; and

- The ‘'management case’ cash assumption that there are not
expected to be any adverse material cash settlements in the
period to 31 March 2025 relating to the contingent liability
matters disclosed in note 29 of the Laing O'Rourke
Comoration Ltd's Annual Report and Accounts.

The Board's ‘management case’ forecast does not

anticipate any breaches of new banking covenants relating to
the UK RCF in the period to 31 March 2025 and this forecast
delivers a comfortable level of Laing O'Rourke Corporation
Group operating cash liquidity headroom across the same
period in each of the UK, Australia, and Middle East.

In addition to consideration of its ‘management case’

most likely outcome, the directors have also considered a
number of downside scenarios and mitigating actions in light of
the potential uncertainties created by the inflationary
envircnment, timing and quanium of provisions descriced in
note 25 of Laing O'Rourke Corporation Ltd's Annual Report and
Accounts, supply chain disruption risk and the impact of any
contingent liabilities or legacy disputes. These scenarios have
been prepared using certain key assumptions, with particular
focus on compliance with financial covenants in the UK and
Australia and liquidity headroom across the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Group and all three regions. Of these downside
scenarios, the severe but plausible scenario described further
below is the most severe.

Key assumptions in the Loing O'Rourke Corporation Group's
severe but plausible scenario include:

- Lower revenue and trading volumes in the UK and Australia
and three-month delay of all new construction work in the
Middle East;

- Potential negative impact on the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Group's ability to maintain its project-level
working capital profile. Note that the Laing O’Rourke
Cormporation Group has consistently achieved/delivered the
managemeni case working capital profile across the last 4
years despite a challenging market backdrop;

— Cerlain specific project risks, as described in note 2.246{a) of
Laing ©'Rourke Corporatfion Ltd's Annual Report and
Acceunts, and risks o cash generation initiatives; and

- Potential cost impacts of infiation on the curent portfolio of
brojects over and above those that have already been
adjusted for cannat be dealt with via contingencies, resulting
in lower margins.,
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The overallimpoct of the abuve downside assumptions resulls
in an approximate £10é6m reduction in inflows and @ £2m
increase in outflows during FY24 and FY25.

Mitigating actions under management’s control which would
be taken and have been assumed in the severe but plausible
downside scenarnio are:

— Halting discretionary spend in FY24 and FY2b across o
number of long-term strategic initiatives;

- Delaying any discretionary reward spend;
- Sale and leaseback of property owned by the Group; and
— Delaying non-essential capital expenditure.

Further actions that could be taken in the event of a severe
put plausible downside but have not been assumed in the
model are:

- Further reduction in discretionary spend and non-essenfial
caopital expenditure;

- Further actions 1o manage working capital; and
- Reductions in headcount.

Even unider the severe but plausible downside scenario there is
no forecast breach of UK covenants that would result in an
Event of Default under the facilities, and sufficient liguidity is
maintained across the Laing O'Rouwrke Corporation Group.

Qutside of the mitigations entirely within the Laing O'Rourke
Comporation Group's control, as summarised above, in the
event of g severe deterioration in frading or other threat te the
Laing O'Rourke Corperation Group's liquidity or covenant
headroom, the directors would also seek to:

- Dispose of specific assets; and

- Raise additional external funding to supplement the modest
£35.0m RCF, including refinancing of Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Group plant and machinery assets.

In addition, the directors have also assessed the extent of
downside that would be required for liquidity tc drop below
zero {a reverse stress-test scenana):

— This considers the revenue reduction reguired versus the
‘management case’ in order for liquidity o drop below zero
during the period to March 2025. This would require revenue
to reduce or be delayed by £1.1bn across FY24 and FY25 {a
22 3 per centreduction or delay in revenue compared 1o the
management case), with resultant loss of margin. with no
mitigation; and

— A similar reduction inrevenue would be required for a
sustained breach of the minimum liguidity covenant under
the UK RCF.

The directors have carefully considered the likelihood of the
above range of scenarios and remain confident that the Laing
Q'Rourke Corporation Group is well positioned to deliver its
management case forecast in light of the foliowing:

- laing O'Rourke’s investment in developing sectorleading
maodem methods of construction (MMC) capability, its
proven track record against a challenging market backdrop,
alower inflationary environment and reduced Covid-19
uncertainties, integrated defivery model, streng client
engagement and resilience to supply chain risk ensure that it
is well positioned fo continue to win work;
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DIRECTORS' REFPORT CONTINUED
for the yvear ended 31 March 2023

GOING CONCERN {CONTINUED)

- The current order book for the Laing O'Rourke Corporation
Group has increased to £10.5bn (as at 30 September 2023)
{£8.6bn as at 31 March 2022) as a result of continued work-
winning success in both the Europe and Austrafia Hub. The
Laing O'Rourke Corparation Group now has all of its
expected FY24 revenue either secured or anticipated and 83
ner cent of its expected FY25 revenue is at the secured,
anficipoted, or preferred bidder stage; and

- Cash performance in the six months ended 30 September
2023 is above the management case farecast for the Laing
O'Raurke Corporation Group.

In reaching its conclusion on going concem, the Laing
O’Rourke Corporation Ltd Board has also considered the lkely
fiming of the cash cutflow associated with the provisions
described in note 25 of the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Lid
Annual Report and Accounts. The liming of this outilow is
expected to fall oulside the going concern review pericd
which runs until 31 March 2025 and has, therefore, not been
incorporated into the going concern assessment. However, the
Laing O'Rourke Corporation Lid Board has considered a range
of plausible downside outcomes associated with this provision
and remains confident that, given the continued and
projected strength of the Australion business perfformance, it
has adequate resources to manage the plausible downside.

n the event that o plausitle downside scenaric materialises in
mid-2025, the Laing G 'Rourke Corporation Group could pursue
a number of mitigating actions in order to ensure its continued
financial viabiify. These would be similor fo those detailed
within the severe but plausible going concem review above
and could also include: further reductions in discretionary
spend, further headcount reductions, futther reductions in
capital expenditure, a possible disposal of Laing O'Rourke
Cormporation Group assets, and further actions o manage
working capital.

The Laing O'Rourke Comoration Lid Board has carefully
considered thase factors likely to affect the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Group’s future development, performance, and
financiol position as outlined above, in rekation 1o the ability of
the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Group to operate within its
current and foreseeable resources — both financial and
operational.

The Laing O'Rourke Corporation Group has sufficient financial
resources, committed banking facilities, secured revenue, and
a strong order beok. Based on this assessment, the directors
have a reasonabie expectation that the Laing O'Rourke
Corporation Group has adequate resources to continue in
existence and pay its debts as they fall due in the period o 31
March 2025 and there are no material uncericainties thal may
cast significant doubt on the Laing O 'Rourke Cerporation
Group's going concemn status,

The Laing O'Rourke Plc Group has, therefore, continued to
adopt the going concem basis of accounting in preparing the
Laing O'Rourke Pic Group's financial statements. The finoncial
statements do not, therefore, include the adjiustments that
would result if the Laing O'Rourke Plc Group were unable fo
confinue as a going concern.

Refer to note 2.26 e} and pages 21 to 23 relating to
Qoing concem.

POSI BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The Group has in place an unsecured revolving credit facility
{'RCF'} with HSBC for £35.0m. The loan had an initial expiry date
of 3 October 2023, which was extended fo 3 Aprii 2024 during
FY23 and further to 3 April 2024 since the year end. As part of
the latest extension, covenants related to interest cover and
net debt 1o EBMTDA were replaced by an adjusted EBITDA
covenant, and the minimum liquidity covenant was amended
to include three forecast monih-end periods. The facility has
peen mainluined at £35.0m through to 31 March 2625, at
which point quarterly £2.5m reductions commence, reducing
the facility o £25.0m by 31 December 2025.

HRBCYORS

Those directors who served during the year and up to

the date of signing are set out on page 2, with their
appointment/resignation date if applicable if affer 1 April 2022.

DIRECTORS INDEMMITIES

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the Directors have
ihe benefit of an indemnity which is a qualifying third-party
indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of the
Companies Act 2004, The indemnity was in force throughout
the tast financial year and is currently in force. The Company
also purchased and maintained throughout the financial year
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in respect of iiself and
its Directors.

EMPLOYMENT POLICY

The Group conlinues to provide employees with relevant
information and 1o seek their views on matters of common
concem through their representatives ond through line
managers. Priofity is given to ensuring that employees are
aware of significant matters affecting the Group's trading
position and of any significant organisational changes.

The Group treatls each application for employment, training,
and promotion on merit. Full ond fair consideration is given to
both disabled and non-disabled applicanis and employees.
If existing employees become disabled, every effort is

rmade to find them appropriate work, and training is provided
if necessary.

HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE

The Group is committed to ensuring the health, saiety, and
welfare of al employees ot work. All reasonable measures
have been taken to achieve this policy. Arrangements have
been made to protect other persons against risk to health and
safety arising from the activities of the Group’s employees
when at waork.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group's research and development expenditure of £46.6m
(FY22: £33.0m) supports the development of construction
technigues to deliver quality, certainty, and value for our
customers.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Details on future developments are presented within the
strategic report on page 3 to 20.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The directons of Laing O'Rourke Corperation Lid manage
financial risks for that Group as a whole, rather than as
individual entities. For this reason, the Company's directors
believe that analysis of the Company's risks should be viewed
in context of the Laing O'Rourke Corporation Lid Group. The
principal risks and uncertainties of Laing ©'Rourke Corporation
Ltd, which include those of the Company, are discissed in the
Laing O'Nourke Corperation Lid Annual Report and Accounts,
which does not form part of this report.

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT STATEMENT

Allof the Group's UK employees are contracted by Laing C'Rourke
Services Ltd. There is close inferaction between the Board of the
parent company, Laing O'Rourke Comoration Ltd, its executive
committees, and the boards of the Group subsidiaries. The Group
adopls any specific policies and procedures set on behalf of the
parent Board, including the Group Govemance Framework,
Cormporate and Project Delegations of Authority, the Code of
Conduct, the Risk Management Framewark, and Safety
Management Systerm and policies and procedures of the Group.
The directors have delegated some of their operational
management responsicilities o one or more of the Group
executive committees, on which at least one director acts as a
representative of the Company.

The directors pro-actively accept and seek to understand the
interests of our people throughout the organisation from our
site-pased workforce to our project teams and functional
feams. By understanding the interests of our people, we can
fake account of their needs and concerns, allowing for the
creation ot value for the Group and for its people.

The directars contfinue to provide employees with relevant
information and to seek their views on matters of common
cencem through many channels, such as: employee
representatives and through line managers, townhal meetings,
through intemal communications sent out to all employees by
email on Viva Engage (formerly Yammer — cur infemal social
media site} and iGate, and via monthly live-streamed LOR tive
sessions where our senior leaders, Board mambers, and
execulives are able to speak o our people and raise awareness
on curent ssues or concems and answer gquestions both from
the floor, in person, and online. Priorty is given to ensuring that
employees are aware of significant matters affecting the Group’s
trading position and of any significant organisational changes.

Our policies and practices have been further updated this year
to align with the work the Board and executives have done on
our purpose statement and our underpinning core values of
care, integrity, and courage. In July 2022 we launched o
conflicts of interest policy which communicates our
commitment to managing conflicts of interest and to
protecting the business from comupt activity. In the folicwing
month, in August 2022, our Code of Conduct ‘Doing the Right
Thing' was refreshed and launched to ensure we suppert a
culiure founded on integrity and supported by ethical actions.

The Code of Conduct defines our commitment to operating
globally in accordance with ethical standards and behavicurs
expected of al our people. supply chain partners. and other
stakeholders, The aim is to go beyond minimal compliance.
The Code of Conduct Doing the Right Thing can be found on
the Group's website. At the same time, we launched a new
whistieblower policy to encourage a culture that supports
disclosure of wrongdcing as soon as possible, that reassures
staff they are able to raise concerns in confidence and without
fear, and that provides our people with guidance on how fo
raise concerns.

We remain committed fo diiving transtormation through our
diversity and inclusion agenda. This work is undertaken by the
Group Diversity and Inclusion council chaired by non-executive
director Charlotte Valeur and made up of operational
execulive members, The Council has clear terms of reference
and is tasked with facilitating the creation of a diverse and
inclusive organisation that leaves a positive legacy. In the
Furope Hub we also apponted u new Europe Hub Head of
Diversity and Inclusion, Emma Shakespeare, who took up her
paost in June 2022. The work of the Group Diversity and Inclusion
council is underpinned by a number of subcommittees which
are tasked with considering and recommending actions to the
council. We have ten employee led subcommittees spanning
the following areas cf interest: carers; gender; disability;
ethnicity, religion ond cultural heritage; LGBTQ+; families who
live abroad; single parents; part-time workers; working parents;
and menopause. The purpose of the subcommittees is ta
provide employees with o forum te be heard, an opportunity to
influence waork peing done in the area of diversity and
inclusion, and to drive change.

In the course of FY23 we hove developed a diversity and
inclusion strategy focussed on five pillars: atfraction and
retention, progression, leadership accountability, inclusive
culture, and operational excellence. We have established
gender-based targets with a number of initiatives in place that
sit under the five pillars to accelerate progress in meeting those
gender targets. For exampile, through balanced shortlists,
diverse interview panels, and advertising flexibility of roles. We
have also partnered with Mentoring Circle to set up mentoring
schemes from the start of 2023 as well as setting up our own
internal mentoring scheme focused on accelerating the
progression of our female talent.

Last year we undertook a piece of work to listen to the voices
of women working across all levels of our business tc better
understand their true, lived experiences. Women spoke up -
their true stories were compiled into a piece of perfformance
narrative that was then played back to our senior leaders and
has since been cascaded across our business, encouraging a
wider discussion around inclusion to better understand what
the experience is for all working across our business and 1o help
identify opportunities for greater inclusion.

Another significant achievement in FY23 has been the launch
of our industry-leading global equal parenthood leave,
opening up parental ieave on equal terms to all expectant
parents regardless of gender or how they become a parent.
This 1s a significant step towards leveling the playing field for all.
We were also invited in FY23 fo take part in the FISE350 Women
in Leadership review. For the first time the top 50 private
companies in the UK were invited to take part and we came
out in sixth place amongst the largest private companies in the
UK for women leadership positions and third for women on
boards. Within cur sector we came out in first place for both
women in leadership and on boards,

We have reported on our gender pay gap annually since 2017
and on 30 March 2023 we published our gender pay gap
report {available from our website), When our first report was
published in 2017 we acknowledged that cur gender pay gap
was largely driven by under-representation of women in senior
management positions and we made a commitment to do
more to attract, develop, and retain women within the
organisation. We are pleased to see that the pay gap has
narowed. Upon the expected retumn of Rebecca Hanley from
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EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT STATEMENT {CONTINUED)
parentalleave, we will retumn to 45 per cent of our Corporation
Board members being women. In addition to this, 43 per cent
of our UK leadership roles are held by women. We are driven by
our longer-term goal to achieve 50:50 gender representation in
staff roles by 2033 and improve the quality of employment of all
colleagues across construction which we are confident will
open-up careers to more women and other underrepresented
groups in owr sector, There was alkse significant improvement in
our early falent recruitment which we see as part of our
stepping-stories (o success in our longer-tenm diversity goals.

Through concerter effarts 1o atiract and recruit mere female
candidates at graduate level, 55 per cent of our 2022
graduate intake were women. In addition, 46 per cent of
professional apprentices are women; we had 47 per cent
women join our summer and industrial placements and a 54
per centintake of women into our trade apprenticeship
programme, made possible fhrough cur partership with
women in Construction.

We are also working hard to ensure we support women's
career development through our talent programmes so that
women move LP the ranks from entry into the industry vp into
senior management, We also use events such as intermational
waomen in Engineering Day as an opportunity to provide
visibility 1o roie models in our business and 1o inspire women into
the industry. As a result, we have increased female
appointments by 44 per cent year on year and we have seen
a 12 per cent increase in the proportion of women in senior
project roles.

Furthermore, we are confident that the engineering and
construction sector provides an exciting and rewarding
profession. We are leading the way with our investment in our
Design for Manufacture and Assembly (DIMA) 70:60:30
aperating modei of manufacturing 70 per cent of a project
offsite, 5o Improving productivity by 60 per cent, and achieving
a 30 per cenl reduction in progromme, which supports o
transition from frades 1o technicians. These advancements will
help pave the way for a new generation of men and women
to view the industry as attractive, welcoming, and fair.

Whilst gender has been our starting point, we are also very
much focused on creating a diverse and inclusive environment
more broadiy.

In 2022 we signed up to the Business in the Community Race at
work Charter which outlines a number of commitments that
are shaping our ethnicity action plan. As part of those
commitments, we will be publishing an ethnicily pay gap report
for FY23. We have been working with the 10,000 Black Interns
programme and the Association for BME Engineers in the UK
(AFBE-UK} which promotes higher achievements in education
and engineering parficularly among people from black and
minoiity ethnicity backgrounds, in order to attract more people
from diverse ethnic backgrounds into the industry and to Loing
O'Rourke.

Our Pride Network seeks to suppoert all aspecis of inclusion
within the business, including cur commitment that our LGBTQ+
colleagues feel they can be the best version of themselves
within our organisation. Over the year we have had an
ambitious and successful programme of activities, driven and
supported by the network, and backed up by the global
leadership team. We have run g series of awareness sessions on
LGBTQ+ issues and we continue to partner with Stonewall, also
taking part in the annual Stonewall index.

we have also launched our Inclusion Ally network. The role of
the ally is to help embed diversity and inclusion initiatives at a
local level and alko feedkack on what they are seeing and
hearing as well as being a source of support for anyone who
has experienced or observed an act of exciusion. Gur intention
s o have one 1o two allies in every team.

Another highiight this year was achieving a disabiity confident
level 3 in December 2022 which is the first Hme this has been
achieved in the UK consiruction secior.

Our north star in alf of our work on diversity and inciusion is our
commitment that when we go o work, we should feel we are
goina to a place where we are accepted, understood, and
valued, and that we should all go to work cottiriilled to
making others feelthe same way.,

for the third year, we conducted a Group-wide employee
engagement survey of all our employees which is one of our
biggest listening exercises where peopies’ survey responses and
feedback directly feed into our strategy and business plan, In
the Furope Hub the response rate was an impressive 74 per
cent. The two significant highlights from the survey were:

- Our overall engagernent score, which is a measure of how
positive people feel about their work, increased from an
already above average percentage the previous year. We
believe this indicates the discretionary effort our people are
willing to put into their work which leads to higher overall
satisfaction for our people and increased productivity and
business success; and

- Our biggest gain was in the number of peopie who believe
thot acticn will lake place as o result of the survey which
demonstrates our people are invested in providing feedback
and that they irust in our leadership teamn to take action.

Following analysis of the survey results in November 2022 by our
leadership, leaders are working on action plans to address
paricular issues identified in their teams and also to celebrate
the successes wifh actions driven by employee engagement
chiampions nominated from different areas of the business. In
addition, corporate action plans have been produced for
each hub with signoff from each hub’s execulive committee.

Given that our workforce is diverse and spread across many
different locations, we also support and enable exchange of
views with leadership through town halks. breakfast briefings,
roadshows, our intranet, Viva Engage (formerly Yammer - our
infernal social media site], away days, Human Capital
Broadcasts, and the Project Leaders Conference. Directors also
visit praject sites. as o Board or individually, on a regular basis.

We continue to engage with our employees' welfare needs
through our 'Life at LOR" which is an approach to welloeing
based on five themes: financial, social, workplace, mental, and
physical. it is supported by our Life at LOR wellbeing hut which
is our ane-stop-shop for a wealth of information, rescurces, and
services to support the wellbeing of everyone af Laing
O'Rourke. Cur mental health champions have had a
considerable positive impact in supporting employees and
raising general awareness of the importance of mental health.

In respect of remuneration, we seek to set fair and reasonable
policies for remuneration both at senior level and in the
broader operating context and a Remuneration, Nomination,
and Governance Committee, chaired by an independent
Non-Executive Director, is in place to consider remuneratiion
policies. In practice, the commercial headwinds we (and the
industry genetally) e facing due to the wider 2rnnomic and
paolitical context of Brexit and the war in Ukraine, causing supply
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issues anct cost inflation, have constrained the ability to review
remuneration levels in FY23. Even so, we were able to
undertake an overall salary benchmarking exercise and pay
review for our staff and workforce and to make pay awards as
appropriate. We do not operate an employee share scheme.

We are incredibly proud of our intermnal executive 'GUNS' two-
year development proaramme, which is the talent progrararne
designed to nurture and support our future and current key
leaders and is aligned to our mission to be the recognised
leader for innovation and excellence in the construction
industry. The selective and highly cormpetitive programme
develops our high potential pecple to become the next
generation of leaders with the ability to operale effectively as
part of the Group executive committees or be leaders of
business ynits, major capital projects, or functions. Qur latest
GUNS cohort of talented people recently completed thelr two-
year programme.

In addition, we operate a *Young GUNS' prograrmme which is
designed to nurfure and develop our brightest and best early
talent. The programme chailenges paricipants io think
creatively and develop their own leadership styles. The 18
month programme builds leadership skills, equipping
parficipants to take on senior project roles.

QOur developrment programmes are not separated from
operations Hbut are run in close connection with the wider
business and colleagues; for example, through GUNS
participants presenting individual TED-style talks an topics of
personal interest to them.

In addition, we are running an ongoing Rethinking Safety
through Inclusion and Wellbeing training course for all people in
leadership and management positions in the UK to ensure that
we are embedding and supporting consistent principles of
inclusive leadership and operational excellence in health

and safety,

The directors believe that employee interests and needs are
always evolving and changing. and they pride themselves on
continuous engagement with our valued people,

SUSTAINABILITY

This has been a pivotal year in developing our sustainability
strategy and setting up the right structure to deliverit. Our
expefienced and passicnate pecple are focused on driving
sustainable practices and innovation across our global cperations
and the response across the business has been incredibie.

I am proud to work with so many people who, regardless of
their role or seniority, are ready to take on the challenge of
reducing our climate impact. With their support we have
achieved some impressive early results, and at the same time
have developed our medium- and long-term plans to address
the climate and wider sustainability imperatives within the
fimescales needed.

The comerstones of cur strategy are authenticity, innovation,
and targeted action. Open, tfransparent conversation around
our targets, our progress, our syccesses and our setbacks is vital
to diving meaningful change within our business and across
our industry, We recognise that we cannot achieve net zero
using today's materials, technologies. and approach. We
therefore have teams dedicated to solving the complex
technical challenges of decarbonisation in cur sector —and a
detemination to resalve them. We're prioritising our work
programmes, moving first on those that will deliver the most
transformational impact.

Our sustainability sirategy is mulli-faceted, inlegrating carbon
reduction, nature protection, socialimpact, diversity, inclusion,
and employee wellbeing. We've focused heavily on improving
data integrity this year — particularly our carbon related data -
by building robust, centralised reporting systems and
colaborating with supply chain partners and industry to
establish common and accurate data practices.

Data nleyrity is an industry-wide challenge and cne that

is essential to progress, We're pleased 1o be initiating
data-focused conversations in the wider industry, driving
transparency and best practice. We now have Group data
for Scopes 1. 2. and 3, which has been verified to a limited
level of assurance by an accredited third party, which is o
significant step forward. This will remain an area of focus for

us as we develop action plans and measure progress towards
our fargets.

One of the bigges! contributors to our carbon footoprint is
concrete and we have taken direct, targeted action to
reduce the impact of this essential material. Our UK tbusiness
wais d founding member of the Concrefeiero initiafive in 2022,
On 1 April 2023, we became the first contractor te mandate
the use of only low carbon concrete across our new UK
projects. This required significant work by colleagues across our
pusiness and is an achievement we are particulany proud of.
It's an important first step for us in accelerating the
decarbonisation of concrete, with our research teams now
tocused on ultra-low carbon options, as well as tackling overall
reduction of materiak used through innovative design.

Qur technical research programme is working on a range of
low carbon material initictives across our high-emitting material
itemns: low carbon concrete is its primary focus, and leamings
are being shared across the Group.

Innovative low carkzon design is central 1o our approach and
we're working with clients and industry partners to integrate
new sustainable solutions into the projects we deliver. This
includes the use of asuite of carbon calculation
methodologies at both the design stage and during
implementation, embedding environmental and carbon
measures throughout our projects’ lifecycles.

We are very aware our environmental impact goes beyond
carbon. As well as implementing biodiversity programmes on
our projects, we have taken our commitment to nature further,
mapping the nature-related impact of our projects, offices,
and depofts globally. This has provided an impertant basis for
responsible decision-making across the business. In FY24 we will
also be focusing on developing our Group biodiversity strategy
and plans, integrating them with our wider environmental and
social ogenda.

Lecal communities have always been an important
stakeholder for us and we continue fo listen fo, and panner
with, these communities in order to create meaningful social
value via our projects. We have updated our social value
strategy to make it more people-centric and ensure we're
focused on delivering lasting benefits to the communities in
which we work. This could take the form of tailored
programmes 1o help people overcome banmiers to
employment, or helping local businesses o thrive by working
with them as supply chain partners.
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We also continue 1o focus on improving diversity and inclusion,
andin the last year have introduced initiatives and policies
designed to improve diversity across the business. We know there s
much more to be done, and we will continue to workin
collaboeration with our clients, design partners, and supply chain
parners to increase the pace of change and make a careerin
construction appealing to o much wider range of people. This
year we are publishing a standalone FY23 Group sustainability
report (Pushing the Boundaries) which will be downloadable iom
our website. This report is more comprehensive than these pages
rnd pravides more detail and data about the excellent work we
are doing and our progress towards a more sustdlnatsie [ulue.

OUR APPROACH

Pushing boundaries sits at the heart of our purpose at Laing
O'Rourke. It's what makes us different. it's now we think. it's what
we do. We know that actions speak louder than words and it's
our philosophy to do what we say and say what we do. Our
susfainability strategy is o comprehensive plan thaf details how
we'te reducing environmental impacts while positively
contributing o society, whether that's our people, our customers,
our environment, or the communities we 're working In.

Our geals are clear, and we are working 1o achieve them by
transfonming the way buidings and infrastructure are engineered
and buit, By 2030 all our sites will be emission-free. By 2033 we will
be deploving truly diverse teamns to deliver our projects. Before
2050 we will be a fully net zero compoany delivering nature
positive solutions with teams that represent our diverse society.

For our clients

Our clients want products and solutions that minimise
environmental impacts and better serve the community. Our
commitment to innovation and modern methods of construction
endables us to help clients meet their sustainability ambitions.

For our people

Building an enduring and innovative crganisation requires us to
hire, develop, and retain the very best talent. Our business is
committed to driving real change in our indusiry, providing a
diverse range of people with rewarding and challenging careérs.

For society

From hospitals to ratways, we're delivering the infrastructure
needed to improve lives and help local communities thrive. By
creating employment opportunities and investing i skills
development we create economic growth and help
communities prosper.

Far the environment

We're diiving leadership in low-carbon innovation as we work
to become a net zeroc company kefore 2050. By working
coliaboratively across the sector to identify decarbonisation
solutions, we're solving complex climate challenges and
leading the way towards a better built environrment.

PROGRESS TOWARDS OUR 2030 TARGET

Our 2030 target is to be operationally net zero. That means
eliminating carmon emissions from our directly controlled
operations, including energy use, fleet, and fuel for heavy plant
{defined as Scope 1 and 2 emissions). We are pleased 1o see
our carbon abatement intiatives continuing 1o fake effect,
where Scope 1 emissions atmost hatved during FY23. This has
been driven by a combination of switching to alternative fuels
for heavy plant - either electric or biofuel - and switching our
company car fieet over to electric and hybrid vehicles.

Eliminating the ermissions for which we are directly responsible is
a business priority. But with Scope 1 and 2 emissions
representing less than 10 per cent of aur overall emissions, we
know we have to do much more to fackie our indirect (Scope
3} emissions and become a net zero company befare 2050.

PROGRESS TOWARDS OUR 2050 TARGET

We significantly improved our data integrity in FY23 o develop
an accurate and relicble picture of our carbon emissions
acrass Scopes 1, 2 and 3, and create a breakdown of exactily
how those emissions are generated.

Reducing Scope 3 emissions — those associated with our supply
chain and purchased products and services ~ i§ the single
biggest challenge tacng all Lot ishuctor. Our hope is thot os
we, and others, develop new innovations, we will be able 1o
become o net zero company socner than 2050 and we will
review this target in the coming year to determine whether we
believe thai is feasible.

wWe have developed a consistent methodology for Scope 3
emission dato capture ensuring we have complete metrics for
FY22 and FY23. Both data sets have been verified to a limited
level of assurance by an accrediied third party. The data
shows d small incredse in Scope 3 emissions for FY23, driven by
an uplift in materials purchased to support project delivery.
We have also withessed increases in the emissions associated
with business fravel and employee commuting when
compared with FY22, as business operations retun to

normal ievels post-pandemic.

Now that we have a more robust picture of the source of our
Scope 3 emissions, we are taking targeted aciions to reduce
them. We know that we can't do all of this alone — the
cumulative work of parties across the industry will be pivotal to
our success. We are collaborating broadty and widely 1o
stimulate a step change inindustry emissions. The wark we're
doing with ConcreteZero, MECLA, the UK Green Building Council.
and the plethora of academic and supply chain organisations
that we partner with, among others, will enable us fo make smal
incremental improvements, as wel as idenfify the innovative
solutions that will drive more substantial improvements.

Key initiatives include:

- We moved to mandate only low carbon concrete on our
new UK projects from 1 April 2023 — and to continue our
research and development programme into ultra-low
carbon alternatives,

- Founding rmember of the Clirate Group's Concretelero
initiative, working collaboratively fowards a nel zero
concrete target before 2050;

- Supponing suoply chain partners by providing training and
educalion, directly and via our partnership with the Supply
Chain Sustainability School. We hold board positions in the
Auvstralion and UK branches of the School; and

- Working directly with supply chain partners, tfrade
assaciations, and other industry stakeholders to develop o
standardised blueprint for reporting. improving data integrity,
reducing the burden for suppliers, and remaving barriers for
smalier businesses.
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OUR NATURE-POSITIVE APPROATH
We recognise that our responsibility to protect ocur environment
goes beyond carbon and includes working to protect nature,

This year we have undertaken a project fo map fthe nafure-
related impact of our site operations on a global basis. This is
helping us make informed decisions based on the needs of the
natural environment in our locations.

We aie committed 1w pralecting biodiversity on each of our
project sites, with many of our projects in both operating hubs
having biodiversity-focused targets.

We have assessed the nature-related impacts and
dependencies for key commodities, including PPE, steel,
ond biodiese!l, as part of preliminary supply chain analysis.
Our biodiversity work will extend during FY24 as we increase
supply chain analysis and the impact of materials sourcing
on Biodiversity. This will inform a more detailed roadmap

of activity.

SOCIAL VALUE
Social sustainabllity is integral to our commitment to responsible
business practices.

In the UK, our geal is to generate £2bn in secialimpact and
enrich the lives of two milion people by 2030. We have
implemented specialist, third-party software (Thrive) to help
caplure and measure our social value impact. FY23 represents
our first fuli year of data, with highlights including:

- £435m social value created, supporting people within several
different communities across the UK;

- 11,242 volunteer hours contributed:

- 369 people employed, who previously had barfiers to
ermployment, with empioyabiity programmes delivered
to provide longer-term sypport fo a wider community
of individuals;

- 346 wark experience placements, giving studenis
first-hand experience of the breadth of roles available in
construction; and

- 156 apprenticeships created, providing routes into long-term
employment.

We coniinue ta share our expetiences and best practice
examples with peers via our partnerships with Social Value UK,
the Impact Evaivation Standard, and the Institute of Corporate
Responsibility and Sustainability.

DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION

We recognise that construction is not a diverse industry. While
that is starting to change. there s much more work to da ta
ensure our industry represents the society and communities in
which we operate. Evidence shows diverse organisations are
more creative and innovative, and we believe becoming a
more diverse business will help us unlock answers to some of the
sustainability challenges we need to overcome,

We are making progress towards our target of a 50:50 staff
gender split by 2033. Our proportion of fermale staff has
increased and now stands at 25 per cent. We ranked highest in
our sector within the FISE Women Leaders Review for both
private companies and FTSE 350. We also ranked third in the
fop 50 private companies for females on our Board at 57 per
cent, and sixth for women in leadership.

While gender eguity remains an impoertant element of our
diversity and inclusion work, our scope of interest is far wider,
ensuring that all employees across our business ~ and potential
employees — feel a sense of inclusion and belonging.

EMPLOYEE WELLBEING

Our wellbeing strategy is multi-faceted, ensuring that it
addresses our employees’ physical mental, workplace, social,
and financial wellbeing. We have wide-ranging initiatives in
place to support all aspects of wellbeing for cur colleagues.

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE
Our sustainability govermance structure was established in FY22
and has been further embedded during FYZ3.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

GHG BRAISSIONS AND ENERGY USE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
The data below excludes operations in Canada and joint arrangements.

FY23

FY22

Energy consumplion used to calculate emissions (kWh) 77,924,689
Gas (kwh) 3,976,116
Electricity (kWh} 15,877,209
Iransport fuely (kwti) 13,503,222
Other energy sources {Scope | and 2) (kwWh) 36,740,197
Transport fuels (scope 3) (kWh) 7.827,945

Emissions from combustion of gas ICO2w (Scope 1] 726

Emissions from combustion of fuel for transport purposes HCGqe (Scope 1) 3,375

Frnissions from business travel in rental cars or employee-owned vehicles where the company is

responsible for purchasing the fuel tCOze (Scope 3) 1,920

Emissions from purchased electricity tCO2e (Scope 2, location-based) 3,070

Total gross emissions 1COze based on the above - .o

Total gross emissions from above by unit turnover/revenue (1CO2e/EM) 418

69,850,486
3,730,420
16,043,357
14,609,946
29.3/3.542
6,093,221
683

3,626

1.504
3,406
2.219

497

1SO14064 Pt 1 2018

Methodolagy and Carbon Reduce
Emissions from other activities which the company owns or controls including operation of facilities

1COze (Scope 1) 2,354 6,958
Emissions from heaf, steam and cooling purchased for own use tCOqe (Scope 2j N/A N/A
Ermissions from other activities tCOz2e {Scope 3] (restated’] 357,499 484,251
Total other emissions tCOze {restaled!) 364,457 486,605
Totai gross Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope 3 emissions 1COze (restated!) 373,674 495,696
Totai gross GHG emissions per unit tumover/frevenue (1CQO2e/EM) 201 228

Verified to ISO14064 Pari

1 2018 and Carbon

Third Party verification

Reduce

‘Restiated emissions balances for FY22 now include a wider range of Scope 3 emissions, as identified during the FY23 verfication.
Tne revenue wsed to calcuate the intensity ratios is not that of the fotal Group: only UK subsidicrries hove been included,

Revenue is largely used as the industry benchmark for emissions intensity rotios. It is also The most accurate representation

of business activity, due to revenue being recognised over time and inrelation fo works complete to date, it fairly represents
the leve! of acftivity in the business. Energy (KWh] for the last reporting pericd has decreased slightly, Addifionally, due fo the
implemeniation of our carbon abatement projects, we have seen o decrease In abscluie emissions and emissions intensity by

unit of turnover.

Laing O'Rourke Plc -
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DIRECTORS' REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

BIODIVERSITY

Wherever possible on our projects, we work to protect nature
and biodiversity. In the UK. we have implemented what's
recognised as an industry leading approach to delivering
biodiversity net gain (BNG). On major infrastructure projects like
East West Rail and HS2, we have implemented plans to deliver
biodiversity net gain targets. We have learned from these
schemes and will apply the leamings on future projects

Qur East West Rail (EWR] Alliance team has taken a sfrategic,
holistic approach to ecological management, considering
permanent and temporary works requirements, licensing,
mitigafion and BNG, Working with Natural England, the project
has tested multiple iterations of the Biodiversity Metric and been
a Beta tester for the new Environmental Benefits from Nature
tool. which was developed by Natural England and the
University of Oxford in partnership with DEFRA.

In addition, the team is creating Ecological Compensation Sites
at 20 locations along the new raitway's route as part of the
project's protected species mitigafion plan. The locations were
estabiished, in some cases up to two years prior 1o the start of
construction waorks, to provide high quality habitat for a wide
variety of fauna and flora. These sites, which total 100 hectares
in size include 45 ponds, 12 artificial badger setts, and a bat
house and 70 bat boxes. Within them 150,000 plants ond trees
have been planted.

And our team at The Centre of Excellence for Modern
Consiruchion have installed ten beehives af the site, recognising
the important role bees play in the ecosystem as pollinators.
The raw honey produced by the bees is sold to employees on
site and the money raised is donated to a local charity.

HUMAN AND SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

As a family-owned business, we have always sought to care for
our people and support the communities our projects serve,
and we confinued to focus on this through FY23.

Our projects provide skills, education, and employment
opportunities for locol people, including apprenticeships, and
we seek fo find supply chain partners in the local community.,

Our new Bveron stadium project is a good example. Our team
there have partnered with leading training providers The
Learning Foundry and The Skills Centre to launch exciting
opportunities for local people to work on the 52,000-capacity
stadium and begin o careerin construction. The programme is
available to people living across the Liverpool City Region.

During the pre-employment part of the training programme,
parficipants will be taught basic formwork carpentry or steel
fixer skills, plus health and safety requirements of the industry,
and gain their Construction Skills Certification Scheme (CSCS)
card, which will grant them access to work on any censtruction
site in the UK.

On completion of the pre-employment part of the course the
participants will be assessed and if successful will be become a
formwork carpenter or steel fixer apprentice for Laing
C'Rourke. They will then join the new Everton stadium project
team and work alongside some of the most experienced
tradespeople and technicians in the industry.

In FY23, we willimplement a new social value strategy in the
Europe Hub to ensure more consistent action across all our
projects and to ensure people and communities are at the
heart of what we do. Qur goalis simple: to maximise the socio-
economic benefits of our projects and so help people thrive.

RETHINKING SAFETY THROUGH INCLUSION

AND WELLBEING

In FY22, we developed a new, business-wide strategy to
completely reset how everyone in the business thinks about
welloeing — our own and that of colieagues.

Called ‘Rethinking Safety Through Inclusion and Wellbeing' the
new strategy ensures our approach to wellheing considers
both the physical and psychaological, and the unique risk
factors in construction. f promotes a culture where everyone is
included no matter what role they play. Everyone has a voice,
at every stage of our projects, and in planning how we will go
to work for each activity. The aim is for everyone to feel
empowered to speak up.

The programme is setting a new standard for safety and
leadership through three core areqs of focus:

- ENGINEERED SAFETY
Through o preconstruction focus, we will work with designers,
clients, and suppliers to ‘engineer autrisk' and ‘engineer in
health' at every stage of a project’s lifecycle;

- DELIVERY EXCEILLENCE
During delivery. we will ensure that there is strong safety
leadership through clear fines of operational accountability
and competence, beginning with the project leader and
his/her direct reports. Through clear leadership we will better
understand risks, verify controls, embed learning, and
share successes: and

- HUMAN PERFORMANCE
We will invest in advanced concepts around holistic
wellbeing and our people’s need to recover to thrive. In so
doing, we will provide a supportive and psychologically
ennching work environment that allows our people to
perform consistently at their best.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED
for the year ended 31 March 2023

STATERENT OF DIRECTORSE RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preporing the Annual Report
and financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors
have prepared the group financial statements in accordance
with UK-adopted international accounting standards and the
company financial statements in accordunce with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 "Reduced
Nisclosure Fromework”, and opplicable low).

Under company law, Directors must not approve the financial
statements uniess they are satisfied that they give a frue and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company
and of the profit or loss of the Group for that peried. In
preparing the financial statements, the Directors are required
to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

state whether applicable UK-adopted international
accounting standards have been followed for the group
financial statements and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 101, have been followed for the
Company financial statements, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements;

make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and

prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group and the
Company will continue in business,

The Directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and the Company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
iregularities.

The Directors are also responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Group's and the Company’'s transactions and disclose with
reascnable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Group and the Company and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

DIRECTORS CONFIRMATIONS
In the case of each Director in office ot the date the Directors’
Repart is approved:

- so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit
infarmation of which the Group's and the Company's
auditors are unaware; and

they have taken all the steps that they ought o have taken
as a Direclor in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's
and the Company's auditors are aware of that information.

INDEPERNDENT AUDITORS

The auditors, PicewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have
indicated their wilingness to continue in office and a
resolution for their appointment wil be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting.

APPROVAL
This report was approved by the Board on 31 Cctober 2023
and signed on behalf of the Board by:

™

[

ROWAN BAKER
DIRECTOR

Laing O"Rourke Plc



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF LAING O’'ROURKE PLC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OFf THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION
I our opinion:

- Laing O'Rourke Plc’s group financial statements and
company financial statements (the “financial staterments”)
give a frue and fair view of the staie of the group's and of
the company's affairs as at 31 March 2023 and of the
group’s loss and the group's cash flows for the year
then ended;

- the group finoncial statements hove been property
prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006;

- the company financial statements have been properly
prepared in gccordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 “Reduced
Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

- the financial staternents have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the
Annual Report and Financial Statements (the “Annual
Report"), which comprise: the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2023; the
consolidated income staterment, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
cash flows and the consolidated and company statements of
changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to
the financial statements, which include a description of the
significant accounting policies.

BASIS FOR GPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational
Standards on Auditing {UK) {"ISAs {UK)") and applicable law.
Our responsitilities under 1ISAs [UK) are further described in the
Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of curreport. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDEMNCE

We remained independent of the group in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfiled cur other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

Based on the work we have performed, we have not
identified any maierial uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the group's and the company’s ability to continue as
a going concern for a pericd of af least twelve months from
when the financial statements are authorised for issve,

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that
the directors’ use of the going concem basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate,

However, becouse not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the group's
and the company's ability o continue as a going concem.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with
respect to going concem are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

REPORTING ON OTHER INFORMATION

The other information comprises all of the infoermation in the
Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the
other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do
noit express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicily stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and. in doing so.
consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial stalements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears o be materially
misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or
materal misstatement, we are required te perferm procedures
to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the
financial statements or a maternial misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatermment of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nathing to report based on these responisibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors' Report, we
also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the
Companies Act 2006 requires us also to repert certain opinicns
and matters as described below,

STRATEGIC REPORT AND DIRECTORS' REPORT

In cur opinicn, based on the work undertaken in the course of
the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and
Directors' Report for the year ended 31 March 2023 is
consistent with the financial statements and has been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirerments.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and
company and their environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any material misstaterments in the
Strategic report and Directors' Report.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND THE AUDYY

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As explained more fully in the Stalement of Directors’
Responsibilities, the directors dre responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with
the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for
such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emror.

in preparing the financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the group’s and the company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic afemative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MFMBERS OF LAING O'ROURKE PLC CONTINUED

AUDITORS RESPORSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assuronce about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or eror, and to
issue an guditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high tevel of assurance, but s not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs {UK) will
abways detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud ar error and are considered
material if, ndividually or in the aggregate, they could
recsonably be expected fo influence the economic decisions
of users faken on fhe basis of these financiail statements.

Iregularities, including fravd. are instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibifities, cutlined abaove, to detect material
misstatements in respect of iregularities, including fraud. The
extent to which our procedures are capabile of detecting
iregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we
identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws
and regulations related ta breaches of environmental
legislation, health and safety legisiation, dota protection
legisiation, anti-bribery and coruption legisiation, tax
legislotion. employment laws and consiruction lows, and we
considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a
material effect on the financial statements. We also
considered those laws and regulations that have a direct
impact on the financial statements such as the Companies
Act 2006. We evaluated management's incentives and
opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financiai
staterments (including the risk of overide of contrals), and
determined that the principai risks were related to posting
inappropriate jounal entries and management bias in
accounting estimates and judgements. Audit procedures
performed by the engagement team included:

— Discussion with management and the Group's internal
counsel, including consideration of potential instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulation and fraud;

- Assessment of matters reported to the Grovp's
whistleblowing helpline and the results of management's
investigation of such matters;

-~ Obtaining legal fetters from the Group's extemal legal
advisers in respect of certain litigation and ciaims where
considered necessary,

- Evaluation of management's controls designed to prevent
and detect iregularities;

~ Substantive testing of journal entries which met a defined risk
criteria, focusing on where and how fraud could arise; and

- Challenging assumptions and judgements made by
management in its accounting estimates orjudgements in
particular in relation to contract accounting, disputes and
latent defects liabilities.

Laing O'Rourke Plc |

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures
described above. We are less fikely to become aware of
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that
are not closely reflated to events and fransacfions reflecfed in
the financial statements, Also. the fisk of not detecting a
material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements is localed o the TRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilifies. This description forms
part of our audilus' report,

LUSE OF THIS REPORYT

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and
only for the company's members as o body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for
no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report is shown or into whaose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in
writing.

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

COMPANIES ACT 2006 EXCEPTION REPORTING
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to
you if, in our opinion:

— we have not obtained all the information and explanations
we require for our audit; or

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by
law are not made; or

the Company financial statements are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns.

|

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

SIMON MORLEY (SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR)
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF

PRICEWATERHOUSECOQPERS LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AND STATUTORY AUDITORS

London, 31 October 2023



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 March 2023

Exceptional
Mre-eaceptional Hems Pre-excephonal Excephonal tems
ttams {note 5) Total iterns fnote 5) Total
2023 2023 2023 2022 2022 022
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue including share of joint ventures 2,289.9 - 2,289.9 1,993.0 - 1,923.0
Share of revenue of joint ventures (255.0) - (255.0) (185.7) - {185.7)
Group revenue! 3 2.034.9 - 2,034.9 1.807.3 - 1.807.3
Cost of sales (2.092.6) - (2.092.6)  [1.651.0) - (1,651.0)
Gross (loss)/profit - (57.7) - (57.7) 156.3 - 156.3
Administrative expenses {124.4) (2.4) {127.0) (126.0) - (126.0)
Other operating iIncome o 8 103 - 103 48 - 48
Group operating (loss)/profit (172.0} (2.4) (174.4) 35.1 - 351
Share of posi-tax profits/(losses) of
joint ventures 15 28 - 28 (6.1} - (6.1)
(Loss)/profit from operations 6 (169.2) (2.4) (171.6) 29.0 - 29.0
Finance income 0.6 - 0.6 0.1 - 0.1
Finance expense 10 (17.3) - (17.3) {12.9} - (12.9)
Net finance expense (16.7) - (14.7) {12.8) - (12.8)
(Loss}/profit before tax (185.9}) (2.4) {188.3) 16.2 - 16.2
Tax 1 58.9 0.5 594 4.0 - 40
{Loss)/prolit for the year {127.0} {(1.9) (128.9) 20.2 - 202
1. Group Revenue equates o revenue as defined under IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers'.
The notes on pages 41 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements,
Laing O'Rourke Plc | 34



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 March 2023

Exceptional
Pre-exceptional fems Pre-exceptionat Exceptional items
Hems (note 5) Total items (note 5) Total
2023 2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
Note £m £m £m &m £m £rm
{Loss)/profit for the year (127.0) (1.9) (128.9) 20.2 - 202
Other comprehensive expense:
lkems that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on franslating
foreign operations (1.5) - (1.5) 10.8) - 0.8}
Movement in fair value of
financial assets 15 - - - {0.7) - [0.7)
Other comprehensive expense for the
year, nef of fax A (1.8) - (1.5) [1.5] - {1.5)
Total comprehensive
(expense)/income for the year (128.5) (1.9} {130.4) 8.7 — 18.7
ltems disclosed in the statement above are disclosed net of tax. The income tax relating to each component of other
comprehensive income is disclosed in note 11.
The notes on pages 41 to 8] form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 March 2023

Restated
2023 2002
Mote £m Em
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 12 4.4 40.6
Investments in joint ventures 15 8.3 55
Loans to joint ventures 15 8.0 8.0
Property. plani, and equipment Té 420 63.0
Right-of-use assets 17 200.7 194.2
Deferred tax assets 25 6.4 35.8
Trade and other receivables 20 - 0.4
Contract assets ] 1% 36.6 51
Total non-current assets 4534 398.6
Current assets
inventories 18 181 16.4
Contract assets 19 123.0 78.7
Trade and other receivables 20 83.0 977
Curent tax assets 12.3 88
Cash and cash equivalents 21 152.2 184.6
Total cunrent assels 388.6 386.2
Total assets 842.0 784.8
Liabilities
Current ligbilities
Bamowings 20 (33.7) {34.9)
Contract liabilities 19 (263.7) (230.1)
Trade and other payables 23 (483.0) (396.7)
Provisions 24 (125.6) {65.3)
Tolal current liabilities (911.0) [727.0)
Non-cunent liabilities
Bamowings 22 (185.7) (190.7)
Contract liapilities 19 (0.1) (0.5)
Trade and other payables 23 (37.0) (27.9)
Provisions 24 {0.2) 0.3
Total non-current liabiiities {223.0) (219.4)
Total lighilities (1,134.0) (946.4)
Net liabilities (292.0) {161.8)
Equily
Share capital 26 0.2 0.2
Foreign cumrency translation reserve! 27 3.6 51
Accumulated losses! 27 (295.8) {166.9)
Total equity {292.0) (161.4)

2. Management has resiated the financial statements to comect g prior year error. The foreign currency transiation reserve have increased by £25.5m from

£(20.4)m to £5.1m. Accumulated losses have increased by £25.5m from £141.4mio £166.9m. These resiatements are 1o recycle the foreign curency
translation reserve to accumulated losses for foreign operations that were disposed of priorto FY20.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directars on 31 October 2023 and were signed

on its behalf by:

ROWAN BAKER RAY O'ROURKE KBE
DIRECTCR DIRECTOR

The notes on pages 41 to 81 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 March 2023

2023 2072
Note £fm £rn
Assets
Non-cument assets
Investments in subsidiaries 13 220.6 2213
Investments in joint ventures 15 - -
Ltaans to joint ventures 15 8.0 80
Right-of-use assets 7 58.8 64.7
Deterred tax assets 1.2 b.7
Trade and other receivables . o - 20 250.9 2466
Tolal non-current assels - 545.5 547.3
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 20 1.8 1.6
Cashondeashequivelents | _ _ _ _ __ ____ . ________ 20 03
Total current assets 3.8 1.2
Total assets 549.3 549.2
Liabilities
Current fiabifities
Bomrowings 22 (6.6) 6.9)
Trade and otherpayables 23 (387.4) (352.8)
Total current liabiliies {394.2) {359.7)
Non-cumrent liabifities
Bomowings 22 {53.3) (58.4)
Trade and other payables 23 {0.3) 0.4
Provisions 24 (0.2) [(O R3]
Tolalnon-cument liobifties (538) _ _ _(589)
Total liabilities (448.0) {418.4}
Net assets 101.3 130.6
Equity
Share capital 26 0.2 0.2
Retained earmings 27 1001 130.4
Total equity 101.3 130.6

The Company loss for the financiol year was £29.3m (FY22: £0.2m}.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 October 2023 and were signed
on its behalf by:

ROWAN BAKER RAY O'RQURKE KBE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

The notes on pages 41 to 81 form an integral part of these financiol statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 March 2023

2023 2022
Note £m £m
Cash flows from operating actlivities
{Loss)/protit before tax (188.3) 16.2
Adjustments for:
Deprecialion and amortisation 6 35.8 333
Profit on disposal of property, plant, and equipment 4 (1.7} (1.2)
[ oss on disposal of intanyible assets 23 -
Net finance costs 167 12.8
Research and development expenditure credit 8 (2.7} (4.7)
Share of post-tax {profit}/loss of joint ventures 15 (2.8) 4.1
Decrease in trade and other receivables 15.6 3.6
Increase in contract assets (29.7) {32.2)
Increase in inventories (1.6) {6.5)
Increase in frade and other payables 923 4.1
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 64.6 {23.4)
Increase in contract fiabilities 33.1 44.6
Other - (1.3)
Cash generated from operations 26.6 51.2
Interest paid (17.3) {43.6)
Taxreceived 49 4.5
Net cash generated from operating aclivities 14.2 i2.1
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant, and equicment and right-of-use assets 16 (8.1 {6.7)
Purchase of intangible assets 12 (6.4} (8.8)
Capital injections in equity investments 15 (4.2) (0.8
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment, and right-of-use assets 5.6 33
Interest received on financial assets held as investments 0.4 0.1
Net cash ysed in investing activities (12.5) (12.9)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 0.1 48.0
Repayments of bank loans (0.2} {109.5)
Proceeds from re-financing existing property, plant, and equipment 54 221
Finance lease principal repayments (39.4) {36.7)
Net cash ysed in financing activities (34.1) (76.1)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (32.4) (76.9)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 184.6 261.5
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 21 152.2 184.4
The notes on pages 41 to 81 form an integral part of these financial staterments.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 March 2023

Share  Forsign cumency Accumulaiad Tatal
capital  fransichon seserve Far value raserve losses equity
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2021 os previously presented 0.2 [19.8) 0.7 [161.8) {180.3}
Restaiement’ - 255 - (25.5} -
At 1 Aprl 2021 restated 0.2 59 07 (1871 1803
Proiit for the vear - - - 20.2 202
Other comprehensive expense after fax L - {0.8) 7 - i SJ
Total comprehensive (expensel/income
tor theyeewy = 1c.8 0.7 _ 202 8.7
At 31 March 2022 as restated 0.2 5.1 - (164.9) (141.8)
Lass for the year - - - (128.9} (128.9)
Ofher comprehensive expense after tax - (1.5} - - (1.5)
Total comprehensive expense for the
year - (1.5) - (128.9) £130.49)
At 31 March 2023 0.2 3.4 - (295.8) (292.0)

3. Management has restated The financial statements to corect a priar year error.

Additional disclosure and details are provided in note 27.

The notes on pages 41 to 81 form an iniegral part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Accumulaled

Share Farvalue e /retaned Total

capital reserve eamingss equity

MNote £m £m Em £m

A1 Aprit 2021 0.2 0.7 (49.3) (48.4)

Loss for the year and total comprehensive expense - (0.7) 0.2) (0.9)

Capital contibution 27 - - 179.9 179.9

Al 31 March 2022 0.2 - 130.4 130.6

tass for lhe year and total comprehensive expense - - (29.3) (2%.3)

Al 31 March 2023 0.2 - 101.1 101.3

Addifional disclosure and defails are provided in note 27.

The notes on pages 41 1o 81 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Laing O'Rourke Plc (the ‘Company’} is a private company,
fimited by shares, incorporated, and domiciied in England ond
Wales. The Company’s registered number and registered
office address can be found on page 2. The nature of the
Group's operations and its principal activities are sef oufin
note 37 and in the Sfrategic Report on pages 3 o 20. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group for ihe yvear
ended 31 March 2023 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries and the Group's inferest in joint amangements.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accountng pollicivs we those of the Group,
unlsss siated otherwise. Accounting policies specific fo the
Company are detailed in note 2.28.

2.0V STATEMENT ON COMPUANCE

The consolidated and Company financial statements have been
prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with UK-
adopted intemational financial reporting standards.

2.02BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated and Company financial statements are
presented in pounds sferling, rounded to the nearest £100,000.
The conselidaied financial statements include the results of the
holding company, its subsidiary undertakings, and the Group's
interest in joint arrangemenis for the year ended 31 March
2023. The consolidated and Company finoncial staternents
have been prepared on a going concern basis under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
land and buildings {prior to the adoption of IFRS), and financici
assets, and financial liabilities {including derivative instrumenits)
ot fair value through profit or loss. The principal accounting
policies which have been consistently applied for oll
consolidated and equity accounted entities including
subsidiaries and joint arangements are set out below.

The Group prepares consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the UK (UK-adopted international accounting
standards). The Company's financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
101, ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ (FRS 101). The financial
staterments have been prepored under the historicol cost
convention and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006
as applicable Yo companies using FRS 101. In preparing these
financial statements, the Company applies the recognition,
measurement and disclosure requirements of International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the UK (UK-
adopted intemational accounting standards), but makes
amendments where necessary in order to comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and to take advantage of FRS 101
disclosure exemptions. As pemitted by FRS 101, the Company
has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available
under that standard in relation to financial instruments, capital
management, presentation of a cash flow statement, related
party transactions, and comparative information.

In addition to the application of FRS 101, the Company has taken
advantage of Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and
consequently its statement of comprehensive income (including

the income statement! is not presented as par of fhese accounts.

Going concern

The Board has carefully considered thaose faciors likety to
affect the Company and the Group's future development,
performance, and tinancial position in relation to the ability
1o operate within their curent and foreseeable resources

- both financial and operational. Both the Company and the
Group have sufficient financial resources, committed barnking
taciities, secured revenue and a strong order book and, for
these reasons, the Directors continue to adopt the gaing
concem basis in preparning the consolidated financial
sfatements.

Refer to nole 2.26 e) ond pages 21 1o 23 of the Directors’
Report relating to going concem.

Accounting Standards

The following standards, amendments, and interpretations
became effective in the year ended 31 March 2023 and have
boen adoptad:

a) Reference to the Conceptual Framework {Amendments 1o
IFRS 3):

b} Property, Plont, and Equipment — Proceeds before
Intended Use [Amendments 1o 1AS 16);

c) Onerous Conhtracts ~ Cost of Fulliling o Contract
[Amendments to I1AS 37}; and

d} Annuat improvernents to IFRS Standards 2018-2020.

The effect on the consolidated and Company financial
statements of adopting these new standards has been
determined to nct be material.

The Directors have considered recenitly published (FRSs, new
interpretafions and amendments to existing standards that are
mandatory for the Group's accounting periods commencing
on or after 1 April 2023.

Standards that are not yet effective and have not been
adopted early by the Group are:

a) IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts;

b) Namow scope amendments tc IAS 1, Practice statement 2
and IAS §;

<) Defered Tax related fo Assets ond Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction (Amendment 1o 1AS 12);

d) Leases onsale and leaseback [Amendment fo 1AS 16); and

e} Non-cument labllifies with covenanis (Amendmenis te IAS 1),

The Group is in the process of assessing the effect of the
standards above on the consalidated and Company financial
statements. The Group has chosen not to adopt any of the
above standards and interpretations earlier than required.

203 BASIS OF CONSOUDATION

a)  The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company, and subsidiaries
controlled by the Company. Subsidianes are all entities
(including structured entities) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has ights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
ore consolidated from the date on which effective
controlis fransfered to the Group and are
deconsolidated from the date control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group faling
within the scope of 'FRS 3, 'Business Combinations’. The
consideration for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the tair
values of the ossels fransferred, equity instruments issued,
ond liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange. Acquisition related costs are expensed as
incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired and liakilities and
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.03BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION [(CONTINUED)
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured inifially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
imespective of the extent of any non-controling interest. The
excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of
the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquiredis
recorded as goodwill. if this is less than the fair value of the
ret assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the income staterment. When the
Group ioses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal s calculated os the difference between the fair
value of the consideration received and the carnying
amaount of the assets less iabilities of the subsidiary.

The separate financial statements of the Company are
presented as required by the Companies Act 2006. The
Company has taken advantage of Section 408 of the
Companies Act, and consequently its income statement
and staternent of other comprehensive income are not
presented as part of these financial statements.

b)  Under IFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of
edach investor. The Group has assessed the nature of
each joint arrangement and has determined some to be
joint operations and some to be joint ventures, as
detailed in note 37.

i} The Group accounts forits share of the assets,
licbilities, revenue, and expenses in a joint operation,
under each relevant heading in the income
statement and the statement of financial position.

i} Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method of accounting,
interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in
other comprehensive income. When the Group's share
of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in
the joint venture (which includes any long-temm interests
that, in substance, fom part of the Group's net
investrment in the joint venture), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incumed obligations
to make payments on behalf of the joint venture.

c)  Intra-Group balances and transactions together with any
unreglised gains ansing from intra-Group transactions are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised gains arising from fransactions with
jointly controlled entities and jointly controlled operations
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
entity, The Group's share of unrealised losses is eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains. but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

204 FOREIGN CURREMNCY TRANSLATION

Functional and presentation curency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which each entity operates
(‘the functional currency'). The consolidated financial
statemenfs are presenfed in pounds sterling, which is the
functional and presentation curency of Laing O'Rourke Plc.,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Transactions and balances

Foreign cumency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the fransactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resutting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, are
recognised in the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at *fair value through profit or
loss' are recognised in the income statement as part of the fair
value gain or kss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified as held for collect
and for sale are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all Group entities (none of
which hos the functional currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation curency are translated inte the presentation
currency as follows:

i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
pasition presented are franskated at the closing rate at
the reporting date;

i)  Income and expenses for each income statement are
franslated at average exchange rates for the period: and

i) Allresulting exchange differences are recognised in the
foreign cumency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investrment in foreign operations, and of
borrowings designed as hedges of such investments, are taken
to other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of, or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in other comprehensive income are recognised in
the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwil and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and transiated at the closing rate.

2.05PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Property. plant, and equipment are reported at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and any recognised
impairment loss. Land is not depreciated. Where parts of an
item of property, plant, and equipment have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate items. Cost
comprises purchase price and directly attributable costs.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-ine method to write
down the costs of the assets to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

30- 50vyears
2-15years

Land and buildings
Plant, equipment, and vehicles

Plant, equiement, and vehicles include tower cranes, crawler
cranes, and other speciaiist assets that are depreciated over a
useful life of up to 15 years as wel as small tools and vehicles
that are depreciated over two to five year period.

Certain land and buildings were revalued under previous
accounting standards. On transition to IFRS, the Group elected
fo use the revalued amount as deemed cost.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{CONTINUED)

2 05PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPAMENT
{CONNINUED)

Assets held under right-of-use leases are depreciated over the
term of the lease or the estimated useful life of the asset as
appropriate.

Cdins and losses on disposal are recognised within cost of
sales, administrative expenses, or piolil on disposal of property
in the income statement based on the nature of the assefs
disposed of.

2.06 LEASES

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease
at the inception of the contract. A lease exists if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset fora
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
at the ilease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is
initially measured at cost and subsequently depreciated over
the lease term. The lease liability is measured al the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid atf the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannct be readily
determined, at the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. The
Group has elected to apply the practical expedient which
allows the Group to use a single discount rate for a partfolio of
leases with similar charactersfics.

The Group has elected not to recognise righf-cf-use assets and
lease liabilities for short term leases of less than 12 months and
leases of low value assets (below US$5,000). instead, the Group
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as
an expense on a straight-line basis aver the lease term.

207 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIRLE ASSETS
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group's share of the net assets of the
acquired subsidiary, associate, or joint venture at the date of
acquisition. Separately recognised goodwil is tested annually for
impairment and camed at cost less impaiment losses.

Goodwill is included when defermining the profit or foss

on subsequent disposal of the business to which it relates.
Gooawil s allocated to cash generating vnils for the purpose
of impaiment testing.

Cther intangible assets

Other intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment iosses. Amortisation is based on
the useful tives of the assets concemed, and reécognised an a
straight-line basis over the following pericds:

Computer software and licences
Development costs

2-5vyears
4 years

Development cosfs

Development costs are capitalised as intangible assets ontly if
cerlain chteria are met in order 1o demonsirate the asset will
generate future economic benefits and that its cost can be
reliably measured. Developments costs include IT assets under
construction. All other research and development expenditure
is recognised in cost of sales or administrative expenses as
ncurred. Research and development expenditure credits
relate to amounts recoverabie hunn HMRC on proviowsiy
incurred expenditure. Research and development

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

expendifure credits relate to amounts recoverable from HMRC
on previously incurred expenditure.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
cmortisation and are tested for impairment annuaily. Assets
that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed
for impairment of reversal of prior impaiments when significant
circumstances or events indicate a change in the carrying
value. For impaiment festing, gonaiwillis allocoted 1o cosh-
generating units by geographical reporting unit and business
segment. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which
there are separately identifioble cash flows.

208 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
The Group has classified its financial investments as assets held
to collect and to sell which are recognised of fair value.

Changes in the fair value of financial investments classified os
held for sale are recorded in the fair value reserve within
equity. When these are sold, the fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income statement.

Under the terms of a Private Finance Initiative ('PH'} or similar
project, where the risks and rewards of ownership remain
largely with the purchaser of the associated services, the
Group’s interest in the asset is classified within investments in
joint ventures as held to cotlect and to sell under IFRS 9. These
investments are mecasured ot fair value through other
comprehensive income.

207 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the daie of the contract and are subsegquently remeasured at
their fair value. Movements in fair value are recorded in the
income statement, together with any changes in the fair value
of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the
hedged risk. The full fair value of a hedging derivative is
classified as a non-current asset or liability if the remaining
maturity of the hedged itern is more than 12 menths, and os a
current asset or liability if the maturity of the hedged itemis less
than 12 maonihs.

210 INVENTORIES

inventories are staled at the lower of cost and estimated
realisable value. Cost comprises the purchase price, net of any
discounts received, cost of conversion and other costs
involved in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condifion, such as direct and subcontract labour and
overheads. The cost of development land may inciude
borrowing costs. When determining the cost of inventaories the
Group's business units will apply either the firsi-in first-out ['FIFO")
method or the weighted average cost formula, whichever is
relevant for their operation. Inventories are assessed {0
determine if damage, obsclescence, or other external factors
have reduced the ability to recover the cost. When this occurs
ihe Group will write down the inventories to their estimated net
realisable value. Net realisable value represents the estimated
income less ol estimated costs of completion and costs to be
incurred in marketing, seling, and distribution.

211 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, project bank accounts
controlled by the Group. and other shori-term highly liquid
investments with less than 0 days maturity from the date of
acquisition. For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash,
and ~ash equivalents also include bank overdrafis, which are
included in bhormowings in the statement ot tinanciai posttior.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

21 2TIRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are initialy recorded at fair value and
subseguently measured at amortised cost reduced by an
allowance for expected credit losses and appropriate
allowances for estimated imrecoverable amounts. Subsequent
recoveries of amounis previously written off are creclited (o the
income staterment line In which the provision was originally
recognised.

The Group has applied the simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance. To measure the expected credi losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on days overdue.

Cther receivables are stated at cost,

2UA3TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other payables are not interest bearing and are
stated af cast.

214 PROVISIONS

Provisions for legal claims, defects and onerous contract costs,
dilapidation provisions, and other onerous commitments are
recognised gt the best estimate of the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the liability.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legai
or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, where it is
probable that an outflow will be required to seftle the
obligation and the amount of the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

215REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control over a
product or sevice to its customer. Revenue is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
sales tax, for goods and services supplied to extemal
custormers, and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue recognition is based on the satisfaction of
individua! performance obligations and for construction and
service contracts, these obligations are satisfied over time,
therefore contract revenue and costs are recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of each contract, as
measured by the proportion of total costs incured as at the
balance sheet date compared fo the total expected costs of
the contract, as set out in the accounting policy for
construction and service contracts.

Where consideration is not specified in the contract with a
customer, and is therefore subject to variability, the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to be received fromits
customer. The measurement of variable consideration is
subject fo the constraining principle whereby revenue will only
be recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the amaount of comulative revenue wili
nof occur.

Addifionally, where a modification fo an existing confract occurs,
the Group assesses the nature of the modification and whether it
represents a new separate performance obligation or whetheritis
a modification o the existing perfomance obigation.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the
period between the request for payment for the transfer of
goods and services to the customer and the payment by the
custaomer exceeds one year. As a conseauence, the Group
does not adjust its fransaction price for the time value of money.
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The Group has an integrated supply chair imodel, offering
wide ranging construction related activities. Depending on the
nature of the product or service delivered and the timing of
when control is passed onto the custormer, the Group will
occount for the revenue over time or at a point in time.

Revenue on a Group basis is recognised as follows:

— Revenue from construction and certain service activities s
recognised over time and the Group uses the input method
to measure progress of delivery;

- Revenue from manufacturing activities and certain service
activities is recognised at a point in time when title has
passed to the customer, and

-- Revenue from plant hire aciivities is recognised over time as
performance obligations are satisfied.

Any consideration received from the customer in relafion to
the mobilisation phase of a contract is defered and
recognised as additional revenue relating to the performance
obligations in the contract that benefit the customer.

The Company recognises revenue in respect of parent
company guarantee services provided to its subsidiaries. This
revenue is recognised over time as the performance
obligations are satisfied.

216 CONSTRUCTION AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

When the outcome of individual contracts can be estmated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of each contract, as measured by the
proportion of total costs incurred as at the balance sheet date
compared to the estimated total cost of the coniract.
Contract costs are expensed as incurred. Where multiple
contracts are signed to deliver a single commercial objective,
as agreed at the ocutset, elements such as initial works and
main works contracts, are treated as separate contracts. buf
are viewed as representing a single performance obligation.
Accordingly, revenues and costs from these contracts are
accounted for using the cumulative catch-up method, with
revenue recognised based on costs incurred as a proportion
of total expected costs across the contracts on an
aggregated basis. Management has made this judgement on
the basis that work performed under such separate legal
contracts constitutes a single performance obligation, as it
does not consider that distinct goods or services are provided
as a result of waork performed under each contract from which
the custorner can derive an identifiable benefit i.e. the
customer only benefits from the output of the contracts on a
combined basis. This judgement is separately evaluated for
every contract to ensure that the facts and circumstances
unique to each contract are considered and revenue is
accounted for appropriately.

Provision is made for all known or expected [osses on individual
confracts once such losses are foreseen. Incremental costs
required to satisfy contract obligations are considered in this
assessment. As noted in note 2.02, amendments to IAS 37,
which were applicable for the Group as of 1 April 2022, require
an assessment of other costs directly relating to fulfiling
confracts to be included in the provision for all known or
expected losses as well as when assessing whether a coniract
is loss making.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[CONTINUED)

206 CONSTRUCTION AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
(COMNTINUED)

Where costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised
losses exceed progress bilings, the balonce is recognised as o
contract asset. Where progress bilings exceed costs incurred
plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the balance is
recognised as a contract labiiity. Conlrucl assets include
retentions and are classified as a current asset unless recovery
is due in more than one year.

Estimates ot the tnul outcone on each contract may inchide
cost contingencies to take account of specific risks within
each contract, Cost contingencies are reviewed on a reguiar
basis throughout the life of the contract and are adjusted
where appropriate. However, the nature of the risks on
projects is such that such risks often cannot be resolved until
the end of the project and therefore may not reverse until the
end of the project. The estimated final outcome on projects s
continually reviewed, recoveries from insurers are assessed
and adjustments are made where necessary.

Revenue in respect of variations 1o contracts and incentive
payments is recognised when there is an enforceabie right to
payment and it is highly probable it will be agreed by the
customer. Varioble consideration is assessed on an individual
contract basis according to the circurmstances and terms of
each project and only recognised to the extent that it is highly
probable not to significantly reverse in the future.

2147 PREFCONTRACT BID COSTS
Pre-contract costs are expensed as incured.

ZI8PENSION COSTS

The Group operates defined contribution pensicn schemes for
statf. The contributions paid by the Group and the employees
are invested in the pension fund within 30 days following
deduction. Once the confributions have been poid, the
Group, as employer, has no further payment obiigations, The
Group's contributions are charged to the income statement in
the year to which they relote.

2A9TAX

Tax expense represents the sum of the tax cumently payable
and defered tax. The current tax expense s based on the
taxable profits for the year. after any adjustments in respect of
prior years. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in
the income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductiole in other years and it
also excludes items that are neither taxabie nor deductible.
The Group's iability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted of substantively enacted
by the reporting date.

Deterred tax Is provided on temparary differences aiising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures,
except where the fming of the reversal of the temporary
difference can be controlled and it is probable that the
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
iaxes are not provided in respect of temporary difierences
arising from the initial recognition of goodwill, or frorm goodwill
for which amortisation is not deductible for tax purposes, or
from the initial recognition of on asset or liability in o
transaction which is not a business combination and affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss at the time
ol the transaction. Deferred income tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that tuture taxable ofit will be
avaiiable against which the femporary differences can be
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utitised. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates based on
those enacted or substantively enocted at the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related assetis
redlised or liability settled. Deferred taxis charged or credited
in the income statement except when it relates to itermns
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the
defered tax is also included in equity.

Deterred tax assets and liabilifies are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right 1o offset curent tax assets against
curent tax liabifities and when the defefred tax ussets ang
liciilifies relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority
on either the some taxable entity or different taxoble entities
wherc thore i an intention 1o settle the balances on a net basis.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
retums with respect o situations in which applicable 1ax
regulation is subject to interpretation. If establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

2. 20BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS
Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafs are recognised
inifially at fair value net of transaction costs incurred.

Al borrowings are subseguently stated at amaorised cost
with the difference between initial net proceeds and
redemption value recognised in the income statement
over the period to redemption.

Barrowing costs are capitalised where the Group bamrows
funds specifically for the purpese of acquinng. constructing, or
producing a qualifying asset, in accordance with I1AS 23,
‘Borrowing Costs’. All other finance costs of debt, including
prernivms payable on settlement and direct issue costs, are
charged to the income statement on an accruals basis over
the term of the instrument, using the effective interest method.

Bomowings are classified as current liakilities unless the Group
has an unconditionalright to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months affer the balance sheel date.

Changes in borrowings are assessed for modification or
extinguishment in accordance with IFRS 2, with a gain or joss
recognised in the income statement where required.

2.21 SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

222 EXCERPTIONAL ITEMS

Excepiionaliterns are defined as income or expenditure
relating te one-off events which, in ihe opinion of the Directors,
are materiol, notf expected to recur and unusual in natfure or of
such significance that they require separate disclasure on the
face of the consolidated income statement in accordance
with 1AS 1, 'Presentation of Financial Statements'. An
assessment is made of events occuring during the year on
both a quantitative and qualitative basis 1o determine which
events require separate disclosure because they do not relate
to the Group's underlying performance.

2.23TRADING ANALYSIS

Trading analysis information is based on the Group's intemal
repotting sfructure. Furiher information on the business frading
activities is set out in the Strategic Report. Trading anatysis
results present the directly attibutable contribution Gf the
different business froding aclivilies fo the results of the Group.
Transactions are conducted at arm’s length market prices.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. 24 INTEREST INCOME/ (EXPENSE)

Interest income/(expense) is recognised using the effective
interest method. In calcukiting interest income/ (expense), the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross camying amournyt
of the asset, when the asset is not impaired or to the amortised
cost of the linhility for interest cxpense. For lnancial assets that
have been impaired after initial recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer
impaired the interest income calculation reverts to the gross
carying amount.

225 GOVERNMENT GRANIS

Grants from the govermmment are recognised al their fair value
where there is areasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with all attached conditions and that the grant will be
received. Govemment grants are recognised in the income
statement over the period necessary to offset them against
the costs that they are intended to compensate.

2.26KEY JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of financial statements under IFRS requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
amounts recognised for assets and labilities at the balance
sheet date and the amounts of revenue and the expenses
incurred during the reporting period. Actual outcomes may
therefore differ from these estimates and assumptions. The
estimates and assumptions that have the most significant
impact on the camying value of assets and liabilities of the
Group within the next financial year are detailed as follows:

a) Revenve and margin recognition (judgement and
estimate)

The Group's revenue recognition and margin recognition
policies. which are set gut in notes 2.15 and below, are central
to the way the Groun values the work it has carried out in
each financial year and have been consistentty appfied.

Across the Group, 191 construction contracts (FY22: 188) were
revenue generating during the year. Of these 9 (FY22: 9)
individually had an impact of £5.0m or greater on operating
{loss}/profit.

The economic cutcomes of construction contracts are
principally determined by the contractual terms including how
revenue is calculated (which can include milestone
payments, progress-based payments, incentives, and gain-
share or pain-share), the type of service being provided/risks
being managed (for example traditional contracting or
construction management} and the actual operational and
financial performance versus forecast (at the time of contfract
award or subsequently}. Other external factors can also have
a material impact on performance, such as inflation, aspects
of design development, ground conditions, and the
performance of subcontractors.

The key judgements and estimates reiating to determining the
revenue and profit of these material contracts within the
Group's accounts are:

- Identification of separable performance obligations;

— Ensuring revenue recognised is highly prolzable, with specific
attenticn being paid fo the estimates of:

— Recoverability of claims and variations from clients for
changes in condition/scope;

- Revenue receivable in relation o achievement of gain-
share (or pain-share}, milestones, and other Incentive
arangements; and

- Deducticns for any damages levied by a client, e.g. for
late handover.

- Percentage of completion of the project versus the planned
cast programme;

— Achievability of the planned buld programme;
— Forecast cost to complete (including contingencies); and

- Allowances for post-practical completion works (including
rectification of defects),

Each contract is treated on its merits and subject to a regular
review of the revenue and costs to complete by the project
tearm and senior management. The level of estimation
uncertainty in the Group's construction business is mitigated
by:

— The processes in place regarding the selection of projects
during the bid/work-winning phase:

— The level of experience of management and the Board in
delivering projects and accounting for the various types of
projects; and

~ The processes in place to identify and mitigate issues
promptly.

Volatility is also reduced by the eftect of managing a
significant portfolio of projects.

Nevertheless, the profit recogniticn in our construction business
is a key estimate, due to the variety of contract terms and the
inherent uncertainties in any construction project.

The estimation techniques used forrevenue and profit
recognition on construction contracts require forecasts to be
made of the outcome of long-term coentracts which require
assessments and judgements to be made on the recovery of
pre-contract costs, changes in the scope of work, contract
programmes, maintenance and defects abilities, and
changes in costs.

Within its portfolio of contracts in the Europe Hub, the Group
has identified major sources of estimation uncertainty where it
has made significant judgements on the recovery of income
related to variations in scope, delays, and other claims, as well
as whether penalties, such as liquidated damages, will be
levied by customers, For recoveries recognised in respect of
each judgement, they have been recorded on the basis that
it is considered highly probable that a significant reversal of
such revenues recognised will not occurin the next year.
When determining whether a contract is onerous, the
ikelihcod of the recovery of additionalincome is considered
over the life of the contract. Where the receipt of incoeme is
probable, this is included in the Group's consideration of
whether the contract is onerous. There are arange of factors
influencing potential outcomes, and, as such, the exact
recoverable amounts are subject to change until agreements
are finalised cn these specific contracts.

The Group estimates that the possible cutcomes impacting
the revenue recognised in the financial year ended 31 March
2023 range from a potential gain of up to £76.3mto a
potential risk of up to £14.4m, with a cormesponding impact on
gross margin of a potential gain of up to £104.2m and a
potential risk of up to £38.9m.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2. 26 KEY JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY {CONTINUED)

a) Revenue and margin recognition (judgemenf and
estimate) (continued)

The Group estimates that the possible outcomes over the life
of the contracts, which is particuiarly refevant when
considering the extent to which any contract is onerous. range
from a potential gain of up to £126.2m to a potential risk of up
tc £47.0m. These changes in cutcomes may require
roassessment nf the cumutative gross margin recognised or
judgement as to whether an onerous provision is required. The
directors have assessed the range of possible outcormes based
on information available 1o therm at the date of approving the
financial statements to the extent it provides evidence of
conditions that existed ol the balance sheet date. As with any
judgement related o long-term contract accounting, these
contracts are affected by uncerttainties that are infuenced by
future events, and, therefore, it may require revision as the
confracts progress.

There are twao contracts included in the aggregated anatysis
above where negofiations are ongoing with clienis and the
Group expects these to conclude during FY24. The Group
currently assesses that, far these contracts, a reascnably
possible potential gain of up to £81.7m orloss of up to £23.1m
could be recognised during FY24.

Our construction and services business revenue for the year
was £1.9bn (FY22: £1.7 bn) with an associated negative margin
of 2.3 per cent (FY22: margin of 7.7 per cent). Should margins
reduce by 1 per cent the impact of such a change across the
Group's projects in delivery af the year-end would be an
impact on gross loss of £19.0m [FY22: on gross profit £17.5m).
Should revenues reduce by 1 per cent and the associated
costs reduce by 1 per cent, the impact on gross loss would be
£0.5m (FY22: on gross profit £1.3m).

b) Disputes and claims (judgement and estimale)
Management's best judgement has been reflected in the
accounting and reporfing of disputed amounts, legai cases,
and claims. but the actual future outcome may be different
from this judgement.

From time to fime, the Group receives claims from
subcontractors that it must evaluate in estimating the cosis to
complete on contracts and resolve as part of determining its
final contract positions. Management bases its estimates of
casts associated with such claims on its assessment of the
expected outcome of each matter using the latest availabie
information. There is inherent uncertainty associated with the
estimates made by management and any differences
between these estimaies and the eventual amounts setiled
may be material, However, given the extent of subcontractor
claims af any given point in time, as is common within the
sector, and as the quantum of amounts being claimed is not
always known, if is nof possible fo provide any meaningful
sensitivities of the estimates that have been maode.,

c) Exceptiondl items presentation (judgement and
estimate)

Judgement has been used to determine the preseniation of
exceptional tems, which relate to matters arising that are
unusual and generally not expected to recur. The exceptional
item arising in the year was a one-olf wrile down of intangible
assets of £2.4m (FY22: £nil}.

d) Accrued costs in respect of rectification of defects
(estimate)

There is estimation uncertainty in Gssessing accrued costs In
respect of the rectification of defects, which are based on
management's best estimate of the cost to be incurred as at
the reporting date either 1o rectify the defects or settle

claims received.

In the year ended 31 March 2023, costs in respect of the
rectification of defects of £25.3m (FY22: £15.5m) were incurred.
As disclosed in note 24, as at 31 March 2023, the Group held
igbithes, included i piovisions, of £51.1m, (FY22: £44.3m) in
respect of such defect rectification. Defect licbilities can arise
oh prujecls where the construction work. finished o number of
years ago and where the Group may not have access to the
site to fully assess the costs of rectification or where ihe likely
seftlement amount for defects when a claim has been
received may be hard to determine. Therefore, it is difficult to
provide meaningful sensitivity disclosures of the range of
estimation uncertainty. However, as an indication of the
estimation uncertainty associoted with this balance, a 10 per
cent movement in the balance would have an impact on the
consalidated income statement of £5.1m (FY22: £4.6my).
alihough actual movements may be greater and the final
outcome materially different to the amounts provided.

e} Going concern (judgement and estimate)

In preparing these consolidated financial statements using the
goeing concern basis of accounting, management has
considered the forecaost future cash flows of the Group under
a management case scenarnio and several downside
scenarnios (see pages 21 to 23 of the Directors’ Report).
Forecast future cash flows include the following areas of
estimation uncertainty:

— Work winning for the Group;

— Construction aclivity including proiect margins and working
capital position;

— Support of the supply chain in terms of product material,
labour supply and flexibility in payment terms;

— Inflationary pressures;

Disruption to the supply chain;

— Timing and quantum of outcomes of claims referred to in
rote 2.26b); and

— Structural drivers for construction work.

In order to forrm a conclusion on going concern and in
determining that there is no material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's going concern stafus,
management has exercised judgement by analysing the past
performaonce of the business, its existing porttolio of projects
and order book, and its expectation of work winning. In
addition it has drawn on its knowledge and experiise of key
drivers of cash flow performance in the construction sector in
the markets in which it operates to assess the forecast liquidity
and covenant headroom under its committed financing
facilities based on ifs severe but plausible downside scenario.
Furiher details of this assessment and the key assumptions
made are set out onpages 21 to 23.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.26KEY JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY [CONTINUED)

f) Tax (judgement and estimate)

The Group is subject to tax in a number of jurisdictions, and
judgement is required in determining the worndwide provision
for income tfaxes including the recognition of deferred fax
assels. The Group provides for future liabilities in respect of
uncertqin tax positions where it is probable that additional tax
may become payable in future petiods and such provisions
are based upon management's assessment of exposures.
Assets are only recognised where it is probable that additional
tax will become payable in future periods and that the asset
can be utilised.

The recognised deferred tax assets include £96.4m [FY22:
£35.8m) which relate to camied forward tax losses in relation to
UK operctions. The Greup has conciuded that these deferred
tax assets will be recovered using the estimated future taxable
income, which is based on the approved forecasts prepared
by management. These forecasts fully reflect current UK tax
laws that, in broad terms, restrict the offset of the camied
forward tax losses to 50 per cent of the forecast period's profit
and that the tax losses do not have an expiry date.

Deferred tax assets wil be utilised over a period of up to 15
years from the balance sheet date. Should the approved
forecast profits increase/reduce by 30 per cent in each year
used in the utilisation calculation, it would take -/+ 3years to
utilise the aeferred tax asset.

At the balance sheet date, a total tax liability of £1.0m (FY22:
£1.0m) has been recognised in respect of uncertain tox
paositions,

Due to the nature of the uncertainty associated with such tax
items, a very limited range of outcomes is possible — either the
tax provision becomes payable or not — and therefore it is not
practicable to provide sensitivity estimates.

2.27 OTHER JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

a) Impairment of goodwill {estimate)

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amounts of the cash generating
unit (CGU) to which the goodwil has been allocated. The
recoverable amount is determined ysing a value-in-use
calculation, which requires an estimation to be made of the
timing and amount of future cash flows expected to arise from
the CGU, and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. The discount rate useq, carrying value of
goodwil and funther details of the impairment calculation are
included in note 12,

Management has concluded that any reasonable updates to
the estimates associated with these areas of the financial
staternents are not expected to resylt in material change.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

b) Climate change (judgement and estimate)

in preparing the consolidated financial statements
rmanagement has considered the impact of climate change.
Patential impacts of climate change, which include increased
intensity and frequency of weather events and stricter
environmental tegislotion, have been considered by
management, together with the Group’s stated target of
becoming operationally net zero by 2030 and developing
plans to achieve net zero Scope 3 emissions by 2050 to the
extent these can be forecast at present, These considerations
did not have a materialimpact on the financial reporting
judgements and estimates and climate change is not
expected to have a significant impact on the Group's going
concern assessment to March 2025,

Specific areas considered by management included:

— Estimates of the future cash flows used in the impairment
assessment of the carrying value of goodwill where the
forecasts used include the impact of climate change to the
extent that these can be forecast at present (see note 12);

- Long-term contract accounting assumptions, such as the
forecast costs of a project and as these progress, the
estimated costs to complete and the allowance for
rectification warks (see note 2.26a);

- The appropriateness of the estimated useful economic lives
of the Group's property, plart, and equipment and right-of-
use assets (see notes 16 and 17) where no significant
changes are cumnently needed. and

- The recoverability of deferred tax assets recognised (see
note 25) inrespect of caried forward losses in relation to the
UK operations.

The Group continues to invest in new technologies and
product development including ¢ project to decarbenise
manufactured concrete components used in construction.
The costs of these projects are currently being expensed as
incurred.

228 COMPANY ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting peolicies applied by the Company
are the same as those presented in notes 2.01 to 2.24, to the
extent that the Group's transactions and kalances are
applied to the Company financial statements. The main
accounting policies which are not directly relevant te the
Laing O'Rourke Plc parent company financial statements are
those relating to consolidation accounting and the
recognition and subseqguent measurement of goodwill. The
judgements and estimation uncertainty policies that are not
relevant to the company are 2.26a), 2.26b), 2.26c), 2.24d).

The accounting policies that are additional to those applied
by the Group are as follows:

a) Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less, where
appropriate, provisions for impairment. Costs that are
incremental and directly attributable to the acguisition of
investments are capitalised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

228 COMPANY ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

b} Other judgements and estimation uncertainty
] Impdirment of investments in subsidiaries {estimate)

The Company periodically evaluates the recoverability of
investments in subsidiaries whenever indicators of impairment
are present. Indicators of impdadirment include such items as
declines in revenues, eamings or cash flows or material
adverse changes in the economic or political sfability of a
particular country, which may indicate that the present
cartying amount of an asset is not recoverable and that a
reduction in the subsidiary's canmying value is 1o be included in
the Company’s ncome statemeant tor the financlat pefiod.

i} Service amangement with o fellow Group undertaking
{judgement)

The Company has a nght-of-use asset which is vliised as a
manutacturing facility by a fellow Group undertaking. There is
no written contract regarding the terms of the arrangement,
however the arrangement is such that the fellow Group
undertaking must obtain pemmnission from the Company if they
want to sellits products to parties outside of the Group. The
directors have considered the guidance in Appendix B of IFRS
16 'Leasas’ and have concluded that in the opinion of the
directors, the manufacturing facility is controlled by the
Company and hence the arangement does not a constitute
alease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

3 REVENUE
The Group presents o disaggregation of ifs revenue according to the primary geographical markets and sectors in wich it
operates. There is no material difference between revenue by origin and revenue by destination.

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over time and at a point in time in the following geographical
regions and major segments:

United Kingdom! Rest of World Total
2023 2023 2023
£ £m £m

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in fime 228.7 0.4 2291
Over time 20608 - 2,060.8
Revenue including share of joint venlures 2,28%.5 0.4 2,289.9
At a pointin time 13.0 0.4 134
Over time 2,021.5 - 20215
Group revenuve 2,0345 0.4 2,034.9
Construction' Manutacturing Plant Hire Services Total
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
£m £m £m £m £m

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in fime - 10.6 - 2185 229.1
Qver lime o B 18798 - 117.5 435 2,060.8
Revenue including share of joint ventures 1,879.8 10.6 117.5 282.0 2,289.9
At a point in time - 10.6 - 28 134
Over time 1.879.8 - 78.2 63.5 2,021.5
Group revenue 18798 10.6 78.2 66.3 2,034.9

1. Included within UK and Construction revenue is £2.5m relating to significant financing components.

United Kingdormn’ Rest of World Total
2072 2022 2022
£m £m £m

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time 166.6 03 166.9
Over time 1.826.1 - 1.826.1
Revenue including share of joint ventures 1,992.7 03 1,993.0
At a point in time 153 03 15.6
Over time 1.791.7 - 1,791.7
Group revenue 1.807.0 0.3 1.807.3
Consfructon! Manufacturing Plant Hre Services Total
2022 v 2022 2022
&rm m £m £m Ermn

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time - 123 - 154.6 166.9
Over time 1,629.9 - 114.5 81.7 1,826.1
Revenue Including share of joint ventures 1,629.9 12.3 114.5 236.3 1,993.0
At a pointin time - 2.3 - 33 15.6
Over time 1,629.9 - 80.0 818 1,791.7
Group Revenue 1.6299 12.3 80.0 85.1 1,807.3

1. Included within UK and Construction revenus is £2.4m relating to significant financing components.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

4 TRADING ANALYSIS

This note provides additional value to the readers of these consolidated financial statements using some non-statutory disclosures.
as explained below.

2623 o
£m £m
Managed revenue* 2,530.8 2,229.2
Less: Inter-segment revenue* - - i (240.9) (236.2)
Total revenue including share of joint ventures* 22899 1,993.0
Less: Share of joint venturas revenus {255.0) (185.7}
Group revenue 2,034.9 1.807.3
(Loss)/profit before fox post-exceptional fems _ ) (188.3) 16.2
EBIT* post-exceptional items (171.6) 2%.0
EBITDA* post-exceptional items (135.8) 62.3
{Loss)/profit before tax and exceptional iterns {185.9} 16.2
EBIT* pre-exceplional tems (169.2) 29.0
EBITDA* pre-excepfional tems (133.4) 62.3

* These are non-statutory disciosures. EBIT is defined as profity (loss) from operations and EBTDA ¢ defined as profity (loss} from operations and adding back
depreciation and amortiscition. See note 31 for more detalls.

Exceptional
Pre- exceptional items Pre- excephondl Excegtiondlitems

temns {ncte 5) Total termns [note 5) Totah
2023 2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
EBIT and EBITDA: Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
EBIT (14%.2) (2.4) (171.6) 29.0 - 290
Depreciation 6 325 - 325 301 - 301
Amortisation 6 3.3 - 3.3 32 - 32
EBITDA (i33.4) (2.4) (135.8) 62.3 - 42.3

5 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
2023 2022
£m £m
Write off of intangibles 24 -
Exceptional costs before tax 24 -
Income tax credit on exceptionaiitems (0.5) -
Exceptional costs after tax 1.9 -

WRITE OFF OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS

During the year, the Directors performed a one-off review of the Group’s intangible assets including development costs. As a result
of this review exceptional write offs of £2.4m {FY22: £nil) were recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

6  (LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

(Loss}/profit from operations is stated after charging/(crediting): Nole 2(5: 2?5?3\
Staff costs! 7 5294 4929
Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment 16 8.9 %.5
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 17 234 206
Shortterm lease rentals ond short-term hires;

Property, plant, and equipment 0.9 30
Amortisaticn of other intangible assets 12 33 32
Profit on disposal of plant and equipment, and right-of-use assets {(1.7) 11.2)
Foreign exchange iosses/(gains) 0.5 o.n
Amaount of inventories recognised as an expense 335 353
Research and development recognised as an expense 46.4 33.0
Accrued costs in respect of rectification of defective works 253 15.5
Intercompany balances waived by the other Group entities (3.2) -
Govemment grants (0.9) (1.8)
Auditors’ remuneration (see below) 3.7 3.1

1. taff costs for FY22 have been restated in the table atbove to comect o prior year emor, Staff costs have increased by £4.9m from £488.0m to £492.9m.

Auditors’ remuneration 2%2; Q‘frﬁ
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of:

The Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 3.2 28

The Company's annual financial statements and consolidated financial statements 0.5 0.3
Total audit fees 37 3.1
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and its associates for other services - -
Total non-audit fees - _ _ o - =
Tolalfees ) 37 3.1

Included within the FY23 Group audit fee of £3.7m is £0.7m of Group audit fee overruns in respect of FY22 (FY22: £0.6m in respect
of £¥21).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

7  STAFF COSTS AND EMPFLOYEE NUMBERS

2023 207
Number of employees Nurmbet Number
The average monthly number of employees (including Directors) during the year was:
Executives 114 95
Salaried staft 3,738 3,506
Qperatives - - - 3132 2980
T 5,984 6,581
Aggregate remuneration and related costs, including Directors 202 oz
Wages and salaries’ 4528 426 4
Social security costs’ 54.4 47 .6
Ofther pension cosls 220 18.9
5294 492.9

1. Salaries and social security costs for FY22 have been restated in the table above 1o comect a prior year error. Sclaries have increased by £4.8m from £421.6m
to £426.4m. Social security cosis frave increased by £0.1m fromt £47.5m to £47.6m.

At 31 March 2023 £3.5m [FY22: £3.1m) was payable in respect of defined contribution schemes and included in other payables
{note 23}).

TRANSACTIONS WITH KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The Group's key management personnel during the yearinclude the six Directors and eighteen other members (FY22: six Directors
and fitteen other members} who served on the European board during the year or are Directors of entities within the Group.

The compensation of key management personne!l [excluding Directors) is as foliows:

2023 2022
&m £m
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits! 7.0 7.6

1. Compensation of key management personnel for FY22 has been represented in the table above to comect a prior year emor. Costs have increcsed by £1.7m
from £5.9m to £7.6m.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
The total remuneration of the Directors was as follows:

2023 2022
£m £m
Salaries and other short-term benefits! 43 6.6

1. Directors’ remuneration for FY22 has been resiated in the fabie above fo comect a prior year ermor. Cosfs have incredsed by £1.5m from £5.1m to £6.6m.

One of the Directors is accruing benetits under g defined contibution scheme [FY22: one). No postretirement benefits were poid
on behalf of Directors (FY22: £nil). The total compensation for ol key management personnel! [including Directors) is £12.6m {FY22:
£11.0m). The remuneration for some of the Directors of the Company is borme by Laing C'Rourke Services Limited, a subsidiary
undertaking of the Company.

HIGHEST-PAID UDIRECTOR
Amounts included above:

2023 02
£m £m
Aggregate emoluments and other benefits! 1.0 1.3

1. Aggregate emoluments and other benefits for FY22 has been restaled in the table above to comect o prior year errer. Costs have increased by £0.3m from
£21.0m1o£1.3m,

8 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2023 2022

£m £m

Research and develcpment expenditure credit 7 47
Rents received 0.1 o1
Qther operatingincore . 05 _ -
' 10.3 48

The research and development expenditure credit is based on an assessment of recoverability from HMRC.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

? FINANCE INCOME

2023 2022
£m £rm
Bank interest 0.4 -
Other interest and similar income - 0.1
0.6 0.1
10 FINANCE EXPENSE
2023 2002
£m £m
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts 21 24
Interest payable on lease liabilities 74 31
Interest payable to other Laing C'Rourke Corperation Group entities 2.1 1.6
Other interest payable and simifar charges 57 58
17.3 12.9
1T TAXATION
2023 20%
£m £m
Cumrent corporation tax
Current tax on income for the year - -
Foreign tax
Current 1ax on income for the year - 0.7
Adjustments in respect of prior years ] o o o B 12 {0])
Total curent tax charge 1.2 0.6
Net crigination of temporary differences — current year (49.1) 23
Adjustments in respect of prior years (5.0 (0.5
impact of change in tax rate (6.5} (6.4}
Total deferred tax credit (60.8) {4.6)
Tax credit (5%.4) (4.0)

The averall credit (FY22: credit) for the year of £59.4m (FY22: credit of £4.0m) is explained relative to the UK statutory rate of 19 per
cent (FY22: 19 per cent) below:

2023 2022
£m £m

Total tax reconciliation
{Loss) /profit before tax (188.3) 16.2
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 19% {FY22:19%) (35.8) 31
Effects of:
- (lower)/higher averseas tax rates (0.1) 0.7
- income not subject to tax)/other expenditure that is not tax deductible (5.7) 1.1
- adjustments in respect of prior years (3.8} (0.6}
-impact of change in UK tax rate (15.4) (6.5)
- unrecognised defered tax asset 1.4 (2.1}
- other adjustments - 0.3
Total tax credit (59.4) {4.0)

A total Group tax credit (FY22: credit) of £59.4m {FY22: £4.0m} arises for the year on the total Group loss of £188.3m (FY22: prefit of
£16.2m). The total tax credit for the year includes an exceptional tax credit of £0.5m [FY22: £nil) in relation to tax-allowable
exceptional expenditure for the wiite down of costs (see note 5),

On 20 June 2023, Finance (No.2) Act 2023 was substantively enacted in the UK, infroducing a global minimum effective tax rate of
15 per cent. The legislation implements a domestic top-up tax and a multinational top-up ax, effective for accounting periods
starting on or after 31 December 2023. The Group does not account for defermed tax on top-up taxes and, therefore, if these rules
had been substantively enacted on the balance sheet date, there would have been no impact,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

11 TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Cn 3 March 2021, the UK goveinment announced that from 1 April 2023 the corporation tax rate would dise from 19 per cent 1o 25
per cent. This new iaw was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021 and therefore UK deferred tax assets and licbilties, which were
previously recognised at 12 per cent, were recalculated at 25 per cent resulling in a £6.5m credit during FY22.

A further £15.4m credit has been recognised during FY23, £6.5m arises due to a change in our utilisation of brought forward fax

losses and £8.9m arises due to temporary differences (primarily losses and accelerated capital allowances) originating during the
current year.

The UK Finance Act 2021 announced a 130 per cent super-deduction for expenditure on qualitying assets incurred from 1 April
2021 untitthe end of March 2023 and a 50 per cent firsl year allowance was infroduced for special rate assets. The Group is

expecling to claim this refief on £55.5m of additions during FY23 (FY22: £49.6my} across property, plant, and equipment, right-of-use
assets. and intangible assets.

TAX EFFECTS RELATING TO EACH COMPONENT OF COMPREMENSIVE INCOME

2023 2022
Betore-tax Net-of-feix Bafore-iax Net-of-teix
amoynt Tax credit dfmount amount Teax expense arrount
£m £m £m £m £m im

Exchange differences on transiating foreign

operations (1.5) - (1.5} {0.8) - 0.8
Movement in fair value of finoncial assets - - - (0.7) - (0.7}
(1.5) - (1.5) (1.5) - {1.5)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer
software and Development

G[oup Good;vri‘l.: Iicem;;: c::s: Tl:::-:
Cost
At April 2022 24.7 41.3 6.2 722
Additions - 53 1.1 &4
Disposals - {2.1) {4.4) (6.5)
Transters - (7.0) 7.0 -
Exchange differences - 0.3 - 0.3
At 31 March 2023 ' 247 37.8 9.9 724
Accumulated amorisation and impairment
At 1 April 2022 - 28.2 34 31.4
Amortisation for the year - 33 - 33
Disposals - (0.8) (3.4) {4.2)
Exchange difterences - 0.3 - 03
At 31 March 2023 - 31.0 - 31.0
Net book value at 31 March 2023 247 48 9.9 41.4
Cost
At 1 April 2027 24.7 33.4 51 63.2
Additions - 77 1.1 88
Exchange differences - 0.2 - 0.2
At 31 March 2022 24.7 41.3 6.2 72.2
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1 April 2021 - 24.8 3.4 28.2
Amortisation for the year - 3.2 - 3.2
Exchange differences - 0.2 - 0.2
Al 31 March 2022 - 282 3.4 31.4
Net book value at 31 March 2022 247 13.1 28 40.6
IMPAIRMENT TESTS FOR CASH-GEMNERATING UNITS CONTAINING GOODWILL

2023 2022

£m £m

United Kingdom 247 24.7

The Group owns several engineering, construction, manufacturing, and specialist services companies, which combine to provide
clients with a comprehensive investment, development, and management capabllity and due to the set up of the approach to
market, management is of the view that the UK entities as a whole is the smallest group of assets generating cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets. Therefore an impairment test is performed for fhe UK enfifies as a whole
given that all UK entities collaborate to operate as one CGU.

The recoverable amount of goodwill attached to the cash generating unit (CGU} is determined based on value-in-use
calculations in accordance with IAS 36, Impaiment of Assets. The CGU calculation uses cash flow projections based on four-year
financial budgets approved by management. The CGU calculation uses a perpetual growth rate of 2 per cent based cn industry
data [FY22: 2 per cent), discounted at the Group's estimated pre-tax weighted average cost of capital of 12.4 per cent (FY22:
13.3 per cent). Budgeted gross margins are based on past performance and management's market expectations. The weighted
average cost of capital is an estimate based on that of listed indusiry competitors, adjusted for changes in capital structures and
specific considerations.

Sensitivity analysis, including the potential impact of inflation, supply chain disruption and climate change, has been performed
on the goodwill in relation to the CGU by changing the key assumptions applicable. In the view of the Directors there is not a
reascnably foreseeable chonge in a key assumption that would trigger an impaiment charge.

Assumed revenue growth is 9 per cent for FY24, 3 per cent for FY25, 2 per cent for FY26 and 2 per cent for FY27 and gross margin is
assumed to increase from & per cent in FY24 tc 11 per cent in FY27. Overheads are assumed to remain stalble during the forecast
period at approximately 3 per cent of revenue.,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

AMORTISATION CHARGE
The amortisation charges in respect of computer software and licences and development caosts are recognised in the following
fine itern in the comsalidated income statement;

2023 2022
£m £m
Administrative expenses 3.3 3.2
13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Subsidiary
Underiakings
Shares
Company £m
Cost
ALY April 2022 2.4
Acquisitions o 0.9
At 31 March 2023 2923
impairment
At T Aprit 2022 (70.1)
Provision faor the yvear (1.6)
At 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023 71.7)
Net book value
At 31 March 2023 220.6
At 31 March 2022 221.3

The Directors believe that the canying value of the individual investments are supported by their underlying net assets or forecast
cash flows.

SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS SHARES

Subsidiary
The iwo companies listed befow were acquired from other Group entities for their book values on 1 April 2022 underiokings
as part of the UK Group restructure £m
Cellence Plus Limifed 09
John Laing International Limited -
Acquisitions 0.9

All of the subsidiary companies have been included in the consolidated financial statements.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group have opted to take advantage of a statutory exemption from having an audit in respect of
their individual statutory accounts. Strict criteria must be met for this exemption to be taken and it must be agreed to by the
directors of thase subsidiary entities. Listed in note 37 are subsidiaries controlled and consolidated by the Group where the
directors have taken advantage of the exemption from having an audit of the entities’ individual financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006.

in order to facilitate the adoption of this exemption, Laing O'Rourke Plc, the parent company of the subsidiaries concerned,
undertakes to provide a guarantee under Section 479C of the Companies Aci 2006 inrespect of those subsidiaries.

14 DISPOSALS AND DISSOLUTIONS
DISSOLUTIONS
Maravale Investments (UK) Limited and Strongforce Engineering Limited on 30 August 2022

Canal Harbour Development Company Limited on 9 January 2023,
Sundera Holdings Limited on 8 July 2023.

DISPOSALS
New City Vision Haldings Limited on 28 March 2023.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES

Joint ventures
equity Leans to Joint

Group 'nmm‘eznr: vem;:f\: 1‘::'::
At 1 April 2022 {(5.5) 8.0 25
Capitalinjections in equity investrments 42 - 4.2
Exchange differences ] 01 - 0.1
At 31 March 2023 o ' (12) 8.0 68
Share of results for the year after tax 28 - 28
Net book vaiue at 31 March 2023 1.6 8.0 7.4
At 1 April 2021 (33.7) 41.6 79
Capital injections in equity investments 08 - 08
Acquisition of the remaining shares in Canal Harbour Development Company 34.4 (34.4) -
Fair value revaluation of financial assets (0.7} - (0.7)
Exchange differences {0.2} cs8 0.6
At 31 March 2022 0.6 8.0 8.4
Share of results for the year affer tax (6.1) - {6.1)
Net book value at 31 March 2022 (5.5} 8.0 2.5

The Group's share of joint venture investments and loans to joint ventures is presented above. IFRS 11, Joint Amangements, requires
the following presentation adjustments:

— Where the Group has already accounted for an cbligation to fund net abifties of o joint venture this is deducted from loans
made to the joint venture; and

— Where the Group's obligafion to fund net liabilities of a joint venture exceeds the amount loaned, a provision is recorded (see
note 24),

The Group's investments in joint ventures are presented in the statement of financial position as:

2023 2022

£m £m

Investments in joint ventures 8.3 55
Loans to joint ventures 8.0 80
Provisions [note 24) {6.7) (11.0
9.6 2.5

The loar to joint ventures is unsecured, attracts interest at a fixed rate of 11.74 per cent, has no fixed date of repayment and is
repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
The joint ventures are shown in note 37. Each joint vanture has share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which is held by
the Group. Each joint venture is a private company and there is no guoted market price available for its shares.

Set out below is the summarised financial information for the joint ventures which are material to the Group. The information

disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant joint ventures and not Laing O'Rourke Plc’s
share of these amounts. They have been amended fo reflaci adjustments made by the entity when using the equity method
including fair value adiustments and modifications for differences in accounting policies.

Health Montreal

Collective CIV
Limited Explore Transport BYLOR Services
Partnership Aider Hey Limited Limited Other Total
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
£Em £m £m £m £m £m
Revenve - 25 78.7 429.3 - 510.5
Depreciation and amoertisation - - (7.7) - - (7.7}
Otherexpenses - (2.1) (64.6) (429.3) = - {494.0)
Operating profit - 0.4 6.4 - - 4.8
Net finance income/(costs) - - 0.3 (1.3) - - (1.0}
Profit before tax - 0.7 5.1 - - 58
Toxexpense - - - - - =
Profit after tax - 07 57 - - 58
Other comprehensive resull . - ~ - - -
Total comprehensive income - 0.7 5.1 - - 5.8
Dividends received from joint venfures ~ - - - = -
Non-current assels
Property, plant and equipment - - 35.0 - - 35.0
Other non-cuent assets - 109.2 - -~ - 109.2
Curtent assels
Cash and cash equivdlents 1.0 18.1 49 17.7 ~ 41.7
Other current assets 11.5 3.1 144 342 ~ 63.2
Total assets 125 130.4 543 51.% - 2491
Current liabilties
Bomrowings - - (32) - - (3.2)
Other current liabilities (25.9) (3.3) (11.4) (51.9) - (92.5)
Non-current liabilities
Bomowings - (120.7) (20.8) - - (141.5)
Other non-current liabilities - (5.7) (2.8) - - (8.5)
Total liabilities (25.9) (129.7) (38.2) (51.9) - (245.7)
Net (liabilities)/assets (13.4) 0.7 16.1 - - 34

Financial commitments - -

Capital commitments - -

Please refer to note 37 for details of the place of business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND LOANS TO JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Il Moriredl
Collectve CIV

umited Explore Transport BYLOR Services
Partnership Alder Hey Limited Limited Cther Total
2022 2022 2022 2022 022 2022
Em £m £m £mn £rm £m
Revenue - 38 68.9 299.6 - 3723
Depreciafion and amortisalion - - (6.4) - - (4.4}
Other expenses (10.7) _(8.4) (5%.0) (299.6) - (377.9)
Operating (loss)/profit - - (10.7] (4.8) 35 - - (12.0)
Net finance income/{costs) - 0.1 (©.8) - - (0.7)
(Loss)/profit before tax (10.7) (4.7) 27 - - {12.7)
Tax expense - - (0.5) - - {0.5)
(Loss)/profit after tax (10.7) (4.7) 22 - - (13.2)
Other cormprehensive result - - - - - -
Total comprehensive (expense)/income (10.7) (4.7) 2.2 - - {13.2)
Dividends received from joint ventures - - - - - -
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment - — 34.2 - - 34.2
Other non-curent assets - 114.4 - - - 114.4
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1.3 16.3 4.1 122 - 339
Other current assets 12.0 2.1 14.9 70 - 360
Total assets 13.3 132.8 53.2 19.2 - 218.5
Cumrent liabilities
Borrowings - - (4.8) - - {4.8)
Other cumrent liablities {35.4) (5.6) (17.0) (19.2) — (77.2)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings - (121.8) (17.8] - - {139.4)
Other non-cumrent liabiiities - - {2.7) - - (2.7)
Total liabilities {35.4) (127.4) 142.3) {19.2) - {224.3)
Net (liabilities}/assets {22.1} 5.4 10.9 - - (5.8)
Financial comrmitrments - - — — — -
Capital commitrments - - - — - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

15 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND LOANS TC JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Jont ventures

equity Loans to joint

investrnents ventures Total
Company £m £m £m
Atlapd2o22 - . . _ . _._. - __58&0_ 80
Net book value at 31 March 2023 - 8.0 8.0
AL 1 April 2021 a7 80 87
Fair value revaluation of financial assets I *4) - (0.7)
Met ook value at 31 March 2022 - 80 8.0

The Company's investment in joinf ventures and foans to joint ventures is presented above. iFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, requires

the folowing presentation adjusiments:

— Where the Company has already accounted for an obligation to fund netl lalilities of a joint venture this is deducled from loans

made o the joint venture; and

- Where the Company's abligation o fund net liobilities of a joint venture exceeds the amount loaned. a provision is recorded

(see note 24),

The Company's investments in ioint ventures are presented in the statement of financial position as:

2023 2022
£m £m
Investments in joint ventures - -
Loans to joint ventures 8.0 8.0
8.0 8.0

No impairments of equity investments were brought forward at 31 March 2022 or charged in the year (FY22 £nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

16 PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Land Plant, equipment,

and buildings' and vehicles Total
Group £m Em £m
Cost
At 1 Apiil 2022 302 127.0 157.2
Additions 1.4 8.7 8.1
Disposals (0.9) (%.1) (10.0)
Transfer to right-of-use gssets - (2.2) {2.2)
Other movements 02 0.2
At 31 March 2023 30.7 1224 153.3
Accumulaied depreciation
At 31 March 2022 94 848 942
Depreciation charge for the year 0.5 8.4 8.9
Disposals (0.4) (7.9 {8.3)
Transfer to right-of-use assets - (6.2) (5.2)
Other movements - 2.7 27
At 31 March 2023 9.5 81.8 1.3
Net book value at 31 March 2023 21.2 40.8 420
Cost
At 1 April 2021 325 1393 171.8
Addiitions 0.4 6.3 6.7
Disposals (2.7) {14.0) {16.7)
Transfer to right-of-use assets - (4.4) (4.4)
Other movements - (0.2) (0.2)
At 31 March 2022 30.2 127.0 157.2
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2021 1.7 91.9 103.6
Depreciation charge for the year 0.5 2.0 2.5
Disposails {2.7) (12.7) (15.4)
Transfer to right-of-use assets - 0.2 0.2
Other mavements (0.1) (3.6) (3.7}
Al 31 March 2022 9.4 848 24,2
Net book value at 31 March 2022 20.8 42.2 43.0

1. The categories of group owner occupied land and bulldings and other lang and buildings disclosed in FY22 have been combined 10 form one new
category of land and buildings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

17 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Planf & equipment,

Land and byidings and vehicles Total
Group £m m £m
Cost
At 1 April 2022 94.5 179.2 2737
Additions 22 31.6 338
Disposals 2.7) (9.9) (12.8)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment - 22 22
Other movements . - - b {0.1) -
At 31 March 2023 _ o 4.1 203.0 297.1
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2022 221 574 79.5
Depreciafion charge for the year 8.1 158 23.6
Disposals {2.5) {(7.9) {10.4}
Transfer from property, plant and eguipment - 6.2 62
Other movements 0.1 (2.8) (2.5)
A1 31 March 2023 o 278 68.6 6.4
Net book value at 31 March 2023 66.3 1344 2007
Cost
At 1 April 2021 21.8 128.4 220.2
Additions 38 483 521
Disposals (1.3) (2.2) [3.5)
Transfer 1o propeny, plant, and equipment - 4.4 4.4
Other movements 0.2 0.3 0.5
MBI Morch2022 s M2 237
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2021 152 47 .4 62.6
Depreciation charge for the year 8.1 125 20.6
Disposals (1.3 (2.2) (3.5}
Transfer from property, plant, and equiprment - {0.2) 0.2)
Other movements e N {C.1} -
At 31 March 2022 221 57.4 79.5
Net book value at 31 March 2022 72.4 1218 1942
Land dict
buldings
Company £m
Cost
At 1 April 2022 88.0
Additions 01
Disposals (1.8)
Other 2.
At 31 March 2023 88.6
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2022 233
Depreciation charge for the year 8.1
Disposais {1.8)
At 31 March 2023 29.8
Net book value at 31 March 2023 58.8
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

17 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Land and

Company ) buildir;gﬂs
Cost
At T April 2021 88.0
At 31 March 2022 e 880
Accumulated d;aaﬁon
AT April 2021 15.2
Depreciation charge for the year . 81
At 31 March 2022 . 233
Net book value at 31 March 2022 64.7
18 INVENTORIES
Group m?r: Zﬁ
Work in progress 57 54
Raw materials and consumables 124 10.9
Finished goods and gooeds for resale - 0.1

181 16.4

Work in progress at 31 March 2023 includes assets to a value of £0.8m (FY22: £0.8m} expected to be consumed during the
forthceming year. inventories camed at net realisable value at 31 March 2023 did not differ from their carnrying value.

19 CONTRACT BALANCES
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TCG CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Contract assets are made vp of a portfolio of contracts and represent unbilled amounts, including amounts arising from changes
to scope of works that have been recognised as revenue but not yet biled. Contract liabilifies result when cumulative cash
received exceeds cumulative revenue on any particular contract. There are no significant one-off factors attributed 1o the

movements of these balances oufside of nomal frading.

£m
Contract assets
At 1 April 2021 97.7
Transfers from contract assets recognised at the beginning of the year to receivables (37.0)
Performance cbligations satisfied in the year that have yet 1o be transferred to receivables N Al
A13l Morch 2022 - B 129.8
Transfers from contract assets recognised at the beginning of the year to receivables (74.0}
Performance obligations satisfied in the year that have yet to be fransferred to receivables 103.8
At 31 March 2023 159.6
Contract liabilifies £m
At 1 April 2021 {(186.1)
Revenue recognised against contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 1793
Increase due to cash received, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year (223.8)
At 31 March 2022 {230.6)
Revenue recognised against contract liabilifies at the beginning of the year 230.0
Increase due fo cash received, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year [263.2)
At 31 March 2023 (243.8)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

19 CONTRACT BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Assets Assets labilifies Liabities Net Net

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 w02
£m £m £m £m £m £
The ageing of contract assets/{liabilities) at the
year end was:
Less than one year 123.0 87 (263.7) [230.1) (140.7) {151.4)
More than one yeor 36.6 511 {0.1) {0.5) 36.5 50.6
159.6 129.8 (263.8) [230.6) (104.2) (100.8)

At 31 March 2023, contract assels include customer retentions of £48.8m [FY22: £60.7m) relating to construction contracts of which
£36.6m (FY22: £44.1mj are non-current assets. The Group manages the collection of retentions through its post compietion project
monierng precedures and ungoing cortuct with clients 1o nnsure that potentiol issues that could lead 1o the non-payment of
retentions are identified and addressed promptly. The Directors always estimate the loss allowance on contract assets al he end
of the reporting period at an amount equal to fifetime expecied credit losses. None of the contract assets at the end of the
reporting period are past due, and, taking into account the historical default experience and future prospects in the industry, the
Directors consider that the impact of impairment is not material. Accordingly no expected credit loss has been recognised.

Al 31 March 2023, contract liabilities includes significant financing components of £2.5m (FY22: £0.6m).

CONTRACT FULFILMENT COSTS
The Group has ne fulfiment costs within confract assefs.

REMAINING PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS
Contracts which have remaining performance obligations expected to be settted through to contract compietion are set out below:

Restated!

2023 2022

£m £m

Construction work in hand 4,559.9 4,448.2

Management expects that £2,320.2m (FY22: £2.097.2m1) in relation to confracts in place as at 31 March 2023 will be recognised
as revenue in the next financial year, £1,225.6m (FY22: £1,352.0m) will be recognised between 2 and 3 years and £944.1m (FY22:
£992.0m) will be recognised between 3 and 5 years.

1. The construction work in hand for FY22 was restated by £443.2m from £4,891 4m to £4,448 2m. the rernaining performance obligation as at 31 March 2022 has

been restated by £148.2m fram £2.265.4m to £2.097.2m os they had incorectly included revenue generated from o payrell services company which does
not have future performance obligations.

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Amounts expected to be recovered within one year: 2%2: 2(;2@
Group
Trade receivables 47.5 700
Less: alowances for expected credit losses {0.5) (1.0}
Amounts owed by Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited Group undertakings 5.2 10.9
Prepayments and accrued income 252 12.6
Other receivables 5.6 5.2
83.0 977
Company
Prepayments and accrued income 1.8 1.3
Other receivables -~ 03
1.8 1.6

Amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured, interest-free, have no fixed date of repayment, and are repayable on
demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

2023 2022
Amounts expecled to be recovered after more than one year; £m £m
Group
Trade receivables - 0.1
Ofther receivables - 0.3
- 0.4
Company
Amouynts owed by Laing O'Rourke Plc Group underiakings*® 250.9 2462
Qther receivables - 04
2509 246.4
Totaltrade and other receivables - Group ] B o o o 83.0 981
Tolal rade and other receivables - Company 252.7 24872
Group
Comprising
Financial assets (Note 29) 58.3 86.5
Other assets oulside the scope of IFRS 7 247 11.6
83.0 98.1

* The Directors have assessed the recoverability of ihe balance, including by reference to the financiat support the counterparty has received from Laing
O'Raurke Corporation Limited, the ultimate parent company, and on this basis the Directors are satisfied that ne provision for expected credit losses is required

In relation to this amaount for the year ended 31 Margh 2023.

Movement in the provision for impairment of rade receivables

2023 2022

£m £m

Opening balance 1.0 1.0
Additional provisions recognised - 0.1
Utilised during the year (0.5) -
Unused amounts reversed - (0.1)
Closing balance 0.5 1.0

The maturity profile of the receivables and allowance for expected credit losses provided for above are as follows:

Allowdnce for

expected

Canying amaunt credlt losses

2023 2023

£m £im

Not overdue 34.0 -
0 to 3 months overdue 3.3 -
3 to 6 months overdue 1.7 -
Over 6 months overdue 08 -
More than one year 7.7 0.5
47.5 0.5

Allowance for

expected
Canying amount credit losses
2022 2022
£m £€m
Nol overdue 29.9 -
0to 3 months overdue 30.4 -
3to 6 months overdue 1.0 -
Over ¢ months overdue 1.0 -
More than one year 7.7 1.0
70.0 1.0
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2023 2022
£m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 152.0 181.4
Restricted cash - 0.2 30
1522 184.6

Restricted cash deposits include £0.2m [FY22: £3.0m} relating to project bank accounts where amounts due to subcontractors are
ringfenced but are classified as cash and cash equivalents as they are available in order fo meet short-term cash commitments.
Payments to subcontractors were made after the year end.

22 BORROWINGS

2023 2022
£m £m
Amounts expected to be seltled within one year:
Group
Bank loans D1 02
Lease labilities 38.6 34.7
e 38.7 349
Company
Lease fiabiiities 6.6 6.9
b.6 59
Amounts expecied to be setled after more than one year:
Group
Bank loans 130 131
Intercompany loans owed to Laing O'Rourke Corporaiion Limited Group undertakings 48.0 48.0
Lease fiabilities 124.7 129.4
185.7 190.7
Company
Lease iabilities 533 58.4
533 38.4
Total borrowings — Group 2244 225.6
Total borowings - Company 59.9 65.3

Obligations under leases are secured on certain non-curent assets of the Group with an original cost of £245.7m (FY22: £240.7m)
and total net book value of £177.7m (FY22: £174.6m).

On 19 October 2023, the Group extended the £35.0m revolving credit facifty to 3 April 2024, The facility has been maintained at
£35.0m through to 31 March 2025, at which point quarterdy £2.5m step-downs commence, reducing the facliity to £25.0m by 31
December 2025.

A £13.0m property loan was also extended 1o 3 April 2026,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2023 2022
£m £
Amounts expected to be setfled within one year:
Group
Trade payables 1353 134.6
Amaounts owed to Loing O'Rourke Corporotion Limited Group undertakings 5%.7 475
Other tax and social security 550 458
Other payables 9.0 20.1
Accruals and deferred income 224.0 148.7
483.0 396.7
Company
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 387.1 3518
Other payables 04 0.4
Accruals and deferred income 0.1 0.6
387.4 3528
Amounts expected to be settled after more than one year:
Group
Trade payables 323 19.1
Accnals and deferred income 4.7 8.8
37.0 27.9
Company
Accruals and deferred income 03 0.4
0.3 0.4
Total rade and other poyables - Group 5200 424.4
Toldl trade and other payables — Company 387.9 353.2
Group
Comprising
Financial liabilties (Note 29) 4596 365.0
Other lickilities outside the scope of IFRS 7 60.4 59.6
520.0 424.4

Al 31 March 2023, trade payables included subcontractor retentions of £39.2m (FY22: £41.6m) relating to construction cantracts,

of which £32.3m (FY22: £19.1m} are non-current liabilities.

Amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured, interest-free, have no fixed date of repayment, and are repayable

on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

24 PROVISIONS

Joint ventures pravisions Contract provisions Other provisions Yotal provislons
Group £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2022 1o 53.9 0.7 65.6
Provisions created - 90.6 - 90.6
Pravisions utilised {4.3) (26.1) - (30.4)
At 31 March 2023 6.7 118.4 0.7 125.8
Disclosad within:
Current liabilities 8.7 1184 05 125.6
Non-current liabilities - - 02 0.2
6.7 118.4 0.7 125.8
At 1 April 2027 7.0 782 - 85.2
Provisions created 5.1 °0 0.7 14.8
Provisions ufilised - (33.3) - (33.3
Acquisition of non-controlling inferest (1.1) - - (1.1}
At 31 March 2022 11.0 539 0.7 65.6
Disclosed within:
Current ligbilifies 11.0 539 0.4 653
MNon-current liabilities - - 0.3 0.3
i1.0 539 0.7 65.6

The Group provides in full for obligations to remedy net liabilities of jointly controlied entities in excess of amounts aready loaned.
Al 31 March 2023, these provisions amaunted to £6.7m (FY22: £11.0m) and were measured in accordance with the Group's
accouniing policies. Amounts provided are assessed based on judgements of contract costs, contract programmes and
maintenance liakilities and are expected to be paid within one year.

At 31 March 2023, contract provisions included liabilities across a number of legacy projects related to rectification works

of £51.1m (FY22: £44.3m), of which £nil (FY22: £nil) are nor-current liabilities. During the vear, £20.6m of the liability as at 1 April 2022
was vlilised for rectification works performed on legacy projects. Of these liabilities of £51.1m [FY22: £46.3m). the Group does notin
all cases have access to the site to fully assess the costs of rectification ond, therefore, there is no certainty as to the leve! of costs
that will ultimately be incured 1o settle them. As described further in note 2.26, these liabilities are therefore considered a key
source of estimation uncertainty. Unless the timing of the rectification works is known and will occur more than 12 months affer the
balance sheet date, these liabilities are shown as cunent. Contract provisions aiso includes £67 3m (FY22: £7 ém) relating to
onerous contract provisions.

Compoany 2221': 2%35
At 1 March 01 -
Additional provisions recognised 0.2 ol
Utilised during the year (0.1) —
Closing balance 0.2 01

The provision relates to a right-of-use asset for remedial works on leased properties to bring the asset back to the original condition.
The amount payable is subject to commercial negotiations once the lease is surendered. At 31 March 2023, the cash ouifiow was
expected o occurin the following year.

25 DEFERRED TAX

The presentation of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities in the statement of financial pasition sets off deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities where they relate to corporate income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and there is a
legally enforceable right to offset curent tax assets against curent tax liabilifies. This note sets out the Group's deterred tax assets
and liabilities without applying such offset.

A summary table reconciling the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities in the statement of financial position to the
remainder of this note is also set oul below:

2023 002
£m £m

Net defened tax pesition at 31 March

Deferred fax assels 96.4 358
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

25 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Assetls Aszets Liabilitles lobilities Net MNet
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2
£m £m £m £&m £m £
Recognised deferred tax assels and liabilities
Group
Property, plant, and equipment 27.6 253 (40.3) (31.5) (12.7) (6.2)
Intangible tems - - 2.7) (1.3) 2.7y (1.3)
Other termporary dillerences 0.3 0.1 (0.2) - 0.1 0.1
Tax losses caried forward m.z 43.2 - - 1117 43.2
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 13%.4 68.6 (43.2) (32.8) 6.4 358
The ageing of deferred tax assets/(liabllities)
at the year end was:
Less than one year - 12.4 - - - 124
More than one vear 139.4 56.2 (43.2) {32.8} 96.4 23.4
139.6 68.6 {43.2) 132.8) 96.4 358
At L Apral Exchonge and Recognised In Recoghised in A1 31 March
X022 other movement income equly 2023
£m £&m &m £m £m
Movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities in the year
Property, plant, and equipment (6.2) - (6.5) - (12.7)
Intangible assets (1.3 - (1.4} - (2.7)
Other temporary differences 0.1 - - - a1
Tax losses caried forwardg 432 - 68.5 - 11.7
358 - 60.6 - 964
At Aprl Exchange and Recognised in Recognised in At 31 pMarch
2021 other movernent income equty 2022
£m £m £m £m £m
Property, plant, and equipment (2.2) - {4.0} - (6.2}
Intangible assets - - (1.3) - (1.3}
Other temporary differences 0.2 - {0.1) - 00
Tax losses caried forward 332 - 10.0 - 43.2
31.2 - 4.6 - 358

The recognised deferred tax assets include £171.7rm (FY22: £43.2rm) which primarily relates to camied forward losses in relation to
the UK operations. The losses arose predominantly due to a small number of contracts that became onerous during the year. The
nature of contract accounting and the application of 1AS 37 results in the full anficipated loss being recognised as it becomes
onerous and therefore it has been recognised during FY23 on these contracts. The remaining contracts are profitable and are
forecast to continue to be and the Group has concluded that these determed tax assets wil be recovered using the estimated
future taxable income, which is based on the approved forecasts prepared by management. These forecasts cover future years
and take into account UK tax laws that, in broad terms, restrict the offset of the canied forward tax losses to 50 per cent of the
current year profits. The UK Group entities are expected to generate taxable profits in the future. The losses can be camed forward
indefinitely and have no expiry date, Changes in future profits will impact the recoverability of the deferred tax assets, refer to note
2.26f) for further detail. Current forecasts indicate that the losses will be utilised over a period of up to 15 years. Refer to note 2.26e)
and the going concern section in the Directors’ Report for further detail around the forecast profitability as well as the key

assumpfions and areas of estimation uncerfainty.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

25 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

UNRECOGRNISED DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the failowing iterms:

2023 022
£m £m
Tax losses 62.2 67.9

The Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets of £62.2m (FY22: £67.9m) relating to unused tax losses of £233.8m [FY22: £276.3m).,
predominanily generated from Canadian operations which are equity accounted. The tax losses hove arisen in the Group and
can be caried forward to future periods for use against part of future prafits. The losses can be cartied forward indefinitely and
have no expity date. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of these amounts as the future taxable profits are not
probubic and the constraints in using the losses.

The Group doeas not have undistributed eamings which, if paid out as dividends, would bes suldject fo taxin the hands of the
recipient.

26 SHARE CAPITAL

NUmber of £1 Share capital
sharres issuedd £
Al April 2022 and at 31 March 2023 167,108 02
Allissued share capitai is fully paid.
27 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN TOTAL EQUITY
Share copiial '{;c;;ig‘:; ig‘:}s‘; Fair valye rieserve Accumuioted losses Tolkeh equity
£m £m £ £rm m
Group
At Aprit 2021 s previously presented 0.2 {19.6) 0.7 {161.6) (180.3)
Restatement - 255 - (25.5] -
At 1 Aprl 2021 restated 0.2 5.9 07 (187.7) {180.3)

Profit for the year - - - 202

Other comprehensive {expensa}/income

for the year, net of tax - (0.8} (0.7)

Total comprehensive [expense)/income for

the year - {0.8) {0.7) 202 18.7
At 31 March 2022 %2 &1 = 66y (1618
Lass for the year - ~ -~ {128.9) {(128.9)
Other comprehensive expense for the year.

net of tax ~ (1.5) (1.5)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ~ (1.5} - (128.9) (130.4)
Al 31 March 2023 0.2 3.5 - (295.8) {292.0)

1. Management has restated the financial statements to comect aprior year eror, These restatements are to recycle the foreign currency transiation reserve to
accumulated losses for foreign operations that were disposed of prior fo FY20.

FAIR VALUE RESERVE

The fair value reserve included the cumulative net change in the fair value of assets held 1o collect and 1o sell uniil the investment
is de-recognised, together with any related deferred tax.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE

The franskation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the transiation of the financial statements of fareign
operafions.

ACCUMULATED L OSSES
Accumulated losses relate 1o the proportion of net income retained by the parent company less distributions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

27 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN TOTAL EQUITY (CONTINUED)

(Accumulated losses|/

Fair value reserve retained earmings Total equity

Share capital£m £m £m £m
Company
At 1 April 2021 0.2 0.7 (49.3) (48.4)
Loss for the year and
other comprehensive expense - {0.7) {0.2) (0.9)
Cupilul cenmbution - ] - - o 1799 179.9
At 31 march 2022 0.2 - 130.4 130.46
Loss for the year and
other comprehensive expense - - (29.3) (29.3)
At 31 March 2023 0.2 - 1011 101.3

In the prior year, the Company benefitted from Laing O'Rourke Services Limited waiving £179.9m of an inftercompany balance
pavable as part of the UK restructure programme carried cut in FY22. As both parties are under common ownership the
ransaction is presented as a capital contribution.

28 GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group had centingent liabilities at 31 March in respect of:

GUARANTEES
2023 022
£m £m
Surety bonds 67.2 58.4
Bank guarantees - -
67.2 58.4

No guarantees were collateralised at 31 March. These guarantees may give rise to liabilities in the Group if it does not meet its
cbligations under the terms of the guarantees. No material losses are anticipated in respect of any of the above guarantees.

CLAIMS

The Company has subsidianes that have a conventional contractor's liability in relation to construction and engineering contracts,
including but not imited to guarantees, counter-indemnities and guarantees in respect of their share of certain contractual
cbligations of joint arangements, consortia and other similar relationships. This liability includes varicus claims from time fo fime by
the Group or subsidiaries against third parties or claims by third parties against the Group or its subsidiaries or joint arangements or
consortia relafionships in which the Group has an interest. It is not possible to estimate the financial ettect of these claims should
they be successful. While the outcome of these claims is uncertain, where it is appropriate to do so, the directors believe that
adequate vllowance has keen made within the forecasted contract provisions.

Provisions cre mode for the Directors’ best estimate of known defects, legol claims, investigations ond legal actions relafing to the
Group which are considered more likely than not will result in an outflow of economic benefit. If the Directors consider that an
economic outflow in relation to a defect, claim, investigation or action relating to the Group is not probable, and/or consider that
there is no present obligation, no provision is made. If the Directors cannot make a reliable estimate of a potential. material
obligation, no provision is made but details of the claim are disclosed.

JOINT ARRANGEMENTS
The Group has subsidianes that have entered into joint arangements under which the subsidianies moy be jointly and severally
fiable for the liabilities of the joint amangements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2721 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk management is an integral part of the way the Group is managed. In the course of its business, the Group s exposed

primarily to foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, and credit risk. The averall aim of the Group's financial risk

rmonagement policies is to minimise potentiol adverse effects on finoncial performance and net assets.

The Group's treasury department manages the principal financial risks within policies and operating parameters approved by the
Board and purchases derivative financial instruments where appropriate. Treasury is not a profit centre and does not enter into

speculative fransactions.

P97 FOREIGN TURRENCY RISK

Foreign cutrency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluciuate as a result of changes in foreign exchange rates.
Tne pound sterling equivalents of the currency of the Group's financial assets and liabilities, were as follows:

ruud shaiing wolve of argiivalent cumency (Em)

2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 ﬁz:‘

Gap EUR CaD HXD Other £m
Loans to joint ventures 8.0 - - - - 8.0
Trade ond ofher receivables 457 - 7.1 02 5.3 58.3
Cash and cash equivalients L i47.1 49 0. 0.1 - i52.2
Total financial assets 200.8 49 7.2 03 53 218.5
Borrowings (224.4) - - - - {224.4)
Trade and cther payables 2580} - By ~ (1.5 {459.4)
Net financial (abilities)/assets (4816} 49 7.1 0.3 3.8 (465.5)

Pound stering value of equivalent curency (Em)
2022

2022 2022 2022 022 2022 Total

GBP EUR CaD HED Other £m
Loans to joint ventures 80 - - - - 80
Trade and other receivables 68.1 - 73 02 10.9 86.5
Coshondcashequivalents __ 182 31 _ .o 02 1846
Total financial assets 257.3 31 7.3 03 1. 2791
Bomowings [225.4) ~ - 0.2) - (225.6)
Trade and other payables {361.6} {3.3) {0.1) — - {365.0)
Net financial (iabilities)/assets {329.7) 10.2) 7.2 0.1 11.1 (311.5)

If the foreign exchange rates that the Group is exposed 1o had changed adversely by 10 per cent at the balance sheet dale,
the results for the year and equity would have decreased by £1.5m [FY22: £1.1m). This sensitivity andlysis takes info account the
ox impact and the forward exchange contracts in place.

At the year end the Company had no significant balances in foreign currencies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

27 3INTEREST RAIE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instrements will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. The Group is
exposed ta interest rate risk in relation to some of its borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group ta cash flow
inferest rate risk. The confractual repricing or maturity dates, whichever are earlier, and effective interest rates of total borrowings
are s follows:

Repricing/maturity date

Within one Between one After two Effective
Total year and two years yeats interest rate
£m £m £m £m Fo
At 31 March 2023
Burik laans 13.1 0.1 13.0 - 6.38%
Lease obligations 163.3 3846 42.0 82.7 4.51%
Loans payable to Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited Group enfities 48.0 - 48.0 - 2.06%
2244 387 103.0 82.7
AT 31 March 2022
Bank laans 13.3 02 13.1 - 4.55%
Lease obligations 164.3 34.7 309 98.7 3.75%
Loans payable to Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited Group entities 48.0 - 48.0 -~ 2.06%
2256 349 220 98.7

If interast rates on varable rate borrowings had been 1 per cent higher during the year, the results and equity would have
reduced by £0.5m (FY22: £1.0myj. This sensitivity analysis takes info account the taximpact.

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk in regard to one balance owed to Group undertakings; see note 22.

29 ALIQUIDITY RISK

Prudent liquidity risk management involves maintaining sufficient cash and available funding to meet liabilities as they fall due. The
Group has procedures in place to minimise liguidity risk such as maintaining sufficient cash and other highly liquid current assets
and by having an adequate amount of committed credit focilifies.

On 19 October 2023, the Group refinanced its UK facilities, extending its £35.0m revolving credit facility. The new facility has three
covenants related to adjusted EBITDA, minimum liquidity, and forecast liquidity. If certain of these covenants are breached this will
constitute an event of default on the Group’s borrowing facilities. The Group takes a proactive stance in monitoring and ensuring
compliance with covenants and reporting requirements, Procedures are in place to monitor and forecast cash usage and other
highly liquid current assets. This, together with the revolving credit facility, ensures that we have an adequate availabifity of cash
when reguired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

29 4 LIQUIDITY RISK {CONTINUED)

Maturity of financial liabilities

The maturity profile of the carmying amount of the Group’s financial liabilities including interest is as follows:

Trade and other Bank leans

payables and other loans Leases Totak
£m £m £m im

At 31 March 2023
Within one year 483.0 0.1 42.9 526.0
Between ong and less than two years 17.2 62.9 38.8 1189
Between two and less than five years 19.8 - 5717 77.5
Five ormoreyears - - 329 329
5200 43.0 1723~ 7553

At 31 March 2022
Within one year 396.7 02 38.1 435.0
Between one and less than two years 20.4 663 33.1 119.8
Between two and less than five years 7.5 - 64.6 721
Five or more years - - 358 35.8
424.6 66.5 171.4 662.7

The Company has procedures in place 1o minimise liquidity risk.

29.5 CREDIT RISK

The Group's credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a client or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations. The Group's financial assets are typically frade receivables and confract assets. Contract assets relate to unbilled
work in progress and have substantially the same credit risk profile as trade receivables. The £8.0m (FY22: £8.0m) loan to joint
ventures is not considered a significant debt to the Group, nor considered a higher credit risk as the counterparty confinues to fulfil
its cantractual obligations. The funding and holding of PFis is no longer a core activity for the Group. For cash and deposits the
credit rating of a financial institution wilt determine the amount of and duration for which funds may te depasited.

The Group will only trade with recognised, creditworthy parties, and all that wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures thaf will be completed before frade commences. Any trade receivable outstanding is monitored on an
ongoing basis, at both business unit and hub level. Payment is ordinarily received before or when due from our clients, and the
Group does not expect material credit losses to occur on these clients. This is further substantioted by past performance of the
Group recovering in full balances owed. The Cempany also does not expect any losses from non-performance by counter paries.

Included within contract assets are client retentions contractually due post-completion, these can be due in more than one year
due to the size and nature of projects. Procedures are in place to monitor project performance 1o identify any potential non-
payment. Prormpt action will be taken by management to reduce the risk of non-payment, but often this is an operational issue
rather than determined as a credit risk.,

The Group applies the simplified approach fo measuring credit losses, which uses a lifelime expecied loss allowance for all trade
receivables and confract assets. At 31 March 2023, management have estimated an allowance for expected credit loss based
on experience of past default and the current and future economic environment. Specific trade receivables are provided for if
management become aware of a credit risk. There has not been & significant increase of the credit risk since the financial assets
have been recognised. A debt is only written off once all mechanisms to collect have been exhausted. and there is no
recasonable expectation of recovery.

29.6 FAIR VALUES

The fair value movements on held to collect and to sell financial assets are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. In the prior year the Group derecognised the fair value reserve in relation to financial assets held fo
colect and to sell in relation to PH investments in joint ventures in the year and recognised o £0.7m 1oss.

The carrying and fair vaiues of the Group's financial instrtuments at 31 March are as follows:

Fak value Carrying amount Fair value  Camying amaunt

2023 2023 2022 2022

£m £m £m £rm

Financial assets measured at amortised cost 463 48.3 24.5 4.5
Financial liabiities measured at amortised cost (484.0} (684.0) {583.0) {583.0}

Laing O'Rourke Pic 75



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

2% FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

296 TAIR VALUES [CONTINUED)
The carrying and fair values of the Group’s and Company's financiai instruments were not materially different at 31 March 2023 as
the impact of discounting on fixed term borrowings is not significant.

Loans, receivables, and financial labiliies are valued ot their amortised cost, which is deemed to reflect fair value due fo their
shor-term nature.,

29 7 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group $ and Company's objectives when managing copital are to safeguard the Group's and Company's ability {o
continue as a going concem in order to provide retums for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order te maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group and Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group regularly forecasts its cash position to manage on both a short-term and a iong-term basis. Performance against
forecasts is also reviewed and analysed to ensure the Group efficiently manages its net funds/debt position.

Net cash is calculated as cash and cash equivalents less total borrowings but excluding bank amrangement fees and the impact
of IFRS 16 Leases (including ‘current and non-curent bomowings' as shownin the conselidated statement of financial position).

At 31 March 2023 the Group had net cash of £4.4m (FY22: net cash of £43.5m); see note 36.

30 ASSETS CHARGED AS SECURITY FOR LIABILITIES AND COLLATERAL ACCEPTED AS SECURITY FOR ASSETS
Financial assets pledged as short-term collateral and included within cash eguivalents were £nil (FY22: £nil},

Na financial assets have been provided o the Group as collateral (FY22: £nil).

31 ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASYURES

The Group presents cerfain measures of financial performance and position in the consolidated financial statements that are not
defined or specified according to IFRS in order to provide additional performance-related measures to its stakeholders. These
measures, refermed fo as Alternafive Performance Measures {APMs), are prepared on a consistent basis for all periods presented in
this report.

By their nature, the APMs used by the Group are not necessarily uniformly applied by peer companies and therefore may not be
comparable with similarly defined measures and disclosures applied by other companies. Such measures should not be viewedin
isolation or as a substitute to the equivalent IFRS measure.

internally, the Graup and its operating segments apply the same APMs in a consistent manner in planning and reporting on
performance to management and the Board.

The APMs used by the Group are described below, together with a reference to their use and, where not already provided, a
reconciliation to the relevant IFRS informaticon.

APM descriplion and pwrpose HNote selerence Closest IFRS measure

Managed revenue Note 3 Revenue
Revenue, including share of joint ventures' revenue and inter-segment revenue. This is primarily

used at the segment level to measure the total income of all activities in the segment, regardless

of ownership or intercompany relationship. The reconciliation to revenue is shown in Note 3,

Revenue including share of joinf ventures Note 3 Revenue
This is used primarily at the Group level to assess revenue eamed from third party customers,
ncluding by joint ventures. The reconciliation to revenue is shown in Note 3.

Net cash MNote 34
Thisis & measure of the overall liquidity positicn of the business at the staterment of financial

position date. Itis equal to cash and cash equivalents less borrowings, excluding loan

argngement fees and the impact of adopting IFRS 16 Leases.

£m £Em
Cash and cash equivalents (see statement of financial position) 1522 184.6
Current borrowings (see statement of financial position) (38.7) (34.9)
Nan-current borrowings (see statement of financial position) (185.7) {190.7)
Less impact of adopting IFRS 14 leases 76.6 84.5
Net cash 4.4 435
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

32 FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure for property, plant, and equipment, outhorised and contracted tor which has not been provided for in the

financial statements arnounted to £8.4m {FY22: £15.0m) in the Group.
33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
IDENTITY OF RELATED PARTIES

The Group has a related party relotionship with its major shareholder. subsidiaries, ioint arrangements, and key management

personnel,
GROUP

The Group received income and incurned expenses with related parties from transactions made in the normal course of business.

SALE OF GOODS Ak SERVICESY PROVIDED 7O RELATED PARTIES

. 2022 o 2022 i .
Incorme waied Receinhle gt income eamed Recevable ot
inyear year-end inyear Wit e
£Em £m £m £m
Subsidiaries outside the LOR Plc Group (note 20} imanagement charges) 11.0 52 6.7 10.9
Joint ventures:
Alder Hey SPV (interest on sub debi) 1.1 8.6 - 8.0
BYLOR Services Limited (payrol services)! 0.2 - 0.1 ~
Explore Transport Limited (1T cost) 0.2 0.1 1.0 0.5
Relgted parties:
Oisin Aviation {lersey) LP lemployment and office cost) 0.2 - 0.3 -
Qisin Capital Limited (office and admin cost) 04 - 02 0.1
PURCHASE OF GOODS AND SERVICES PROVIDED BY RELATED PARTIES
2023 w022
Expenses pakiln Payable ctyear- Expenses paidin Payoble af year
year end year end
£m £€m £m £m
Subsidiaries outside the LOR Pic Group {note 23) 10.9 59.7 2.8 47.5
Joint venfutes:
BYLOR Services Limiled {employment cost)! 210.8 -~ 1461 -
Explore Transport Limited (transport and plant hirej 552 49 46.7 48
Reloted parties:
Mark Holding and Finance timited (ieased premises) 1.8 0.5 1.8 0.1
Oisin Aviation (IOM) LP {aviation cost) 0.1 - 0.1 -
Crisin Aviation (Jersey) LP (aviation cost] 0.3 - O -
Steetley Investments Limited (leased premises) 6.1 20 6.1 0.2

1. Related party fransactions for FY22 have been represented in the table above, FY22 expenses paid in the year fo joint ventures has been incredsed by
£144.1Tm due to the cmission of cost related fo payrollin the prior year. £FY22 receivable at year end has been increased by £8m due to inconect disclosure in

the pitor year. This has been represented and restated in the table above.

These restatements have no impact on the Group's profit/(loss). net asset position, or net cash flows in the current or prior

financial year.

The related parties receivables and payables are not secured and no guarantees were received in respect thereof, Both will be
settled in accordance with normai credit terms. Amaounts due to and from joint veniures and associates at 31 March 2023 are
disclosed within investment in joint ventures and associates and loans to joint ventures, tfrade and other receivables and trade and
other payables in notes 15, 20 and 23 respectively. No amounts were wiitten off in the year by either party in respect of amounts

payable under the agreements entered into.

Alder Hey (Special Purpose Vehicle) Limied, BYLOR Services Limited. Emirates PreCast Construction LLC and Explore Transport
Limited are related parties by virtue of the fact that they are joint venture undertakings of the Laing O'Rowrke Corporation Group.

In bath years allinvoices from Mark Holding and Finance Limited and Steetley Investments Limited were paid to Ebsworth Holding
and Finance Limited. During the year the interests in Mark Holding and Finonce Limited, Steefley Investments Limited and Ebsworth
Holding and Finance Limited were held in trust, the beneficiaries of which are B G O'Rourke KBE and H D O'Rourke.

The limited partners of Qisin Aviation (IOM) LP and Oisin Aviation (Jersey) LP were R G O'Rourke KBE and H D G'Rourke.

The interests in Qisin Capital Limited were held in trust, the beneficiaries of which are R G O'Rourke KBE and H D O'Rourke.

R G O'Rourke KBE and H D O'Rourke are beneficiarties of the frust which uttimately owns Suffolk Partners Corporation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS REMUMERATION
During the year, the total remuneration of the Directors was £4.3m (FY22: £6.6m) of which pension costs amounted to £0.0m
(FY22: £0.1m}, see note 7.

TRANSACHONS WIHTH DIRECTORS

H D O'Rourke emploved the Group to provide stonemasonry services, the project is complete at 31 March 2023, £0.1m (FY22:
£0.1m) was recognised as revenue for these services. The balance outstanding at the year end was £nil (FY22: Lnil). Mo amounts
were written off in the year by either party in respect of amounts puyable under the agreements entered into. The conbact was
Lased on nomal commercial terms.

In the year ended 31 March 2022, D J McGeeney, Director, Infrastructure employed the Group to provide stonemasonry setvices,
£0.1m was recognised as revenue for these services and £13,700 was outstanding as at 31 March 2022 but has since been paid
aduring the yeor ended 31 March 2023. No further work was conducted for D 1 McGeeney during the year.

34 ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY

The immediate parent undertaking of Laing O'Rourke Plc is O'Rourke Investments Limited, a company registered in England

and Wales. The ultimate parent company of Laing O'Rourke Plc is Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited, a company registered in
Jersey. R G O’Rourke KBE holds 64.2 per cent of the shares of Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited and H D O'Rourke holds 35.8 per
cent. The immediate and ulfimate confroling party of Laing C’'Rourke Corporation Limifed is R G O'Rourke KBE by virfue of his
majority shareholding (64.2 per cent).

Laing O'Rourke Corporation Limited is the parent undertaking of the targest group of undertakings to consolidate these financial
statements at 31 March 2023. The Laing O’Rourke Corporation Limited consalidated financial statements are available at
www laingorourke.com. This Annual Report and Accounts are the smallest group to consclidate the results of the Company,

35 POST BALANCE SHEET REVIEW

The Group has in place an unsecured revolving credit facility with HSBC for £35.0m. The loan had an inifial expiry date of 3
Qctober 2023, which was extended 1o 3 April 2024 during FY23 and further to 3 April 2026 since the year end. As part of the latest
extension, covenants related to interest cover and net debt to EBITDA were replaced by an adjusted EBITDA covenant, and the
minimum liquidity covenant was amended o include three forecast month-end periods, The facility has been maintained at
£35.0m through 1o 31 March 2025, at which point quarterly £2.5m reductions commence, reducing the facility to £25.0m by 31
December 2025.

36 RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET CASH

labilities rom financing achivities

Bank

arangement Caosh and cash

Bomawings tees Ledses Sub-total equivalents Net cash

£m £m £m £m £m £m

As at 1 April 2021 (153.4) 30.8 (42.0) {164.6) 261.5 26.9
Cash flow {48.0) - - (48.0) 69.3 21.3
New lease arrangements - - (73.7) (73.7) - (73.7)
Repayments 140.3 {30.8) 36.7 146.2 {148.2) -
Impact of IFRS 14 at 31 March 2021 - - (79.6) {79.6) - (79.6)
Impact of IFRS 16 at 31 March 2022 - - 84.5 84.5 - 84.5
Other changes* B ~ ey - _(58) (59 - _{5.9)
Asal 31 March 2022 ) (61.2) - (79.9) {141.1) 184.6 435
Cash flow (0.1) - - (0.1) 7.2 7.1
New lease arangements - - (35.7) (36.7) - {36.7)
Repayments** 0.2 - 39.4 39.6 (39.8) -
Impact of IFRS 16 at 31 March 2022 - - (84.5) {84.5) - (84.5)
Impact of IFRS 14 at 31 March 2023 - - 76.6 744 - 7.6
Other changes* - - (1.6) {1.8) - (1.6)
As of 31 March 2023 {61.1) - (86.7) (147.8) 15822 44

* Other changes include accrued interest not yet paid and interest relating to lease liabifities
** Repayments is net of £7.4minierest (FY22: £5 émj.

The Group defines net cash as cash less debt but excluding bank arangement fees and the impact of adopting IFRS 14.
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37 SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has an interest either directly or indirectly in the share capital of the following companies:

Subsicikary undertaking

Princypal actwty

Craup interest in
ordinery voling
shares

Country of mcarporalon or regstration

Anchor Bovlevard Limited
Cellence Plus Limited

Coventry Utban Regeneration Limited
Crown House Technolagies Limited
Elis Mechanical Services Limited
Exponded Piling Limited
Expanded Structures Lirmited
Explore Capita! Umited

Explore Investments Limited
Explore Investments {No.1) Limited
Explore Living Balls Park Limited
Explore Living Limited

Explore Living Property Management Limited

Explore 2050 Engineering Limiled

Explore 2050 Manufacturing Limited
Glass Reinforced Concrete [UK) Limited

Irishfown Developments Limifed
John Laing Construction Limited
John Laing Intermationat Limited
John Laing (Malaysia) Sdn Bha
Loing Albw Dhabi LLC

Laing Construction Limited
Laing Engineering Limited

Laing internationa! Nigeria Limited
Laing Limited

Laing O'Rourke Conada Limited
Laing Q'Rourke Delivery Limited

Laing O'Rourke Construction South Lirmited

Laing O'Rourke Holdings Limited

Laing O'Rourke Infrastructure Limited
Laing O'Rourke Manufacturing Holdings
Limited

Laing O’Rourke Manutacturing Limited
Laing O'Rourke Midlands Limited

Laing O'Rourke Properties {Erith) Limited
Laing O 'Rourke Scofiand Limifed

Laing O'Rourke Services Limited

Laing O'Rourke Utifities Limited

Laing O'Rourke Wales & West Limited
O C Summers Limited

O'Rourke Civil & Structural Engineering
Limited

O'Rourke Civil Engineering Limited

R O'Rourke & Son Maynooth timited

R O'Rourke & Soun Linited

Property investment company
Non-frading

Development management
Mecharnical and electical contracting
Non-trading

Non-rading

Non-huding

Holding company

Holding company

Holding company

Non-trading

Residential development

Residential property management
Civil ond structural engineering,

piling and demaofition

mManufacture of construction products

Maonufacture and supply of glass
reinforced concrete buiding products

In valuntary strike off

Non-trading

Holding company

Non-trading

Non-rading

Non-trading

Non-trading

Bormant company

Holding company

Building contracting and civil engineering

Building contracting. civil engineering and
infrastructure

Building contracting

Helding company

Civil engineering and infrastructure
Holding company

Non-trading

Construction of commercial bulldings
Non-trading

Building confracting

Service company

Non-frading

Building contracting

Non-trading

Non-frading

Non-trading
Non-trading
Holding company

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%,
100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
49%

100%
100%
WOO%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

England and Waoles
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
Englond and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

England and Wales
Englond and Wales

reland

England and Wales
England and Wales
Maiaysic

UAE

England and Wales
England and Wales
Nigeria

England and Wales
Canada

England and Wales

England and Waies
England and Wales
England and Waies
England and Wales

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Waoles
Englond and Wales

England and Wales
retand
England and Wales
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NOTES TO THF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

37 SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

tnterest In

ordinary voting Country of incorporation
Subsiaiary undertaking Phacipal actity shares of registration
Select Plant Hire Company Umited Plant hire and operations 100% England and Wales
Sundera Holdings Limited Dissclved 8 July 2023 100% reland
Sycamore Properties Limited Property holding company 100% Bahamas
Vetter UK Limited Finished stone products 100% England and Wales

Interast in
ordincry vohng Country of Incorporation

Joint venture Principal activty shares OF registraticn

Alder Hey (Special Purpose Vehicle) Limited PFl accommodation operator hospital A40% England and Wales
Alder Hey Holdco 1 Limited PFl accommodation operator haspital 40% England and Wales
Alder Hey Holdco 2 Limited PFl accommodation operator hospital 40% England and Wates
Alder Hey Holdco 3 Limited PFl accommaodation operator hospital 10% England and Wales
BYLOR Services Limited Service company 50% Engiang and Wales
CLM Delivery Partner Limited Non-frading 37.5% England and Wales
Explore Transport Limited Logistics 50% England and Wales
Health Montreal Collective CJV Limited PFl accommodation operator hospital 50% Canada
Partnership

9231-%243 Quebec Inc PFl accommadation operator hospital 50% Canada

Ernirates Precast Construction LLC and Alder Hey SPV Limited have a year-end of 31 March. BYLOR Services Limited, CLM Delivery
Partner Limited and Explore Transport Limited have a 31 December year end. Health Montreal Collective CJV Limited Partnership
and 9231 - 9243 Quebec Inc have a 30 April year end,

Cauniry of ncorparation

Jaint operation Principal activity Participation of registration
BYLOR Civil engineering 50% England and Wales
COLOR Bond Street Civil engineering 50% England and Wales
East West Alliance Civil engineering 33% England and Wales
FLO - Northern Line Civit engineering 50% England and Wales
FLO - Thames Tideway Tunnel Civil engineering 50% England and Wales
Heathrow East Terminal Project Civil engineering 50% England and Wales
Lt Civil engineering 50% England and Wales
M-Pact Manchester Civil engineering &0% England and Wales
SAIP Aliance Civil engineering 33% England and Wales

Interest in

ordinary vofing  Couniry of incorporatiorn
Branch Prncipal activity shares or registration
Laing O'Rourke Services Limited Service company 100% Hong Kong

The registered address of those registered in England and Wales is Bridge Place. Anchor Boulevard, Admirals Park, Dortford, Kent
0A2 65N excluding Alder Hey (Special Pupose Vehicle) Limited, Alder Hey Holdco 1 Limited, Alder Hey Holdco 2 Limited and Alder
Hey Holdco 3 Limited whose registered address is 8 White Oak Square, Londen Road, Swanley, Kent BR8 7AG.

The registered address of those registered in Ireland is 3 Dubslin Landings, North Wall Quay, Dublin 1,
The registered address of Laing Abu Dhabi LLC is Sheikh Khalifa Street, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates.
The registered address of the Laing O'Rourke Services Limited branch is Roorn 905, 625 King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

The registered address of John Laing (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd is ¢/o Signet & Co Sdn Bhd, 10th Floor Tower Block, Komple Jalan Sultan
Isrnail, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

The registered address of Laing International Nigeria Limiled is 98 Awclowo Road, P.O. Box 53756, koyi, Lagos, Nigeria.

The registered address of Sycamore Properties Limited is Suite 200b, 2nd Floor, Centre of Commerce, One Bay Street,
P.Q. Box N-3244 Nassau, Bahamas.

The registered address of those registered in Canada is 1031 rue Saint-Denis, Montreal, Quebec H2X3H9.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

37 SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED}

Listed below are subsidiaries controlled and consolidated by the Group, where the Directors have taken the exemption from
having an audit of their financial staternents for the year ended 31 March 2023, This exemptlion is taken in accordonce with
Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006.

Subsidiary underfaking Caompany Regisiration Numiber
Cellence Plus Limitec 6726412

Coventry Urban Regeneration Limited 6371949

Expanded Structures Limited 5407121

Explore Capital Limited 5258424

Explore Investments [No. 1) Limited 5835462

Explore Investrments Limniled 5490297

Explore Living Property Management Limited 5597437

Glass Reinforced Concrete UK Limited 6795454

Laing Construction Limited 3074000

Laing Engineerng Limited 15471508

Laing Limitea 3637584

Laing O'Rourke Manufacturing Holdings Limited 6725938

Laing O'Routke Properties (Erith) Limited 4531115

taing O'Rourke Utilities Limited 4309417

O C Summers Limited 0969372

QO'Rourke Civil & Structural Engineering Limited 1323856

G'Rourke Civil Engineering Limited 2810023 !
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